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SAICA    South African Institute of Chartered Accountants 
SCM    Supply Chain Management 
SCOPA   Standing Committee on Public Accounts 
SDIP    Service Delivery Improvement Plan 
SERO    Social-Economic Review and Outlook 
SCM    Supply Chain Management 
SMME    Small Medium and Micro Enterprises 
SLA    Service Level Agreement 
SITA    State Information Technology Agency 
U-AMPs   User Asset Management Plans 
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A.3  Foreword by the MEC of Finance, Mr. RR Pillay –    
As the MEC for Finance in KwaZulu-Natal (KZN), it is both an honour and 

a privilege to lead this Department as we enter the second term of the 6th 

Administration. This Department is mandated with a huge responsibility of 

promoting sound financial management practices and fiscal management 

to achieve good governance.  

Provincial Treasury is further required to promote sound processes, 

controls and improved capabilities in Departments, Municipalities and Public Entities. This is not an 

easy task, particularly as it is aimed at reducing unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure thereby improving audit outcomes. 

The economic indicators show that 2019/20 was one of the most challenging financial years in the 

history of South Africa (SA). Though the real gross domestic product (GDP) demonstrated an 

impressive moderate growth of 3.2% in the second quarter of 2019, this was short-lived as the country's 

economy contracted by 0.6% and 1.4% in the third and fourth quarters of 2019, respectively. SA 

unfortunately, closed the 2019/20 financial year with an uninspiring negative GDP growth rate of 2% in 

the first three months of this year. 

The disappointing contraction that perpetuated the on-going technical recession at the beginning of 

2020 was to a large extent due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. This virus continues to shut 

down economic activities in advanced economies and across the globe. It is disrupting billions of lives 

and jeopardising decades of development progress. As a result of this pandemic, major financial 

institutions such as the International Monetary Fund, World Bank, Organisation for Economic Co-

operation and Development and the South African Reserve Bank are already expecting the economy of 

SA to contract by between 6% and 8% this year. 

In KZN, GDP is projected to shrink by close to 10% this year, after the estimated contraction of 0.1% in 

2019. These depressive growth rates are unfortunately detrimental to the creation of job opportunities 

and reducing poverty as envisaged in the National Development Plan and the Provincial Growth and 

Development Plan (PGDP) and the 2019-2024 Medium Term Strategic Framework (MTSF). 

Despite these subdued economic conditions, we, as Provincial Treasury, continued to implement 

financial governance through cash blocking system for the effectiveness of cash management by 

departments to disburse payments to suppliers only when they have cash available.  

This control mechanism ensured that the province continued to remain cash positive. We also provided 

support to departments, municipalities and public entities on supply chain management policies and 
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procedures. While implementing these strategic financial management interventions, we obtained the 

eleventh consecutive clean audit report for 2018/19.  

In collaboration with other Departments, we conducted a review of the adequacy and effectiveness of 

internal controls to enhance overall good governance. This process was undertaken to strengthen the 

adequacy of Departments’ audit improvement strategies to address previous Auditor General’s adverse 

findings. We further embarked on advisory service projects that were designed to capacitate 

departments on strategic interventions such as business continuity plans and fraud prevention plans, 

among others. Other critical frameworks undertaken to improve good governance, included the 

combined assurance model and reviewed the risk management framework. These initiatives were 

prioritised and finalised and are already implemented during the turbulent 2020/21. 

Notwithstanding the budget cuts and financial constraints due to sluggish economic performance and 

the population data used by National Treasury when allocating funding to provinces, we completed a 

total of 54 forensic investigations. We also conducted 65 follow-ups to track the status of 

implementation of recommendations arising from forensic investigation reports. The Anti-Corruption 

Task Team was revitalised, and the Fraud Case Management system was developed. These 

interventions will be used to record, consolidate and track all forensic investigations conducted within all 

spheres of government.  

As required by the Municipal Financial Management Act, we continued to provide technical support to 

delegated municipalities. The key activities included monitoring of the implementation of the budgeting 

framework by municipalities, providing guidance on budget planning and implementation, monitoring, 

evaluating and reporting on budget implementation, as well as the monitoring and reporting on 

compliance. 

We further continued to provide support on infrastructure reporting using the Infrastructure Reporting 

Model, Infrastructure Delivery Management and the KZN Infrastructure Master Plan for all provincial 

infrastructure projects. These interventions were undertaken to enable the province to implement 

economic and social infrastructure projects required to kick-start economic development that is needed 

for the benefit of the most vulnerable communities in KZN.  

 
Mr R.R. Pillay  

MEC for Finance (KwaZulu-Natal) 
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A.4    

While tabling the national budget, the Honourable Minister of Finance, Mr Tito Mboweni had said that 
we had expected economic growth of 0.7% in 2018 and that this was still our estimate. He further said 
they expected a slower, but still steady recovery after the 2018 technical recession, with real GDP 
growth in 2019 expected to rise to 1.5% and to strengthen moderately to 2.1% in 2021. Sadly, the 
economy remained fragile. 

 

As if that was not enough, KwaZulu-Natal suffered substantial budget cuts over the previous MTEF 
periods. Some of these cuts related to the annual data update of the equitable share formula, while 
others related to National Treasury’s fiscal consolidation plan.  Unfortunately, we were not spared from 
budget cuts over the 2019/20 MTEF either. 

 

Despite the challenges mentioned above, KZN Treasury continued to perform its mandate as 
prescribed by the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and Treasury Regulations, resulting in the 
department receiving a 10th consecutive clean audit report around June last year - a milestone and an 
historic moment in the history of public administration.  

 

This bears testimony that KZN Treasury has continuously ensured that fiscal discipline in the provincial 
administration is achieved through careful oversight and continued implementation of the cost-cutting 
measures, together with careful budget and cash management. We are proud to say that we ended the 
financial year under review with the bank balance of the province remaining cash positive as it has been 
since May 2010. 

 

This achievement is a direct consequence of consistently and efficiently implementing all the elements 
of good governance, characterised by prudent financial controls. 

 

Unfortunately, however, not all public institutions have mastered the art of good governance. This is 
evident from the persistent negative findings by the Auditor General.  The Provincial Treasury has been 
called upon by the Executive Council to intensify its support to departments, with a view to assisting 
them to improve their audit outcomes. 

  

The concept of good governance has been measured, studied and defined by numerous agents, 
international organisations and academics around the world, who have developed an array of theories 
as well as multiple and diverse standards for outlining what constitutes good governance.  

 

Introduction by the Head of Department, Mrs Neli Shezi (Acting)

for government in general, who in turn had to lead departments
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The outbreak of the coronavirus and the need to find resources to deal with it had sadly added to our 
financial woes. However, Provincial Treasury remains committed to fiscal prudence and has therefore 
put measures in place to reduce risks which may arise from Covid-19 emergency procurement. We are 
performing oversight over all covid-19 related procurement and KZN Treasury will play its role to ensure 
that the province navigates this storm successfully. 

As KZN Treasury, we pride ourselves in the knowledge that the management of public finances is in 
good hands as a result of strong and dedicated professionals that work collaboratively and efficiently 
with other departments, public entities and municipalities. This happens despite the challenging fiscal 
environment we face.  

Even in turbulent economic times like these that the country and the globe find themselves in, as KZN 
Treasury-the Guardian of the Public Purse, we remain committed to becoming the centre of excellence 
in the management of fiscal resources going forward. 

 

 

 

Mrs Neli Shezi 

Head: Provincial Treasury (Acting) 
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A.5 Report by the Accounting Officer to the Executive Authority and the KwaZulu-Natal 

Legislature  
 
OVERVIEW OF THE OPERATIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT 

Provincial Treasury (PT) received an allocation of R721, 629 million in 2019/20 financial year. During 
the 2019/20 adjustments this allocation was adjusted to R727, 654 million and this was largely for 
financial management for general oversight and support to all Departments, Municipalities and Public 
entities, in areas such as;  

 Infrastructure Management Support, 

 Financial management support, 

 Supply Chain Management (SCM),  

 Support for transversal financial systems,  

 Internal audit services, as well as 

 Municipal Support Programme, 

PT has made reasonable progress in respect of providing support and guidance to provincial 
departments in improving their planning and implementation of infrastructure programmes and project 
initiatives to obtain value for money. The department has Technical Advisors which assist the 
departments in the infrastructure delivery through the application of the principles and guidelines of the 
Infrastructure Delivery Management System (IDMS).  

During the adjustments estimate the department introduced the Irregular expenditure project to assist 
provincial departments to clear the backlog of irregular expenditure in the province. The project was 
allocated a total amount of R13 million which was a reprioritization within the department’s budget.    

Through financial management support, SCM and Accounting Services has provided a hands-on 
support and undertook comprehensive compliance assessments of departments, municipalities and 
public entities to help reduce irregular expenditure on SCM-related processes. 

PT has through Provincial Internal Audit Services (PIAS) performed Risk-based audits with specific 
focus on overall good governance, and continued assisting Departments in ensuring that risk 
assessments are performed. Through the Municipal Support Program (MSP), PT managed to provide a 
hands-on technical support to delegated municipalities with the primary aim of ensuring compliance with 
the MFMA and other relevant legislation with the aim to improve the audit results of the delegated 
municipalities. 

The department continues to enforce the adherence to the cost-cutting measures, as every cent saved 
through cost-cutting allows us to redirect these funds to service delivery spending areas.   

There are no other material facts or circumstances which may have an effect on the understanding of 
the financial state of affairs not addressed elsewhere in this report that I’m aware of.  

GENERAL REVIEW OF THE STATE OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS 
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The table below shows the revenue budget and collected for Provincial Treasury for the year-ending 
2019/20. 

 
 

Departmental 
receipts 

2019/20 2018/19  

Estimate 
Actual 

Amount 
Collected 

Over/(Under) 
Collection 

 
Estimate 

 

Actual 
Amount 

Collected 

Over/(Under) 
Collection 

 
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

 
Tax Receipts R 0 R 0 R 0 R 0 R 0 R 0 

Sale of goods and   
services other than  
capital assets 

R 228 R 303 R 75 R 227 R 287 R 60 

Transfers received R 0 R 0 R 0 R 0 R 0 R 0 
Fines, penalties 
and           forfeits R 0 R 0 R 0 R 0 R 0 R 0 

Interest, dividends   
and rent on land R 365, 000 R 599, 025 R 234, 025 R 295, 219 R 471, 010 R 175, 791 

Sale of capital 
assets R 204 R 1,434 R 1,230 R 203 R 0 R 203 

Financial 
transactions in 
assets and 
liabilities 

R 410 R 2,194 R 1, 784 R 407 R 433 R 26 

Total R 365, 842 R 602, 957 R 237, 115 R 296, 056 R 471, 730 R 175, 674 

The actual revenue collected in the 2019/20 financial year was R602 957 million against a budget of 
R365 842 million, resulting in an over collection at year end of R237 115 million. The over collection is 
explained per economic classification as follows: 

 Sale of goods and services other than capital assets - The revenue collected under this 
category relates to parking fees, gaming licenses, commission received on PERSAL deductions and 
sale of tender documents. The over collection is mainly from commission on garnishee fees, sale of 
tender document and sale of assets <R5000 that was higher than anticipated.  

 Fines, penalties and Forfeits – There were no fines or penalties collected under this category.   

 Interest, dividends and rent on land – Revenue collected against this category is from interest 
earned on the Inter-Governmental Cash Co-ordination (IGCC) and the Pay Master-General (PMG) 
accounts. The enormity of the interest earned by these accounts is related to the amount of cash on 
hand and interest rate volatility, as the IGCC account has been cash positive due to the 
implementation of cost-cutting measures and tight cash flow management by provincial departments   

 Sale of capital assets - The over collection against this item was due to the sale or auctioning of 
old motor vehicles, machinery and equipment.     

 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities - Revenue generated against this category is 
mainly attributed to recovery of debts from previous financial years. It is often difficult to accurately 
forecast for this category due to its indeterminate nature.  
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Programme Expenditure  

Programme 
Name 

2019/20 2018/19 

Final 
Appropriati

on 

Actual 
Expendit

ure 

(Over)/ 
Under 

Expendit
ure  

Final 
Appropriati

on 

Actual 
Expenditur

e 

(Over)/
Under 

Expendit
ure  

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Administration           R 237, 636 R 204, 269 R 33, 367 R 237, 262 R 234, 049 R 3, 213 

Sustainable  
Resource 
Management 

 R 44, 641 R 40, 980 R 3, 661 R 38, 657 R 38, 344 R 313 

Financial 
Governance R 210, 917 R 205, 764 R 5, 153 R 196, 102 R 194, 227 R 1, 875 

Internal Audit  R 174, 595 R 162, 584 R 12, 011 R 149, 648 R 130, 111 R 19, 537 
Municipal 
Finance 
Management   

R 59, 865 R 58, 418 R 1, 447 R 60, 231 R 59, 439 R 792 

Total  R 727, 654 R 672, 015 R 55, 639 R 681, 900 R 656, 170 R 25, 730 

The main appropriation of Provincial Treasury was R721 629 million in 2019/20. During the year, the 

department’s budget was increased by R6, 025 million to R727, 654 million which was appropriated 

during 2019/20 Adjustments Estimate.  

The main adjustments that led to the increase in the budget are summarised below;  

Roll-overs: Approval was granted for the roll-over of R4 million from 2017/18 financial year. 

Other adjustments: Additional funding of R2, 025 million was allocated to Households under 

Programme 1 in respect of the Severance Package for the ex-MEC exit.   

Spending in respect of Programmes can be summarised as follows: 

 Programme 1 - This programme spent 86% of the allocated budget. The substantial under-

spending of (14%) was mainly due to; -  

 delays in the appointment of Resources in respect of Irregular Expenditure project,  

 slow spending on the Health/Treasury Assistant project,  

 savings were also realised due to no purchasing of Motor Vehicles during the year, and 

 Further savings due to the delays in the filling of vacant funded posts mainly from the 

office of the MEC of (R2, 1m), HOD of (R2,3m) and Corporate Services of (R1,4m) due 
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 Programme 1 - This programme spent 86% of the allocated budget. The substantial under-

spending of (14%) was mainly due to; -  
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 slow spending on the Health/Treasury Assistant project,  
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office of the MEC of (R2, 1m), HOD of (R2,3m) and Corporate Services of (R1,4m) due 
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to lengthy recruitment process. The adherence to cost cutting measures also resulted in 

savings on Subsistence and Travel and other operational items. 

 Programme 2 - This programme spent 92% of the allocated budget. The under-spending of (8%) 

was mainly due to; -   

 slow spending in the Infrastructure Crack team with regard to infrastructure support 

offered by the unit which is mainly driven on a needs basis of departments/municipalities, 

 savings were realized via an IDA claims in relations to the appointment of the DDG as 

Acting HOD of DARD and the Director: Provincial Own Revenue post which was vacated 

during the year,  

 Further savings were realised on S&T, Training & Development and the balance is the 

operating costs. 

 Programme 3 - This programme spent 98% of the allocated budget. The slight under-spending 

of (2%) was mainly due to; -  

 savings were realised from Bank charges being lower than budgeted,  

 savings on advertising and S&T being lower than anticipated,  

 further savings were realised on Training, Computers, Communication and Stationery 

being lower due to adherence to the cost cutting measures.  

 Under-expenditure as a result of the late filling of vacant funded posts mainly under 

Assets & Liabilities as well as PPP.   

 Programme 4 - This programme spend 93% of the allocated budget. The under-spending of 

(7%) was mainly due to; - 

 orders of (R6.1m) that were not issued in 2019/20 in respect of planned Risk 

Management projects such as Risk Maturity Reviews as projects were brought forward 

from previous financial years,   

 savings were realised on Compensation of Employees due to delays in the filling of 

vacant funded posts within this programme,  
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 further savings were also realised from S&T, Stationery, Training, Communication, and 

Computers,  

 the balance is savings from other operational items.    

 Programme 5 - This programme spent 98% of the allocated budget. The under-spending of (2%) 

was mainly due to; -  

 the delays in the filling of vacant funded, and  

 savings were also realised on S&T, other operating expenditure due to cost cutting 

measures, as well as Computers.  

Spending in respect of Economic Classification can be summarised as follows: 

 Compensation of Employees was under-spent by R12. 885 million i.e. (3%) mainly due to: 

 Unfilled vacant funded posts and the recruitment processes that are unfinalised, as well 

as vacant posts that were vacated during the financial year.                                                              

 Goods and Services was under-spent by R33.484 million i.e.  (9%). This was attributed to the 

following: 

 Health/Treasury assistance budget was not fully spent,  

 Slow spending on the Irregular expenditure project as the project started very late in the 

year.  

 Slow spending in the Infrastructure Support project with regard to infrastructure support 

offered by the unit which is mainly driven on a needs basis of departments/municipalities;   

 orders of (R6.1m) that were not issued in 2019/20 in respect of planned Risk 

Management projects such as Risk Maturity Reviews as projects were brought forward 

from previous financial years, 

 pending Forensics and Criminal cases that are outside the control of the department, 

 balance of the savings is coming from S&T, Training, Communication and other 

operational costs due to strict adherence to the cost-cutting measure circular.                                 
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 Transfers and Subsidies was under-spent at year-end by R371 000 i.e. (6%) mainly due to: 

 Provinces and Municipalities in respect of the Motor Vehicle licenses was under-spent by 

R1000 i.e. (2%) at year-end as they were lower than budgeted for.    

 Non-profit Institutions was under-spent at year-end by R138 000 i.e. (27%) in respect of 

cash donations that were lower than budgeted.                                                                                  

 Households was under-spent at year-end by R231 000 i.e. (4%) due to external 

bursaries being lower than budgeted.                                                                                                 

 Payments for Capital Assets was under-spent at year-end by R8, 897 i.e. (55%) mainly due to:                  

 Machinery and Equipment was underspent by R7, 537 million (51%) as the department 

did not need to procure or replace motor vehicles during the financial year. 

 Software & Other Intangible Assets was not spent.       

The following post virements were made between Programmes: 

 

Programme 1 

An amount of R3.476 million was moved out of this programme to programme 3 as follows: 

 An amount of R906 000 was moved to Accounting Services (P3) under compensation of 

employees to cover for salary costs that were higher than anticipated.  

 An amount of R2.570 million was moved to Systems (P3) under goods and services to 

cater for Computer Services as a result of higher exchange rate on Forex (Microsoft).    

 

 

Table 6.1:   Summary by programmes

Other

R thousand adjustments
1. Administration 241,112                                (3,476)                                   -                                            -                                            (3,476)                                   237,636                                

2. Fiscal Resource Management 44,641                                  -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            44,641                                  
3. Financial Management 207,441                                3,476                                    -                                            -                                            3,476                                    210,917                                
4. Internal Audit 174,595                                -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            174,595                                
5. Growth and Development 59,865                                  -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            59,865                                  
Total 727,654                                -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            727,654                                
Amount to  be voted -                                            

Adjusted Appropriation

POST ADJUSTMENTS APPROPRIATION
Total adjustments 

appropriation
Post Adjusted 
appropriationVirement Shifts
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The following post virements were made between Economic Classification: 

 

 R3.427 million was moved out from Compensation of employees as follows:  

 R2.129 million was moved to Goods and Services to defray over-expenditure.   

 R581 000 was moved to Transfers and Subsidies under various items to defray over-

expenditure.  

 R670 000 was moved to Machinery & Equipment.   

 R47 000 was moved to Payment for financial assets. 

Various post virements and shifts were made between economic classification items within the various 

programmes and sub-programmes.  

All Virements were approved by the Accounting Officer of the department in terms of Section 43(1) of 

the Public Finance Management Act and Public Finance.   

2019/20 Rollovers 

The department has requested a roll-over of R10 million for Goods and Services budget in respect of 

Irregular Expenditure Project with the aim of reducing Irregular expenditure in the province.   

Fruitless, Wasteful or Irregular Expenditure 

Table 6.2:   Summary by economic classification

Other
R thousand adjustments
Current payments 706,789                                (1,298)                                   -                                            -                                            (1,298)                                   705,491                                

Compensation of employees 347,820                                (3,427)                                   -                                            -                                            (3,427)                                   344,393                                
Goods and services 358,969                                2,129                                    -                                            -                                            2,129                                    361,098                                

Interest and rent on land -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            

Transfers and subsidies to: 5,572                                    581                                       -                                            -                                            581                                       6,153                                    
Provinces and municipalities 26                                         14                                         -                                            -                                            14                                         40                                         
Departmental agencies and accounts 3                                           -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            3                                           
Public corporations and private enterprises -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            
Non-profit institutions 537                                       (37)                                        -                                            -                                            (37)                                        500                                       
Households 5,006                                    604                                       -                                            -                                            604                                       5,610                                    

Payments for capital assets 15,293                                  670                                       -                                            -                                            670                                       15,963                                  

Buildings and other fixed structures -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            
Machinery and equipment 13,933                                  670                                       -                                            -                                            670                                       14,603                                  

Software and other intangible assets 1,360                                    -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            1,360                                    

Payments for financial assets -                                            47                                         -                                            -                                            47                                         47                                         
Total 727,654                                -                                            -                                            -                                            -                                            727,654                                
Amount to  be voted -                                            

Adjusted Appropriation
POST ADJUSTMENTS APPROPRIATION

Total adjustments 
appropriation

Post Adjusted 
appropriationVirement Shifts
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The value of irregular transactions condoned for 2019/20 financial year was R662 000 .   

Future plans of the department 

The department will continue to implement its strategic plan targets as contained in the revised 2020/21 

Annual Performance Plan document. 

Public Private Partnerships 

The department had no PPP project in the 2019/20 financial year and there is none planned currently.   

Discontinued activities / activities to be discontinued 

The Forensic unit under Programme 4 will be transferred to the Office of the Premier effective 1 August 

2020. 

New or proposed activities 

None.   

Supply chain management 

TENDER NO DESCRIPTION STATUS 

ZNT1191/2014-F Crack team 

Panel appointed for duration of 3 years. 

Extended until 29/02/2020, contract 

expired  

ZNT1193/2014-F Panel of internal audit 

Panel appointed for duration of 3 years. 

Extended until 31/08/2019, contract 

expired  

ZNT 1206/2016-F Cleaning services 
Contract appointed for duration of 3 

years 

ZNT 1207/2016-F 
Panel of Contract management and 

SCM Experts 
Panel appointed for duration of 3 years. 
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ZNT 1210/2016-F Security services 
Contract appointed for duration of 3 

years 

ZNT  1215/2017 Panel of municipal finance Panel appointed for duration of 3 years. 

ZNT 1216/2017-F Panel of financial management Panel appointed for duration of 3 years. 

ZNT 1217/2017-F Panel of internal audit Panel appointed for duration of 3 years 

ZNT 1218/2018-F Banking services  
Contract appointed for duration of 3 

years 

ZNT 1219/2018-F Panel of Crack team 
Contract appointed for duration of 3 

years 

ZNT 1222/2019-F Cleaning services Awaiting finalisation 

ZNT 1223/2019-F Electronic Security System Awaiting finalisation 

ZNT 1224/2019-F Security services Awaiting finalisation 

ZNT 1225/2019-F 
Panel of Contract management and 

SCM Experts 
Awaiting finalisation 

 

Prevention of Irregular expenditure and SCM challenges 

The department incurred irregular expenditure relating to the legal fees (proper SCM process not 

followed in the appointment of the Service Provider) 

Gifts and Donations from non-related parties 

The department was offered the Budget Breakfast in Durban by ABSA.  

The department received an amount of R100 000 from Standard Bank towards Year-end Service 

Excellent.  
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Donations made in Kind (R’000) 

 

Donor Funding 

The department had no new Donor funding during the 2019/20 financial year.  

Global Funding  

Provincial Treasury was responsible for project managing the Global Fund programme whose main 

objective is to address the social and structural drivers of HIV and TB prevention, care and impact, 
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preventing new HIV, STI and TB infections, sustaining health and wellness, as well as ensuring 

protection of human rights and improving access to justice. The project was allocated an amount of 

R420 million over a period of three years and at the end of the project, a total amount of R335, 261, 

890.00 was spent on the project. This project has since came to an end at 31 December 2019. The 

balance of the unspent funds will be surrendered.  

Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury  

There were no exemptions received by the department during 2019/20 financial year. 

Events after the reporting date 

The province experienced the world’s outbreak of the Corona Virus before the close of the 2019/20 

financial year. The department is currently using the allocated budget to fund any related expenditure, 

and reprioritisation will be necessary to cover for this unplanned expenditure.  

The departmental appropriation for 2020/21 financial year was revised to cater for the proposed budget 

cuts of R114, 354 million that were imposed to the department to fund COVID19 pandemic. This will 

have a huge impact in the structure of the department as some posts have also been frozen to 

accommodate this proposed cut.  

The Forensic unit will be transferred to Office of the Premier (OTP) as from 01 August 2020. The initial 

budget of the unit was R38, 733 million however it was subsequently decreased by R10, 239 million to 

cater for the budget cut.  The remaining budget as at 31 July 2020 that will be transfer to OTP is R19, 

996 million. 

Acknowledgement/s or Appreciation 

I would like to express my special thanks to the MEC for Finance for his support, Treasury Management 

and Staff for their hard work during the year. 

Conclusion 

This report presents the annual financial statements and performance information report for the financial 

year 2019/20. 

 
Mr S. Moodley 
Accounting Officer 
31 July 2020 
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890.00 was spent on the project. This project has since came to an end at 31 December 2019. The 

balance of the unspent funds will be surrendered.  

Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury  

There were no exemptions received by the department during 2019/20 financial year. 

Events after the reporting date 

The province experienced the world’s outbreak of the Corona Virus before the close of the 2019/20 

financial year. The department is currently using the allocated budget to fund any related expenditure, 

and reprioritisation will be necessary to cover for this unplanned expenditure.  

The departmental appropriation for 2020/21 financial year was revised to cater for the proposed budget 

cuts of R114, 354 million that were imposed to the department to fund COVID19 pandemic. This will 

have a huge impact in the structure of the department as some posts have also been frozen to 

accommodate this proposed cut.  

The Forensic unit will be transferred to Office of the Premier (OTP) as from 01 August 2020. The initial 

budget of the unit was R38, 733 million however it was subsequently decreased by R10, 239 million to 

cater for the budget cut.  The remaining budget as at 31 July 2020 that will be transfer to OTP is R19, 

996 million. 
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Conclusion 

This report presents the annual financial statements and performance information report for the financial 

year 2019/20. 

 
Mr S. Moodley 
Accounting Officer 
31 July 2020 
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A.6 Statement of Responsibility and Confirmation of Accuracy for the Annual Report 
 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:  

All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent. 

 

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions. 

 

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued 

by National Treasury. 

 

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the modified cash 

standard and the relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury. 

 

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the 

judgements made in this information. 

  

The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control 

that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the 

performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial statements. 

 

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 

statements. 

 

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human 

resources information and the financial affairs of the Department for the financial year ended 31 March 

2020. 

 

Yours faithfully  

 

Mr S. Moodley 
Accounting Officer 
31 July 2020 
 

2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT FOR KZN PROVINCIAL TREASURY: VOTE 6 

- 25 -

 

A.6 Statement of Responsibility and Confirmation of Accuracy for the Annual Report 
 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:  

All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent. 

 

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions. 

 

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued 

by National Treasury. 

 

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the modified cash 

standard and the relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury. 

 

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the 

judgements made in this information. 

  

The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control 

that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the 

performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial statements. 

 

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 

statements. 

 

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human 

resources information and the financial affairs of the Department for the financial year ended 31 March 

2020. 

 

Yours faithfully  

 

Mr S. Moodley 
Accounting Officer 
31 July 2020 
 

2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT FOR KZN PROVINCIAL TREASURY: VOTE 6 

- 25 -

2
0
0
3
1
1
9
0
 K

Z
N

 T
re

a
s
u
ry

.o
ld

.j
o
b
 1

0
/1

4
/2

0
2
0
 0

8
:3

9
:0

0
 2

6
 A

 Y
e
llo

w
M

a
g
e
n
ta

C
y
a
n

B
la

c
k



 
A.7 Strategic Overview  

6.1 Vision 

Be the centre of excellence in financial and fiscal management in the country. 
 

6.2 Mission 

We, the KZN Provincial Treasury, seek to enhance the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial 
Government service delivery by responding to the expectations of all stakeholders in the 
value chain as a key driver through:- 

 Optimum and transparent allocation of financial resources whilst enhancing revenue 

generation and financial management practices in compliance with applicable legislation and 

corporate governance principles; 

 Our competent and dedicated employees who are at centre of ensuring best value of our 

stakeholders. 

 
6.3 Values 

The core values of the Department are as follows: 

 Responsibility  

  Efficiency  

  Service Excellence 

  Financial Discipline 

  Professionalism 

  Integrity  

  Respect 

  Loyalty 

 
A.8 Legislative and Other Mandates 
 

The Department is governed by the following pieces of legislation and policy directives: 

 The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996) 

 Public Finance Management Act (Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended).  
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 Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003) 

 Promotion of Access to Information Act (Act No. 2 of 2000) 

 Annual Division of Revenue Act  

 Annual Provincial Appropriation Acts  

 Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (Act No. 5 of 2000) 

 Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act (Act No. 53 of 2003) 

 Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act (Act No. 13 of 2005) 

 Borrowing Powers of Provincial Governments Act (Act No. 48 of 1996) 

 Government Immovable Asset Management Act  (Act No. 19 of 2007) 

 Construction Industry Development Board Act (Act No. 38 of 2000) 

 Public Audit Act (Act No. 25 of 2004) 

 Provincial Tax Regulation Process Act  (Act No. 53 of 2001) 

 

7.1  Constitutional Mandates 

Sections 213, 215, 216, 217, 218, 219, 226, and 228 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa 

(Act 208 of 1996) deal with general financial matters for the national and provincial spheres of 

government. These sections require the national legislation to give effect to the following; 

i. To establish a national treasury,  

ii. To introduce generally recognised accounting practices,  

iii. To introduce uniform treasury norms and standards,  

iv. To prescribe measures to ensure transparency and expenditure control in all spheres of 

government, and  

v. To set the operational procedures for borrowing, guarantees, procurement and oversight over 

the various national and provincial revenue funds.  

7.2  Legislative Mandates 

The following pieces of legislation that give mandate and outline the key responsibilities on the 

Department are as follows: 

7.2.1 Public Finance Management Act (Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended) and its regulations  
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The Act promotes the objective of good financial management in order to maximise delivery through the 

efficient and effective use of limited resources.  

The key objectives of the Act may be summarised as being to: 

a) Modernise the system of financial management; 

b) Enable public sector managers to manage, but at the same time be more accountable; 

c) Ensure the timely provision of quality information; and 

d) Eliminate waste and corruption in the use of public assets. 

 
7.2.2 Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003) 

Chapter 2 of MFMA outlines the general functions of National and Provincial Treasuries.  

Section 5(3) and (4) of the MFMA highlight the supervisory responsibilities of Provincial Treasuries in 

relation to ensuring sound and sustainable management of the fiscal and financial affairs of 

municipalities and municipal entities by establishing norms and standards and other requirements.  

To the extent necessary, to comply with its responsibilities in terms of the MFMA, a provincial treasury: 

a) must monitor: 

i. compliance with the MFMA by municipalities and municipal entities in the province; 

ii. the preparation by municipalities in the province of their budgets; 

iii. the monthly outcome of those budgets; and  

iv. submission of reports by municipalities in the province as required in terms of the MFMA; 

b) may assist municipalities in the province in the preparation of their budgets; 

c) may exercise any powers and perform any duties delegated to it by the National Treasury in 
terms of the MFMA; and 

d) may take appropriate steps if a municipality or municipal entity in the province commits a breach 
of the MFMA. 

 
7.2.3 Promotion of Access to Information Act (Act No. 2 of 2000) 

Section 14 requires the Department to produce a manual with detailed information about the 

Department’s procedure to access it, the form to be used and which information is readily available and 

which needs to be requested. Section 32 of the Act stipulates that the Department must submit an 

annual report to the Minister of Justice detailing requests received, those acceded or rejected and 

reasons for rejection. 

7.2.4 Annual Division of Revenue Act  
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a) This Act provides for the equitable division of revenue anticipated to be raised nationally among 

the national, provincial and local spheres of government.  

b) It promotes better co-ordination between policy, planning, budget preparation and execution 

processes between and within the different spheres of government. 

c) It promotes predictability and certainty in respect of all allocations to provinces and municipalities 

in order that such governments may plan their budgets over a multi-year period. 

d) It promotes transparency and equity in the resource allocation process.  

e) It promotes accountability by ensuring that all allocations are reflected on the budgets of 

receiving provinces and municipalities. 

7.2.5 Annual Provincial Appropriation Acts  

These Acts provide for the appropriation of money from the Provincial Revenue Fund for the 

requirements of the Province. 

7.2.6 Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (Act No. 5 of 2000) 

This act gives effect to Section 217 (3) of the Constitution by providing a framework for the 

implementation of procurement policy.  

The framework for the implementation of preferential procurement policy requires all organs of state to 

have their preferential procurement policy and implement them within a prescribed set of criteria that 

applies preference points system with emphasis to previously disadvantaged groups. 

7.2.7 Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act (Act No. 53 of 2003) 

The object of this Act is to promote the achievement of the constitutional right to equality, increase 

broad-based and effective participation of black people in the economy and promote a higher growth 

rate increased employment and more equitable income distribution; and 

Establish a national policy on broad-based black economic empowerment so as to promote the 

economic unity of the nation, protect the common market, and promote equal opportunity and equal 

access to government services. 

7.2.8 Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act (Act No. 13 of 2005) 

The object of this act is to provide within the principle of co-operative government set out in Chapter 3 of 

the Constitution a framework for the national government, provincial governments and local 

governments, to facilitate co-ordination in the implementation of policy and legislation, including: 

2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT FOR KZN PROVINCIAL TREASURY: VOTE 6 

- 29 -

a) This Act provides for the equitable division of revenue anticipated to be raised nationally among 

the national, provincial and local spheres of government.  

b) It promotes better co-ordination between policy, planning, budget preparation and execution 

processes between and within the different spheres of government. 

c) It promotes predictability and certainty in respect of all allocations to provinces and municipalities 

in order that such governments may plan their budgets over a multi-year period. 

d) It promotes transparency and equity in the resource allocation process.  

e) It promotes accountability by ensuring that all allocations are reflected on the budgets of 

receiving provinces and municipalities. 

7.2.5 Annual Provincial Appropriation Acts  

These Acts provide for the appropriation of money from the Provincial Revenue Fund for the 

requirements of the Province. 

7.2.6 Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (Act No. 5 of 2000) 

This act gives effect to Section 217 (3) of the Constitution by providing a framework for the 

implementation of procurement policy.  

The framework for the implementation of preferential procurement policy requires all organs of state to 

have their preferential procurement policy and implement them within a prescribed set of criteria that 

applies preference points system with emphasis to previously disadvantaged groups. 

7.2.7 Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act (Act No. 53 of 2003) 

The object of this Act is to promote the achievement of the constitutional right to equality, increase 

broad-based and effective participation of black people in the economy and promote a higher growth 

rate increased employment and more equitable income distribution; and 

Establish a national policy on broad-based black economic empowerment so as to promote the 

economic unity of the nation, protect the common market, and promote equal opportunity and equal 

access to government services. 

7.2.8 Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act (Act No. 13 of 2005) 

The object of this act is to provide within the principle of co-operative government set out in Chapter 3 of 

the Constitution a framework for the national government, provincial governments and local 

governments, to facilitate co-ordination in the implementation of policy and legislation, including: 

2
0
0
3
1
1
9
0
 K

Z
N

 T
re

a
s
u
ry

.o
ld

.j
o
b
 1

0
/1

4
/2

0
2
0
 0

8
:3

9
:0

0
 3

0
 A

 C
y
a
n

B
la

c
k

Y
e
llo

w
M

a
g
e
n
ta



2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT FOR KZN PROVINCIAL TREASURY: VOTE 6 

- 30 -

(a) Coherent government; 

(b) Effective provision of services; 

(c) Monitoring implementation of policy and legislation; and  

(d) Realisation of national priorities. 

7.2.9 Provincial Borrowing Powers Act (Act No. 48 of 1996) 

This Act provides for norms and conditions in respect of the borrowing powers of Provincial 

governments and for matters incidental thereto. 

7.2.10 Government Immovable Asset Management Act (Act No. 19 of 2007) 

The Department has a responsibility to implement all applicable sections of this Act in managing its 

immovable assets or when providing support and advisory services to the provincial Departments. 

7.2.11 Construction Industry Development Board Act (Act No. 38 of 2000) 

The objective of this Act is to provide for the establishment of the Construction Industry Development 

Board; to implement an integrated strategy for the reconstruction, growth and development of the 

construction industry and to provide for matters connected therewith. 

7.2.12 Public Audit Act (Act No. 25 of 2004) 

The Department has a responsibility to comply with all applicable provisions of the Public Audit Act as 

an auditee. 

7.2.13  Provincial Tax Regulation Process Act (Act No. 53 of 2001) 

This Act provides the regulation of intergovernmental process that must be followed by provinces in the 

exercise of their power in terms of section 228 of the Constitution to impose taxes, levies and duties, the 

flat-rate surcharges on the tax basis of any tax, levy or duty imposed by national legislation; and to 

provide for connected therewith. 

7.3  Policy Mandates 

The following policies outline the key responsibilities for the Department: 

(a) PPP policy, this policy provides guidelines for administration and managing Public Private 

Partnership’s transactions in the public sector environment. 
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(b) SCM and PPPFA policy, this policy provides guidelines for the administration of a Supply 

Chain Management in line with broad government objectives. It also aims at promoting 

emerging enterprises with particular emphasis on black economic empowerment. 

(c) Budgeting process policies, they provide framework within which budgeting process must be 

managed in the public sector in line with the relevant Acts. 

(d) Treasury Regulations, provides procedural guidelines of implementation of the Public Finance 

ManagementAct (Act 1 of 1999 as amended by Act 29 of 1999).  
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A.9 Organisational Structure   
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A.10  ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MINISTER/MEC 

 N/A 
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1. AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES 
 

Refer to page 209 of the Report of the Auditor General, published as Part E: Financial Information. 
2. OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE 

2. OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE 

2.1 Service Delivery Environment 
 

Office of the MEC (Community Outreach and Social Responsibility)  
The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa mandates Provincial Treasuries to coordinate dialogue 
between government and the public on service delivery issues. Provincial Treasury provides information 
and interacts with communities and other stakeholders to ensure a two-way process of sharing ideas. 
 
The nature of Provincial Treasury as a department, not directly involved in service delivery, requires a 
unique approach to its community outreach programme. As mass gatherings are usually not 
appropriate, the department identifies and assists non-governmental organisations and/or non-profit-
making institutions that operate within communities to develop and improve the quality of lives of 
people. 
 
The Provincial Treasury’s objective is to make an impact and provide tangible assistance to address 
specific needs.  
 
In line with this, the Office of the MEC for Finance has led multiple community outreach programmes 
both in urban and rural areas across the province of KwaZulu-Natal with the objective of empowering 
communities to fight poverty and underdevelopment.   
 
By engaging in these meaningful programmes, KZN Provincial Treasury has made a significant 
contribution in helping to transform a number of lives. This has also further opened an opportunity for an 
effective two-way communication and engagement which is mostly required by the constitution in order 
to solve problems effectively. 
 
Since taking over the reins at KZN Treasury, MEC kicked off with an outreach event in Dukuduku area, 
near Mtubatuba where he donated sewing and overlocker machines to Janitor Co-operative. The 
objective was to help beef up resources of this young women enterprise. This is a youth Co-operative 
that specialises in sewing various type of clothing, furniture making and repairs as well as upholstery. 
KZN Treasury further supported this Co-operative with upholstery raw materials in order to help them 
grow and create more jobs for the other youth in the area.  
 
During this three-legged outreach, local elderly women received blankets and walking sticks while one 
impoverished family of 6 members that survives through the 66 year-old’s pension received a donation 
of grocery.  
 
Similar outreach campaigns were undertaken in areas that include Ezinqoleni under Ray Nkonyeni 
Municipality in the south coast, eShowe area in ILembe District, Bhongweni area in Kokstad as well as 
Phoenix where various women-owned Co-operatives received donations that include different types of 
sewing machines and sewing material and were also empowered with advice on running and growing 
their Co-operatives.   
Further, various categories of communities have been touched and this includes MEC’s donation of 20 
mattresses, 50 blankets, a refrigerator, urn, microwave as well as colouring books and pencils to 50 
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children in Mbulula crèche which is one of the impoverished Non-Profit Organisations in KwaDumisa 
area under uMdoni Municipality as part of Mandela Day in July 2019. 
 
The MEC further undertook visits to Angels’ Care Crisis Centre and Khazimula Orphanage Centres in 
ward 2 and 4 under UMngeni Municipality in July 2020, where he made donations of blankets, grocery, 
sanitizers, masks and warm sleep wear. These Non-Profit Organisations assist children who are 
abused, orphaned and victims of gender-based violence.  
 
This was driven by the belief that the various Non-Profit Organisations assist government in its task to 
alleviate poverty and because of this, it is critical that government supports the work they do in 
communities.  
 
In an attempt to assist learners who come from various poor families, the MEC has made numerous 
donations of full school uniform to five different schools that have benefitted hundreds of learners.  
 
These schools include Dududu Primary and Phindavele High schools under uMdoni Municipality in the 
south coast as well as Baniyena, Thimoni Primary Schools and Ntsongeni Secondary School in Mid-
Illovo area under uMkhambathini Municipality respectively. 
 
In recognition of Womens’ and Mens’ Months (July and August), the MEC held an engagement session 
with all Treasury staff which was attended by external experts on health, beauty, gender-based violence 
and lifestyle disciplines. This was an attempt to encourage staff to help fight the high incidents of gender 
based violence and abuse of women and children in society. 
 
The MEC, as Political Champion of uMgungundlovu District, has led various other transversal 
community activities with the support of the Department of Agriculture and Rural Development. These 
include the launch of the Planting Season in Swayimane area under uMshwathi Municipality, Launch of 
Covid-19 One Home One Garden Programme in Dambuza location under uMsunduzi Municipality as 
well as the Launch of Msunduzi Service Delivery War Room whose main purpose is to help improve the 
functionality of the municipality in various areas. The objective of these engagements is to give a sharp 
focus to community empowerment and targeted service delivery.    
 
By the same token, the business community has equally been an important sector for KZN Treasury 
given our strategic mandate in terms of Public Finance Management Act. Ministry has led business 
engagements in the form of Budget Breakfasts attended by the business community in Durban mostly. 
The objective has always been to involve and engage with business-minded people on the 
configuration and focus of the provincial budget. This is the platform where the department gets to have 
a robust two-way communication on the “good and the bad” in respect of the management of public 
finances.  
 
Of particular importance for Ministry and government in general is for government to know what role the 
business fraternity should and need to play in the development of the socio-economic landscape of 
KwaZulu-Natal.   
 
The Department further secured a partnership with the Provincial Banker, Absa Bank, for the allocation 
of R70 million to complement the Provincial Youth Business Fund as well as setting aside a fund of 
R500 million to help SMMEs and Co-operatives doing business with the provincial government. This is 
the contribution to the realisation of one of the seven priorities of government: “Economic 
Transformation and job creation”. 
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Another example of private public partnership is the association of KZN Treasury with the South African 
Institute for Chartered Accountants (SAICA) that has seen KZN Treasury accorded the status of being 
the Training Office for Chartered Accountants in KwaZulu-Natal in December 2015. This is particularly 
significant in that it allows government to literally “grow its own tree” in creating and enlarging the pool 
of skills in the area of financial management for the public sector.   
 
In January 2020, this department welcomed a further three trainee Chartered Accountants, making a 
total of fourteen in the programme, nine of whom are currently undergoing training towards becoming 
Chartered Accountants (CA), and five who have been successfully signed off as Public Service trained 
Chartered Accountants and who are currently within an internal two year Management Development 
Programme. This programme is responding to the call from the President to increase the capacity of the 
state and to expand the pool of financial skills in the country. Through this initiative, Treasury will also 
strengthen the capacity of Departments and Municipalities to manage their finances prudently. These 
Chartered Accountants will be utilised as skilled resources within the Audit Improvement Strategy of the 
province.  
 
Furthermore, Provincial Treasury has made financial investments through the Thuthuka Bursary Fund 
for previously disadvantaged students in financial management who want to pursue Chartered 
Accountancy. There are a total of 86 students who have been funded by the Department. All of these 
students come from various district municipalities in KwaZulu-Natal and are expected to serve the 
province upon completion of their studies. They feed into the training programme mentioned above, and 
to other government programmes, for example, in the eThekwini Municipality and the office of the 
Auditor-General. 
 
Conversely, the outbreak of coronavirus has disrupted the work of government. One of our main tasks 
as the Provincial Treasury, during this time of the Covid-19 crisis, is capacitating Supply Chain 
Management on the new Covid-19 emergency procurement regulations. We are acutely aware of the 
risks that are already manifesting themselves. We will undertake the training of Supply Chain 
Management to ensure that departments can procure commodities on an emergency basis in line with 
the emergency procurement regulations without compromising on quality, specifications and value for 
money. It must be stressed that Provincial Treasury cannot do the procurement itself. Departments 
remain responsible and Accounting Officers remain accountable. 
 
The Provincial Treasury is currently monitoring expenditure related toCovid-19 by Municipalities, Public 
Entities and Departments. Risks such as the possible purchase  
of items not related to Covid-19 while using the emergency procurement regulations  
and instruction notes have been identified. 
 
It is events, engagements and interventions like these that have consistently ensured that Ministry is 
visible and demonstrates its resolve to better the lives of communities across all racial, political, creed 
and gender lines.  
 

Guided by the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and the Municipal Finance Management Act 

(MFMA), Provincial Treasury will continue to strive to be the “Guardian of the Public Purse.” 

Management Services (Office of the HOD) 

This sub-programme provides support to the Executive Authority in providing strategic and political 

direction to provincial department, municipalities and public entities. 
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Achievements of the Office of the Head of Department are: 

(a) The Office of the Head of Department continues to ensure that the department fulfils its mandate 

in terms of the PFMA & MFMA. This includes facilitating the tabling of the MTEF and Budget 

Adjustment process to Cabinet.  

(b) The HOD continues without fail to emphasise the need to save by continuing with the 

implementation of the cost cutting measures together with careful budget and cash 

management. 

(c) The Head of department also continues to be very instrumental in the implementation of key 

projects that have an impact on financial management and social governance in KZN, such as 

the Provincial Recovery Plan, Contract Management. 

(d) The Head of department continued to provide strategic leadership in policy development through 

his co-chairmanship of the Economic Sector and Infrastructure Development Cluster (ESID) and 

his participation in various policy discussion on financial management and economic 

development. 

(e) The office of the HOD remained very instrumental in driving certain programmes which have 

received a good success over the 2019/20 financial year:  

 Operation Sukuma Sakhe 

 The Municipal Finance Management Internship Program (MFMIP) 

 Minimum Competency Regulation 

 Drought Relief Project  

 School Adoption Project 

OPERATION SUKUMA SAKHE 

Operation Sukuma Sakhe (OSS) aims to rebuild the fabric of society by  

 Promoting human values,  

 Fighting crime, diseases, deprivation and social ills,  
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 Ensuring moral regeneration and  

 Unblock service delivery through effective intergovernmental partnerships. 

As HOD Champion in Ethekwini Operation Sukuma Sakhe, the office of the head of department/IGR 

participated in various outreach programmes for the youth in schools, supported all 110 war rooms’ 

programmes in eThekwini Metro and programmes that sought to mitigate the water scarcity issues 

throughout the Province by donating and installing jojo tanks. Over the 2019/20 financial year, the 

following were Treasury’s deliverables in Ethekwini and other districts: 

 Windy Heights Primary School (eThekwini) -  Supply of 10 x Desktop computers for learners 

with bags and lock chains            

 Mbazwane Primary School (Zululand) - Supply of 4 x self-filing water tanks powered by 

engine support  

 Esiphakama Crèche (EDumbe) – Supply & Installation of the Jojo septic tank 

 Ombimbi Primary School (Nongoma) - Supply of computer for the principals’ office 
 Emkhombe High School (Nongoma) - Supply 10 x Desktop computers for learners with bags 

and lock chains            

The Municipal Finance Management Internship Program (MFMIP) 

The MFMIP seeks to assist municipalities to develop the knowledge and skills of the interns employed 

under this program in areas such as strategic planning and management, municipal budgeting and 

finance management. It is an organized professional training and work experience program with the 

goal of providing high quality training and practical exposure in all aspects of municipal finance 

management.  

In 2017/18, Treasury coordinated Municipal Interns MFMA Induction Programme for all municipalities 

where both Treasury and COGTA made presentations that gave a broad overview and understanding of 

the public sector ethos and ethics, including the municipal service delivery mandate, as well as the 

municipal finance environment and MFMA reforms. Unfortunately, only 50% of the municipalities in the 

province participated hence the coordination of the 2019/20 once off workshop to accommodate those 

who missed out the previous financial year for various reasons. 

The attendance for the 2 day workshop was as follows: 

Metro:  15    
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Mthonjaneni:  4 

Umngeni:  4 

KCM:   4 

Impendle:   3 

Umzinyathi:     1     

Minimum Competency Regulations 

Sections 83, 107 and 119 of the MFMA requires that the Accounting Officer, senior managers, the Chief 

Financial Officer and other finance and SCM officials of municipalities and municipal entities meet the 

prescribed financial management competency levels. The Municipal Regulations on Minimum 

Competency Levels were promulgated in 2007 to give effect to the aforementioned sections of the 

MFMA.  

Tables 6.19 to 21 show the compliance with the Municipal Regulations on Minimum Competency Levels 

as at 10 September 2018 in KZN, South Africa as a whole and per province as per National Treasury. 

Table 6.19: Compliance with Municipal Regulations on Minimum Competency Levels in 54 KZN 
Municipalities as per National Treasury - 10 September 2018 

 

Source: National Treasury  

Lastly, the South African public sector is transforming at a rapid rate and this increases the exposure to 

elements of risks and opportunities that may impair or promote the achievement its objectives. 

Position Total municipalities Total officials 
appointed

Appointed officials 
who meet minimum 
competency 
requirements

Percentage Appointed 
officials who meet 
minimum competency 
requirements
%

Accounting Officers 54 38 20 52.6

Chief Financial Officers 54 43 14 32.6

Senior Manager 54 116 32 27.6

Head of Supply  Chain Management unit 54 11 3 27.3

Supply  Chain Management Manager 54 32 16 50.0

Middle Manager 54 401 165 41.1

Other Official 54 778 323 41.5

Total 54 1419 573 40.4
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elements of risks and opportunities that may impair or promote the achievement its objectives. 

Position Total municipalities Total officials 
appointed

Appointed officials 
who meet minimum 
competency 
requirements

Percentage Appointed 
officials who meet 
minimum competency 
requirements
%

Accounting Officers 54 38 20 52.6

Chief Financial Officers 54 43 14 32.6

Senior Manager 54 116 32 27.6

Head of Supply  Chain Management unit 54 11 3 27.3

Supply  Chain Management Manager 54 32 16 50.0

Middle Manager 54 401 165 41.1

Other Official 54 778 323 41.5

Total 54 1419 573 40.4
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Risk management in the public sector presents some significant differences from its private sector 

counterpart. In the private sector, it is generally true that the higher the risk, the higher the reward – 

usually in the form of profits. However, in the public sector this trade-off doesn’t necessarily 

apply. Integrated risk management requires an ongoing assessment of potential risks for an 

organisation at every level, and then aggregating the results at the corporate level to facilitate priority 

setting and improved decision-making. 

The department has integrated risk management into existing decision-making strategies through 

report-back by risk owners on progress of actions plans at various management meetings. The 

departments risk committee continues to be proactive and acts as an oversight committee that 

facilitates the management of risk facing KZN Provincial Treasury on a central basis in accordance with 

the requirements of the PFMA, and the relevant National Treasury Regulations. In addition, the risk 

committee continues to assist the Accounting Officer in discharging his accountability for risk 

management by reviewing the effectiveness of the department’s risk management system, practices 

and procedures and proving recommendations for improvement. 

Financial Management (Office of the CFO)  

The objectives of this unit are to render financial and supply chain management functions to Provincial 

Treasury. 

Some achievements of the Office of the CFO include the following: 

 The department continued to maintain an error free asset register and there were no audit findings 

raised in this area of work.  

 The Treasury internal control unit has been responsible for the reviewing of invoices submitted for 

payment by services providers, the unit has been able to prevent, detect and correct any internal 

control deficiencies. 

 Averages of 99% of all invoices received were settled within prescribed 30 days’ period as per 

treasury regulations. 

 The office of the CFO office has facilitated the departmental audit and received 11th consecutive 

clean audit for the 2019/20 financial year and the target is to maintain the status quo through 

continuous improvement. All audit issues raised during the previous audit were resolved timeously.  

 The payments and revenue units have achieved their legislative mandates, there were no material 

findings raised by the Auditor General during the year 2019/20. The unit has continued to implement 

optimal financial management processes.  

 The budget of the department was managed successfully and there was no over spending.  
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 Various strategies to bring down the vacancy rate were explored hence various vacant funded posts 

were filled within the Office of the Chief Financial Officer. There are five (5) vacant posts that will not 

be filled in the 2020/21 financial year due to the budget cuts that were initiated by National Treasury 

to fund the COVID-19 expenditure. 

 The Office of the Chief Financial Officer has continued to attract, motivate and retain competent 

personnel through developing skills and empowering our employees. We also help them perform at 

consistently high level by encouraging their professional and personal development. 

Corporate Services 

This sub-programme contains various support services to ensure that the service delivery units of 

Provincial Treasury are adequately supported by an effective Legal Services, and Auxiliary Services 

support. Furthermore, the Human Resource Management unit within Provincial Treasury provides 

strategic human resources management and development support services to the Department and 

ensures compliance with relevant national and provincial legislative mandates.  

Human Resource Management 

 During 2019/20, the Human Resource Management Directorate fulfilled all of its legislative 

mandates and delivered an efficient and professional Human Resources function to the Department. 

The unit has successfully implemented all planned Human Resource Planning and WSP strategies 

for the year, thereby ensuring a well capacitated and healthy workforce that is appropriately skilled 

and empowered.  

 The unit has exceeded its requirements in terms of empowering the organisation as a whole on all 

Human Resource related knowledge and information in terms of the number of policies that were 

developed and work-shopped. The organisation as a whole is 100 per cent compliant to all 

requirements of the performance management and development system, which is efficiently and 

professionally implemented and monitored by the Human Resources Directorate. 

 The Employee Health and Wellness Section within HRM continues to make a visible impact on the 

lives of employees by increasing the number of Wellness Clinics per month within the Department, 

with noticeable improvements in the number of voluntary on-site testing. Monthly articles instilling 

responsible life style disease management as well as encouraging physical fitness and awareness 

are distributed throughout the organization and have been extremely well received. The Work and 

Play policy is actively implemented, with the introduction during this period of an Outdoor Wellness 

Sanctuary for outdoor activities, relaxation, outdoor meetings and gatherings, and a dedicated 
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space for planting, flowers, trees and vegetables. This facility is also used for Aerobics during Office 

hours, as approved by the Head of Department. 

 There has been a significant reduction in the number of grievances and misconduct cases within the 

Department which is largely attributed to the monthly articles that stem from the Labour Desk of the 

Directorate as well as engagements at Line Directorate meetings to empower both staff and 

management on the managing of sound employer/employee relations. Leadership impact surveys 

and overall employee satisfaction surveys have also contributed positively in this area. 

 The Unit continues with strategies to implement the Head of Department’s commitment to improving 

EE targets of women in management and people with disabilities. A strong focus is on Youth 

development Programs and the development and improvement of existing skills and qualifications 

through vigorous skills and empowerment programs. Integrated efforts of the sections within HRM 

during the year has ensured a strong drive for policy compliance, eradication of fraud and 

corruption, responsible sick leave management, well aligned departmental structures, adequately 

skilled employees and a healthy and well informed workforce.  

 Provincial Treasury’s partnership with SAICA on the Thuthuka Bursary Fund, where Treasury is 

currently sponsoring previously disadvantaged students studying towards becoming Chartered 

Accountants is in its 8th year since inception. The partnership has further resulted in the Department 

receiving SAICA accreditation as a Training Office during December 2015, and the Department has 

received its 5thallocation of three Trainee Accountants as at January 2020 making it a total of nine 

(9) trainees who are currently undergoing training towards becoming chartered accountants. The 

program has since inception, yielded a total of five (5) Public Service trained Chartered 

Accountants, who are all now employed on a further three-year management development program 

within the Department. 

 Provincial Treasury’s proposed Organizational Structure, aligned to the generic structure of 

Treasuries developed by DPSA, was concurred by the Minister of Public Service and Administration 

for approval and implementation at the end of the financial year.  

Information Technology Management 

 During 2019/209, the unit maintained high levels of good governance in ICT. The General Controls 

Review audits by the Auditor General and the Internal Audit unit resulted in no audit findings. This 

means from an ICT governance perspective that IT was able to provide business value to the 

department and assist it in achieving its strategic objectives. 

 In order to improve service resilience a distributed electronic mail system was implemented to 

ensure that the email system remained available in the event of any server failure. 
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 The journey to the Cloud continued with the registration of a tenet for Treasury. This has enabled us 

to roll-out collaborative platforms like Microsoft Teams and document sharing with OneDrive. 

 The Disaster Recovery site in Durban was made fully functional. Data is backed up and replicated 

on a daily basis. 

 

Programme 2: Sustainable Resource Management 

Economic Analysis and Infrastructure 

This sub-programme will continue to support and enhance infrastructure and economic development in 

the province by: 

Developing strategic policies and frameworks;  

Ensuring the implementation of policies and frameworks; 

Managing the implementation through monitoring and evaluation; and 

Providing continuous support to the relevant stakeholders 

 The mandate of the sub-programme is fivefold, namely.  

To provide and oversee the provisioning of infrastructure management and economic services in 

the province in terms of legislative mandates. 

To determine and evaluate economic parameters and socio-economic imperatives that inform the 

provincial and local resource allocation and to provide a platform to enhance regional economic 

growth and development through quality research. 

To monitor infrastructure planning and delivery performance in the province. 

To co-ordinate and facilitate the implementation and institutionalisation of the Infrastructure Delivery 

Management System (IDMS) regulations and methodologies. 

To support the funding and implementation of strategic infrastructure projects in the province 

 

 Economic Services 

The economic analysis unit continued with its mandate of providing an informed, and well-

researched fiscal framework for the allocation of resources within the provincial government 

departments.  

The economic analysis unit has several publications which are accessible on the departmental 

website for both internal and external stakeholders who wish to do business in the province. The 

Unit continued to contribute to several speeches for the MEC. Participation in the assessment of the 
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Integrated Development Plans (IDPs) and Local Economic Development (LED) forums in the 

municipalities was conducted. Support was also provided at the municipal level through Operation 

Sukuma Sakhe (OSS). 

Economic presentations were conducted at various organisations including public, private, 

institutions of higher education, Non-Profit Organisations (NPOs), to name a few: Trade and 

Investment KZN, Chartered Institute of Government Finance, Auditing and Risk Officers, Durban 

Chamber of Commerce, South African Diversity Council and the University of KwaZulu-Natal 

(UKZN), MillaSA. 

The Unit also participated in bid evaluations, provided newsletters for the department's quarterly 

publication "Dialogue". Members of the Unit were also seconded to RASET programme for three 

months.  

Publications such as the Socio-Economic Review and Outlook (SERO) and departmental analysis 

reports were produced, and contributions towards other in-house publications such as Municipal 

Finance’s Close-Out Report and Public Finance’s Overview of Provincial Revenue and Expenditure 

(OPRE) were made. 
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 Infrastructure Management 

The Infrastructure Management Unit has continued to support the infrastructure development in the 

province and the introduction of the IDMS principles to all Departments that have an infrastructure 

budget including Health and Education where IDMS was piloted. The infrastructure planning and 

reporting schedule circular which indicates the milestone and the timeline for each activity required 

with regard to infrastructure planning and reporting is now applicable to all Departments that have 

budgeted for infrastructure projects. 

The 2020/21 Estimates for Capital Expenditure (ECE) which was published together with the 

Provincial Budget is one of the highlight achievement of this financial year. This annual publication 

provides detailed infrastructure expenditure plans for provincial departments and is aiming at 

improving the infrastructure planning and contribute to ensuring effective and efficient delivery of 

infrastructure projects. The ECE includes each provincial department’s infrastructure development 

programme and project lists planned to be delivered during the 2020/21 MTEF period. The 

programmes and projects were then captured Infrastructure Reporting Model (IRM). This will assist 

to improve reporting and monitoring.  

Through improved planning and reporting departments of Health and Education has managed to 

receive the incentives for infrastructure development for Health Facilities Revitalisation Grant and 

Education Infrastructure Grant respectively.  

 Infrastructure Delivery Management System (IDMS) 

The IDMS is Government policy for implementing the Government’s strategy to enhance socio-

economic growth and development through infrastructure delivery. Its legality is based on: 

 The 9 Provincial IDMS Framework documents which were approved by Provincial EXCO 

(thereby endorsing IDMS in each Province);  

 The Division of Revenue Act (DoRA); 

 Endorsement of the IDMS by the Presidential Infrastructure Coordination Committee (PICC); 

and  

 The Standard for Infrastructure Procurement and Delivery Management (SIPDM). 

Having one standard system to unify infrastructure delivery management in all spheres of 

government continues to be the vision of the Government. This is not only evident from the 

aforementioned policies but also from the National Development Plan, 2030, decisions by the PICC, 

the Budget Council (BC), the Technical Committee of Finance (TCF) and the Cabinet. 
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Government’s IDMS comprises three core legislative requirements, namely asset management, 

planning and budgeting, and supply chain management. Infrastructure Delivery Management 

comprises of portfolio, programme, operations, maintenance and project management processes.  

Performance and risk management are integrated in the delivery management processes. Finally, 

the institutional system provides organisations guidance on a generic approach towards building 

their own institutional Infrastructure Delivery Management System. 

The KZN EXCO approved the KZN-IDMS Framework document for the Departments of Health, 

Education, Public Works and Treasury on 22 September 2012. Given the time lapsed to implement 

the KZN-IDMS Framework; the PT Infrastructure Unit determined that a detailed progress review be 

undertaken. The progress review is also informed by the DoRA 2016/17, Chapter 4, and Section 27:  

In March 2017 Provincial Treasury issued a circular to all Provincial Departments (PT/INFR 1 of 

2016/17), which principally states: The Province of KwaZulu-Natal adopted the Infrastructure 

Delivery Management System (IDMS) for the planning, delivery, management and reporting on the 

infrastructure programme. The IDMS requires departments to have long, medium and short term 

plans for infrastructure delivery. The infrastructure long term plan known as the User Asset 

Management Plan (UAMP) covering a minimum planning forecast of 10 years, the Medium term 

plan known as the Infrastructure Programme Management Plan (IPMP) focuses on the next 3 years 

(or MTEF) and the Infrastructure Programme Implementation Plan (IPIP) focus is detail planning 

implementation for the next financial year or a 1 year plan.  The in year reporting of infrastructure 

performance and spending is monitored and reported in the Infrastructure Reporting Model (IRM). 

During the 2019/20 financial year, National Treasury strategic direction and initiatives in IDMS 

implementation changed with the repealing of Instruction Note 4 of 2015/16: Standard for 

Infrastructure Procurement and Delivery Management (SIPDM). The SIPDM was replaced with 

Instruction No. 3 of 2019/20, the Framework for Infrastructure Delivery and Procurement 

Management (FIDPM) addresses issues of inconsistences with National Treasury infrastructure 

delivery management and separate Procurement systems. The National Treasury Instruction No. 3 

of 2019/20 in this respect was issued on 26th April 2019. 

 KZN Infrastructure Integrated Master Plan 

The KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Planning Commission lead in development of the KwaZulu-Natal 

Provincial Growth and Development Strategy and Plan (PGDS/P), which is underpinned by and 

aligned to the National Development Plan (NDP).  Both the NDP and the PGDS/P emphasises the 

need for improved co-ordination, alignment and integration of infrastructure planning.  This resulted 
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in KZN EXCO approving the establishment of the provincial Infrastructure Co-ordination Work 

Group (ICWG) to facilitate integration and co-ordination of all Infrastructure programmes and 

projects in KwaZulu-Natal, that are identified as being strategic to the extent that they have the 

ability to advance the strategic objectives and interventions identified in the PGDS/P. The ICWG is 

chaired and coordinated by KZN Department of Public Works with support from Provincial Treasury. 

The developments of the Provincial Integrated Infrastructure Master Plan (IIMP) provides a high 

level overview of the nature, extent and status of alignment of and between the abovementioned 

categories with organisations infrastructure planning within the Province of KwaZulu-Natal. Where 

the IIMP identifies critical infrastructure priority gaps due to singular sector infrastructure planning. 

The need therefore, for such a Provincial Integrated Infrastructure Master Plan that keeps pace with 

sector planning developments; is driven by the fact that there is no institutional framework to 

facilitate a coordinated and integrated approach to planning of strategic infrastructure at a provincial 

level. 

Progress on sector planning developments, that were received, were reviewed and included or 

updated in the IIMP, and was presented in August/September 2019 and January/February 2020 to: 

 KZN Provincial Planning Commission (PPC); 

 Economic Sector Infrastructure Development (ESID) Cluster; and 

 KZN Lekgotla 

 Infrastructure Crack Team 

The provision of public infrastructure is integral in the realisation of government’s goal to provide 

basic services to all South Africans. However, low capital expenditure by Departments and 

municipalities necessitated the establishment of an infrastructure Capacity support initiative 

otherwise called “Crack Team”. The infrastructure support team (a panel comprising of Built 

Environment Firms) was established in 2011 by the Provincial Executive to assist Departments and 

Municipalities in delivering cost effective and efficient infrastructure in the province. The initial panel 

consisted of 18 built environment professional companies which included engineers, town planners, 

architects, project managers, and quantity surveyors. A new three year contract commenced in April 

2015 with 23 built environment professional companies, and now in the 2020-21 financial year - a 

new increased 90 firm panel has been put in place. 
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The objective of the “Crack Team” is to assist provincial Departments, entities and municipalities in 

the infrastructure delivery value chain in assessing, planning, identifying and unblocking of 

bottlenecks - in the delivery of the essential infrastructure services to communities. 

One key project that has arisen out of this initiative is the support provided to the Department of 

Health in undertaking repair works to health facilities damaged by storms of 10th of October 2017.  

Due to the magnitude of the damages and the need for extra capacity for professional services over 

and above what the Department of Public Works carries, Provincial Treasury was requested to avail 

a Professional Service Provider to ascertain the extent of damage, determine remedial measures 

and cost these interventions. Subsequently contractors were appointed to undertake repair works as 

follows: 

 Wentworth Hospital for the main buildings and a collapsed embankment 

 Roof replacement and improvements to the Stormwater system 

 Repairs and improvement to the Stormwater management system  

Listed below are some other projects undertaken in the 2019/20 financial year. 

 Mpofana Municipality Electricity System Assessment 

 uMngeni Municipality Conditional Investigation into Municipal Flats 

 Ndumo Irrigation Scheme A Review 

 

 Provincial Regional Technology Hub Project 

The focus and purpose of the project is based on what has been experienced and achieved 

internationally through the establishment of innovation technology hubs. The establishment, 

financing, designing, initial construction of phase 1 and the preparation for the operating of FOUR 

regional technology hubs in the province. 

 The four locations are: 

 uMsunduzi (at the Pietermaritzburg airport) 

 Newcastle (at the Newcastle airport) 

 Richards Bay (at the Richards Bay Industrial Development Zone (RBIDZ) Phase 1A site) 

 Hibiscus Coast (opposite the Shelly Mall, Shelly Beach) 

 Funding of R120m through the General Budget Support Programme was secured over the 

MTEF (2015/16 to 2017/18).   
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 The four “hub hosts” (the three municipalities and the RBIDZ) own the hubs. Each hub 

host has put forward an incentive policy for prospective tenants and investors. 

 The project was completed by the 31 March 2018 within time and 100% of the R120 million 

grant was fully utilized. 

 The technology hubs have been formally handed over to the hub hosts by KZN Treasury. 

 EDTEA have taken over the Provincial oversight and strategy for the Technology Hubs 

 King’s Palaces Maintenance Repairs Project 

The KZN Treasury was mandated by the Honourable Premier in November 2015 to implement the 

Palaces Maintenance Repairs Project. It is important to clarify the role of KZN Treasury in a project 

at implementation level. The circumstances of this project were unique and the KZN Treasury role 

included a broader objective – which was to provide technical support to Departments. Funding of 

R8m was made available through the Office of the Premier for the 2016/17 financial year. A 

summary of completed progress includes: 

 The final tendered award of 9 selected projects amounted to R 7 629 870.55 or 95.4% of the 

R8m. 

 The carry-over was requested was approved for the 2017/18 financial year was R 2 616 

946.78. 

 The final expenditure at completion of the 9 selected projects selected, amounted to R7 220 

810.68 or 90.3% of the R8m. 

 The final project completion of the 9 projects - achieved final completion certification by the 

project engineer on the 23rd October 2018.  This date also marks the point of final handover 

of the last project competed to the Office of the Premier.  The final completion certification 

point - also provides all contractual retentions payments that were paid in the final account 

in 2018/19 financial year. 

Public Finance 

The Public Finance unit continued to perform its mandate as prescribed by the PFMA and Treasury 

Regulations.  

The department continued to monitor and report on the performance of the budget and service delivery 

achievements for all 14 departments, the Provincial Legislature and 16 public entities to National 

Treasury, the Provincial Executive Council, as well as the Finance Portfolio Committee (FPC). The 

Standing Committee on Oversight (STACOV) was also updated on the budget performance of the 

Provincial Legislature.  
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The 2019/20 main budget was finalised and tabled on time as stipulated by the PFMA. The main budget 

was accompanied by the tabling of the 2019/20 EPRE, which provides provincial spending plans for the 

next three years. Also tabled in 2019/20 was the 6th Democratic Administration Budget Speech, 

Reviving the 2019/20 MTEF Budget in the Provincial Legislature and the reprint of the 2019/20 

Estimates of Provincial Revenue and Expenditure (EPRE). 

The 2019/20 Adjustments Estimate of Provincial Revenue and Expenditure (AEPRE) was prepared and 

tabled in the Legislature as stipulated by the PFMA. The implementation of cost-cutting measures by 

departments and public entities continued to be overseen with approximately (1416) such submissions 

being processed during the year. 

The impact of these achievements is as follows: 

The fiscal discipline in KwaZulu-Natal continues to be noteworthy and is achieved through careful 

oversight and continued implementation of the cost-cutting measures, together with careful budget and 

cash management. These measures are constantly being improved upon, through the introduction of 

new measures and amendment of existing measures. The province was the first in the country to 

institute controls around the process of filling of vacant posts. These measures have all contributed to 

the province remaining cash positive, continuing with a trend which started in May 2010.  

The Public Finance unit will continue to monitor the spending and revenue collection of departments 

and public entities against budget will continue in 2020/21, with the aim of keeping provincial spending 

within budget. The Provincial Executive Council will continue to be kept regularly informed of the 

province’s budget performance. The 2020/21 EPRE and 2020/21 AEPRE will be prepared. The 

enhancement of Provincial Own Revenue will remain a focus area in view of the fiscal consolidation and 

PES data updates budget cuts that continue to reduce the province’s equitable share and conditional 

grant allocations. Departments’ and public entities’ adherence to the cost-cutting measures will continue 

to be monitored. 

Programme 3: Financial Governance  

 

Asset and Liabilities Management  

The Cash Blocking system has ensured more effective cash management by the departments during 

the 2019/2020 financial year, as departments were not able to disburse payments to suppliers unless 
they had the funds available in their cashbook. 
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The banking section provided a support service to KZN departments in all areas of the banking function. 

Liaison with departments on a monthly basis has continued to improve the zero balances on the 

banking-related suspense accounts and Chief Financial Officers of departments were made aware of 

any risks identified in respect of outstanding transactions. 

Municipalities were informed of the reporting requirements in terms of the Municipal Finance 

Management Act and the submission of reports by municipalities continued to improve in the 2019/2020 

financial year. 

The tax section provided on-going support to the KZN provincial departments in respect of payroll tax 

functions during 2019/2020. There has been a noticeable improvement in the knowledge and skills of 

the tax supervisors at some departments in the Province.  

Amendments to tax legislation which impacted PAYE or payroll tax were communicated to departments. 

Where gaps were identified in the required knowledge and skills of tax supervisors at the departments, 

one-on-one training sessions were conducted to address individual training needs. 

The PAYE Tax Manual was updated to include new legislation amendments and is used by 

departments in conjunction with SARS Employer Guide. During the 2019/2020 year the training and 

support continued to be specifically focused at supervisory level to address the issue whereby the tax 

supervisors lacked the necessary tax knowledge and skills to assist and train their staff on all areas of 

the payroll tax function. 

A quarterly risk analysis was conducted on the status of the tax functions at each department to ensure 

that any risks were identified and corrective action taken to ensure compliance with tax legislation and 

year-end practices. Where deemed necessary the Chief Financial Officer was informed of the risks 

identified and requested to take further action within the relevant department.  

Public Private Partnerships (PPPs) 

Service Delivery Achievements  

Feasibility Study for Inkosi Albert Luthuli Hospital was conducted, outcome was presented to the 

Provincial Executive Council for its approval before application for Treasury Approval 1.  KZN Provincial 

Department of Health has since obtained Treasury Approval 1 from National Treasury, it is unfortunate 

however that the department did not seek nor obtain Provincial Treasury approval 1 as required by 

Treasury Regulation 16.4.1 and 16.4.2. 
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The PPP unit continued to provide technical support to KZN Department of Health in its contract 

management of its concession contract with Impilo consortium. 

Procurement of Transaction advisors to undertake investigation of a possible Public Transport solution 

linking King Shaka International Airport to the Cities of Durban, Pietermaritzburg, Richards Bay and Port 

Shepstone.by KZN Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs was 

completed during the year under review. 

Even though the five-year review for the concession contract of iLembe District Municipality in its Water 

and Sanitation concession contract with Siza Water was not concluded at year end such review has 

since been finalised.  The PPP unit had continued with its support in management and monitoring of 

this concession contract 

Supporting and Interlinked Financial Systems 

The directorate continues to provide support for financial systems such as BAS and HardCat in the 

province. The Persal is technical supported by the directorate, whilst the Office of the Premier is 

handling the functionality and policy.  

The directorate remains committed to provide optimal protection to both BAS and Persal transversal 

systems thus mitigating any financial loss to the province. The use of the Biometric Access Control 

System (BACS) has significantly strengthened the non-repudiation in both BAS and Persal.  

 

The directorate started to embark on improving the performance of HardCat Asset Management in the 

Province for all participating departments with KZN Department of Education being the first moving their 

standalone database to the centralized database. Training on the latest version was also conducted to 

their users in 14 -16 October 2019. 

 
Provincial Supply Chain Management (SCM) 

 Routine SCM compliance assessments, operational support and investigations were conducted in 

Departments, Municipalities and Public Entities to ensure compliance with all relevant SCM 

prescripts.  The unit also provided training to Institutions mainly on Local Production and Content 

and SCM Bid Committees, where necessary.   

 Capacity building interventions were conducted in SCM components of Institutions which were 

found to have unfavourable audit outcomes. As per a Cabinet Resolution, an SCM intervention at 

the Department of Health commenced in the 2017/18 financial year and continued into the 
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2019/2020 financial year.  Additional interventions will be identified in terms of the Audit outcomes, 

for Departments, Municipalities and Public Entities.  

 The Policy Development Unit continued to review SCM Policies from the Departments, Public 

Entities and Municipalities on request.  The Unit also commenced the process of consolidating 

comments on the Draft Public Procurement Bill which was published in February 2020 for public 

comments.  

 The Contract Management Unit assisted Municipalities in developing their Contract Management 

Policies in line with the Provincial Contract Management Policy Framework and on-going 

monitoring and support was provided to all Municipalities. The site visits were undertaken to assess 

the on-site implementation of Contract Management within all Municipalities in the Province and 

comprehensive reports were submitted to the Municipalities, setting out areas that required 

attention and providing comprehensive action plans to address any weaknesses and potential 

areas which needed attention.  Training was provided on request by Municipalities. 

The SCM Unit further embarked on an exercise aimed at providing post-implementation support to 

all Departments within the Province, where site visits commenced in November 2019 with an aim of 

analysing the situation in relation to Contract Management in all Departments. Ten (10) 

Departments were visited during the reporting period and the remaining Department visits were 

disrupted by the National Lockdown, which is planned for completion as soon as the situation 

allows such visits.  The process to source more resources to be deployed in the Departments was 

underway and the Department had appointed two (2) additional resources on a two (2) year 

contract. Recommendations had already been sent to the Departments where site visits had been 

conducted as some of the Departments did not have fully functional Contract Management Units. 

 The unit identified the use of Regulation 32 contracts, at municipalities, as one of the major 

contributors to irregular expenditure. The Regulations were being improperly applied and the result 

of which was the incurrence of irregular expenditure by the Municipality utilising the said contracts. 

The Unit continues to ensure good governance and transparency in the procurement process by 

overseeing the approval and monitoring of the use of Regulation 32 requests. The unit has 

processed twenty two (22) Regulations 32 requests.  

 The unit provided direct support to all Departments, Municipalities, Public and Municipal Entities to 

facilitate the reporting, compliance, data uploads and registration of suppliers onto the Central 

Supplier Database (CSD). CSD training was facilitated to all municipalities and departments in 
order to provide SCM practitioners with knowledge on the functionality of the CSD.   
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 In accordance with Instruction Note 3 of 16/17, the Unit ensures accountability and good 

governance at Provincial level and has processed Two Hundred and Forty-Five (245) applications 

for deviations. It is our view that this has gone a long way in curbing the incurrence of irregular 

expenditure.  

 Specialised Support is a new unit that has been established within the Provincial SCM Unit to assist 

provincial departments and public entities in creating an enabling environment for government 

procurement to enhance opportunities for Historically Disadvantaged Individuals through vetting of 

bid specifications to ensure compliance with Preferential Procurement Regulations 4 and 9 of 2017 

and to review high value bids in an effort to curb irregular expenditure.  

 The Provincial Bid Appeals Tribunal has facilitated a number of cases relating to the appeals 

against bids that were awarded by the Departments in the Province. The table below reflects the 

appeals handled during the 2019/2020 financial year:- 

 

SCHEDULE OF APPEALS – DEPARTMENTS 

DEPARTMENTS APPEALS 
RECEIVED 

STATUS 

PENDING WITHDRAWN FINALISED LATE 
APPEALS 

AGRICULTURE 0 0 0 0 0 
ARTS & CULTURE 1 0 0 0 1 
EDUCATION 1292 1120 0 10 162 
HEALTH 23 3 3 12 5 
TRANSPORT 63 4 1 50 8 
TREASURY 1 0 0 1 0 
WORKS 40 15 17 3 5 
DEPARTMENT OF  CO-OPERATIVE 
GOVERNANCE AND TRADITIONAL 
AFFAIRS 

15 1 2 9 3 

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT AND TOURISM 1 0 0 1 0 

DEPARTMENT OF SPORTS AND 
RECREATION 0 0 0 0 0 

PREMIER 0 0 0 0 0 
HUMAN SETTLEMENT 4 0 1 1 2 
SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT 1 0 0 1 0 
COMMUNITY SAFETY AND LIAISON 1 0 0 0 1 
TOTAL 1442 1143 24 88 187 
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 The Municipal Bid Appeals Tribunals (MBAT) have provided active support for the hearing of MBAT 

matters.  The table below reflect a summary of appeals handled by the Municipal Bid Appeals 

Tribunal for Municipalities, during the period of 2019/2020 financial year.        

SCHEDULE OF APPEALS – MUNICIPALITIES 

MUNICIPALITY 
APPEALS 
RECEIVED 

STATUS 

PENDING WITHDRAWN FINALISED 
LATE 

APPEALS 

Amajuba Municipality 3  1 2  

Harry Gwala District Municipality  7  2 5  

Nkosazana Dlamini Zuma Mun 1   1  

Mandeni Municipality  1   1  

Danhauser Municipality  10   10  

Edumbe Municipality  2   2  

Greater Kostad Municipality   3  1 2  

Umzumbe Municipality 1  1   

Umgungundlovu District Municipality  4 3  1  

Msunduzi Municipality  3 1 1 1  

Inkosi Langalibalele Municipality  1   1  

KwaDukuza Municipality  2   2  

Umkhanyakude District Municipality  1   1  

Mshwathi Municipality  1   1  

Endumeni Municipality  1   1  

Zululand Municipality  2   2  

Uphongolo Municipality  9 1 1 7  

Abaqulusi Municipality 1   1  

Newcastle Municipality 1   1  

Alfred Duma Municipality  1  1   

Ilembe Municipality  2   2  

Richmond Municipality  1   1  

TOTAL 58 5 8 45 0 
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Accounting Services (Financial Reporting) 

I. Provincial Departments and Public Entities 

An executive overview of the financial management support provided to Provincial Departments and 

Public Entities by the Accounting Services Unit during the year is as follows: 

 Provided assistance in preparation of monthly general ledger reconciliations and monitoring of 

the quality of financial management reconciliations and accounting processes; 

 Provided guidance with technical queries on implementation of accounting standard 

requirements for both Provincial Departments and Public Entities; 

 Engaged with National Treasury and Office of the Auditor General on contentious matters 

relating to interpretation of accounting standards and any National Treasury reforms;  

 Provided monitoring support to Provincial Departments and Public Entities on the submission of 

mandatory information to Provincial Treasury and Auditor General; 

 Reviewed the Interim Financial Statements of 14 Departments and 1 Public Entity; 

 Conducted a pre-audit review of the annual financial statements and working papers for 14 

Departments and 8 Public Entities; 

 Facilitated training on Unauthorised, Irregular and Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure for 

Departments and Public Entities; 

 Training material developed and circulated to Departments on updates to the Modified Cash 

Standards; 

 Facilitated GRAP update training for Public Entities; 

 Reviewed the monthly reconciliations of interdepartmental accounts in the province; 

 Provision of assistance in terms of addressing government debt owed to Municipalities; 

 Provision of support rendered to Departments in terms of addressing long outstanding payments 

to suppliers; 

 Support suppliers to resolve payment disputes with departments when payment is delayed.  
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 In addition to the above support, the Unit undertook specific interventions at the following 

Departments to address audit risk areas: 

 Continued financial management support to KZN Department of Arts and Culture, 

including preparation of the annual financial statements, irregular expenditure and asset 

registers; 

 Continued asset management support to KZN Department of Health; 

 Provided asset management support and training on “accruals and payables not 

recognised” to KZN Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental 

Affairs; 

 Financial management support provided to KZN Office of the Premier in preparation of 

the financial statements; 

 Provision of financial management support to KZN Department of Agriculture on 

commitments for the 2019 financial year end and updating of the irregular expenditure 

register for both the 2019 and 2020 financial years; 

 Financial management support to KZN Department of Cooperative Governance and 

Traditional Affairs, including assistance with preparation of the monthly financial 

statements, irregular expenditure and commitment registers for the 2019 financial year; 

 Financial management support to KZN Department of Social Development, in reviewing 

and monitoring the preparation of the annual financial statements and support in 

preparation of working papers for the 2019 financial year; 

 Financial Management support to the Department of Sport and Recreation; 

 Financial Management support to the Acting CFO at the KZN Department of Education. 

In addition to the above the unit undertook the following: 

 Prepared the consolidated annual financial statements for the province and public entities;  

 Prepared the annual financial statements for the Provincial Revenue Fund;  
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 Reviewed the condonation of irregular expenditure submissions made by departments and 

public entities. The teams managing the sub-programmes of Accounting Services and Supply 

Chain Management have been instrumental in this process to ensure compliance with the 

Irregular Expenditure Framework. 

II. Implementation of the Municipal Regulations on Standard Chart of Accounts (mSCOA) 

In keeping with the Provincial Treasury’s mandate to assist and support municipalities in strengthening 

and building their financial management capacity, the Accounting Services Unit in collaboration with the 

Municipal Finance Management Unit continued to provide mSCOA support to municipalities and their 

related entities in the province.  In leading the initiative, the Accounting Services Unit played an 

instrumental role in spearheading a technically integrated engagement with municipalities and the 

Municipal Finance Unit with specific focus on MSCOA implementation and champion training, skills 

development and transfer to ensure continuation and inculcation of MSCOA support plans in action. 

An executive overview of the deliverables accomplished is as follows: 

 Management of the review of the detailed monthly transactional data of municipalities and 

municipal entities to ensure correct alignment to the mSCOA chart requirements, as well as 

completeness and accuracy of transaction information. 

 Train municipalities and municipal entities in various mSCOA areas. 

 Manage the support to municipalities in correcting the monthly transactional information in 

readiness for interim and annual financial statements. 

 Provide hands on support to municipalities and their entities based on needs identified in relation 

to mSCOA budget preparation, monthly transactional information and/or financial statement 

preparation. 

 Provide guidance and review the mSCOA adjustment budget for the 2018/2019 financial year 

and the mSCOA annual budget for the 2019/2020 financial year to ensure correct use of the 

mSCOA segments and assist municipalities and entities in clearing identified errors.  

 Monitor the planning and implementation of the business process change in municipalities and 

municipal entities. 
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 Conduct a systems assessment on progress made by the municipalities and the entities and 

provide guidance in addressing these challenges. 

 Provide guidance to municipalities and entities in the implementation of outstanding mSCOA 

modules including the integration of modules. 

 Attend project steering committee meetings, forum and other stakeholder and role-player 

engagements as and when required including active participation. 

 Compilation of presentations and progress reports for various platforms engagements.  

In addition to the above, Provincial Treasury established a dedicated support team to assist 

municipalities, with a resource allocated to two districts each in order to provide hands on support as 

required. 

The function of mSCOA support to municipalities and their entities has been transferred to the Municipal 

Finance Unit with effect from 1 April 2020.   

Future Plans 

Provincial Departments and Public Entities: 

The Financial Management Unit will continue to play a significant role in the implementation of the 

province-wide, multi-level PFMA audit readiness financial management support plan that has been 

developed to achieve the broad and overarching goal of improved financial management practices and 

the achievement of 90% unqualified audit outcomes by 2024. The improvement of the effectiveness of 

financial management in the Province remains a priority in the attainment of improved audit outcomes.   

The following targeted projects and initiatives have been identified by the Accounting Services Unit to 

achieve the outcome outlined above:   

 Provision of specialist financial and asset management support to provincial departments and 

public entities to enhance financial management skills and capabilities and ensure audit 

readiness.  

 Provision of technical support and financial management training to strengthen capacity of 

officials at departments and public entities on financial reporting standards. 
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 Monitoring of financial management processes and analysis of monthly key accounts and 

reconciliations. 

 Support to departments in the interim and annual financial statement preparation process with 

the object of improving the availability of quality supporting documentation. 

 Monitor compliance with month-end closure procedures and submission of interim and annual 

financial statements.  

In addition to the above the sub-programme will continue to provide support to the Province in terms of: 

 Operation “Pay-On-Time”: A dedicated “operation pay on time” team is available to supports 

SMMEs in particular with resolving of payment disputes that arise and reporting to National 

Treasury on compliance with Instruction Note No. 34. 

 Inter-Governmental Debt Management: Assistance with reconciliation of Inter-Departmental 

Accounts and Municipal Debt Recovery. 

 Condonation of Irregular Expenditure: Assist with the reduction of irregular expenditure 

through a process of condonation in compliance with Instruction Note No. 2 of 2019/2020. 

Provincial Treasury will continue enforcement of the Framework for the condonation of 

irregular expenditure, by ensuring that all requests for condonation, made by Departments and 

Public Entities are in accordance with the requirements thereof. 

 Preparation of the consolidated annual financial statements for the province and public entities. 

 Preparation of annual financial statements for the Provincial Revenue Fund. 

 
Norms and Standards 
Policy Assistance to Departments 

The unit reviewed eight (8) standard operating procedures as per the annually determined review 

schedule. All proposed amendments were consulted with departments and proposals incorporated, 

where applicable, in anticipation of its adoption and implementation. Eight (8) policies were reviewed for 

four identified departments (2 per department) to ensure alignment with regulatory prescripts and 

financial norms and standards, with a comprehensive report issued on the findings, for incorporation 

and implementation, where relevant.  
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The unit reviewed eight (8) standard operating procedures as per the annually determined review 

schedule. All proposed amendments were consulted with departments and proposals incorporated, 

where applicable, in anticipation of its adoption and implementation. Eight (8) policies were reviewed for 

four identified departments (2 per department) to ensure alignment with regulatory prescripts and 

financial norms and standards, with a comprehensive report issued on the findings, for incorporation 

and implementation, where relevant.  
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Policy Assistance to Municipalities and Entities 

The unit’s annual plan is informed by the annual policy support survey conducted prior to 

commencement of the financial year and numerous ad-hoc requests received during the course of the 

financial year.  

The unit provided support on finance-related policies to four (4) municipalities and 8 (eight) entities that 

included Mkhambathini local, Dr Nkosazane Dlamini-Zuma local, uMzimkhulu local, KZN Agri-business 

Development Agency, KZN Ezemvelo, and Trade & Investment KZN.  

Monitoring Compliance and Evaluation 

A compliance monitoring and evaluation exercise was conducted to assess financial management 

compliance within all provincial departments which assessed unauthorised, irregular and fruitless and 

wasteful expenditure and included a compliance checklist where documentary evidence was requested 

to support the responses indicated in the questionnaire. Departments were required to provide reasons 

for non-compliance when completing the questionnaire and formulate action plans with stipulated 

deadlines to address deviations.   

 

The completed questionnaire was analysed and thereafter compliance assessment reports issued per 

department which detailed compliance achievements and provided recommendations to address 

identified weaknesses or non-compliance. Additional guidelines were provided for incorporation within 

the working environment, where applicable, to strengthen existing internal control measures and 

enhance financial management and control.  

A compliance follow-up report was issued per department to ensure that recommended remedial or 

control measures were implemented to address compliance deviations or non-conformance with 

regulatory prescripts and financial norms and standards.  

Compliance monitoring was conducted within eight (8) entities which was a more detailed analysis 

articulated from the assessment conducted during the 2018/19 financial year. A questionnaire was 

developed which assessed the Debt Management and Revenue Management in a more comprehensive 

manner. The process commenced with the development and issuing of the standardised assessment 

questionnaires that were submitted to the entities for completion. The completed questionnaire was 
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analysed and thereafter compliance assessment reports issued per entity which detailed compliance 

achievements and provided recommendations to address identified weaknesses or non-compliance.  

 

 

Implementation of the Financial Delegation Framework 

Support was provided to four (4) public entities within KZN Province to assess the implementation of the 

Delegations Framework, as envisaged in National Treasury’s principles document. The entities 

supported were Trade and Investment KZN, KZN Agri-business Development Agency, KZN Sharks 

Board and Dube Tradeport. 

 
Follow-ups were conducted in all departments for previously assessed financial delegation frameworks 

to establish whether the recommendations provided were incorporated in the departmental System of 

Delegations, ensure compliance with legislative prescripts, Delegation Frameworks and accountability, 

functionality and achievement of expected standards regarding results and performance. 

 

Audit Improvement Plan 2019 

The unit conducted three critical assessments in line with the Operation Clean Audit Improvement 

Strategy for the Province: 

 Review adequacy of departments’ policies, based on the findings contained within the Management 

Report and Auditor-General Report for 2018/19 and taking into account the mitigation strategy per 

department to address such findings. Support are provided on an ongoing basis in reviewing 

identified policies per department, based on the audit findings and identified control deficiencies.  

 Evaluation of financial management qualifications of officials in the Office of the Chief Financial 

Officer (CFO) and all payment points, identifying any deviations with minimum qualification criteria 

as per job descriptions and DPSA requirements and ensuring remedial measures are implemented 

based on the findings. A comprehensive report was issued on the outcomes of the analysis.  

Review adequacy of Financial Management Delegations of Authority. A report was issued on the 
current status of Departments delegation frameworks and any new matters arising subsequent to the 
matters reported on as at 31 August 2019. 
 

 

PROGRAMME 4: INTERNAL AUDIT 

Assurance Services 
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The shared internal audit function for the Province was provided by the Assurance Services sub-

programmes within PIAS. All 14 provincial departments were serviced by the unit during the 2019/20 

financial year. The Unit operated under the control and direction of the Provincial Audit and Risk 

Committee (PARC); and provided internal audit services as well as consulting activities designed to add 

value and improve Departments operations. The internal audit function operated with objectivity and 

independence, in compliance with the Standards for the International Professional Practices of Internal 

Auditing (SPPIA) issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA).  

In executing its responsibilities as a shared internal audit function, the Unit assessed the effectiveness 

of controls over various processes by conducting 232 audit reviews. These reviews were based on the 

risk profiles of each Department and included both full scope audit reviews as well follow ups to 

determine the extent of implementation of previous audit recommendations.  

In line with efforts to improve audit outcomes within the various provincial departments, the financial 

audits component conducted various transversal audits. These included reviews of the in-year 

monitoring processes, reviews of the completeness and adequacy of audit improvements plans 

developed by departments to address AG findings; as well as conducting AG follow audits to provide 

accounting officers with assurance on the effective implementation of these audit improvement plans.  

The unit focused on assisting departments by conducting cyber-security assessments as a consulting 

activity to assist Departments by providing an independent assessment of its state of preparedness to 

manage cyber-security threats and risks. In addition, various IT governance reviews were concluded in 

a number of departments. Other core business activities were also reviewed across various 

departments; as well transversal audits on supply chain management, reviews of performance 

management processes, human resource management, asset management and transfer payments.  

The unit enhanced the number of follow up reviews conducted to ensure that audits remained effective 

in assisting Departments improve internal controls. These follow up reviews were aimed at ensuring that 

management implemented actions to remedy weaknesses reported by Internal Audit. These follow ups 

focused on both Internal Audit findings as well as Auditor General Follow-ups and the progress of 

implementation was reported to Heads of Departments on a quarterly basis.  

The Provincial Audit and Risk Committee, together with the Cluster Audit and Risk Committees, 

discharged their oversight responsibilities over audit processes during the financial year. The Provincial 

Audit and Risk Committee met regularly; including meetings with the MEC: Finance as well as the Audit 

General. The Cluster Audit and Risk Committee meetings were held quarterly with the presence of 

Heads of Departments and their senior management; the Internal Audit Unit and the Auditor General. 
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during the financial year. The Provincial Audit & Risk Committee comprises of independent members 

from outside the public service. The Committee reported on all critical matters that were identified in 

these meetings which needed escalation and action; to all Accounting Officers via quarterly CARC 

reports; as well reports to individual MECs. Committee members also attended AG Audit Steering 

Committee meetings and certain SCOPA meetings by invitation; as part of their oversight role.   

 
Risk Management  
Risk and Advisory Services is a Unit within the Provincial Internal Audit Services which has been 

established to assist provincial departments, public entities and municipalities to comply with their risk 

management obligations as stated in the PFMA and the MFMA. Due to budget constraints, the support 

to public entities was curtailed, whilst the support to municipalities is done on a limited basis.  

 

During the financial year, the Unit developed various frameworks which are envisaged to enhance 

departments’ and municipalities’ risk management and internal control practices. These frameworks, 

which are envisaged to be approved and rolled-out during the 2021/22 financial year, include the 

updated Provincial Risk Management Frameworks for departments and municipalities and the 

Provincial Combined Assurance Framework. 

 

The Unit also continued its support to departments and municipalities through, among other things, 

facilitation of risk assessments at over 20 municipalities; and monitoring departments’ compliance with: 

1) Minimum risk management standards as set by the Provincial Executive Council in 2015; 2) 

Occupational Health and Safety Act; and 3) Sound Business Continuity Management Practices. 

 

With regard to the Health Intervention Project, the Unit produced a detailed close-out report on the 

internal control work stream which was shared MECs for Finance and Health, the Department of Health, 

and the Provincial Audit and Risk Committee. Further work on the internal control work stream has been 

scoped and is awaiting approval for implementation. Further work includes assisting the Department 

with the recruitment and training of internal control practitioners to ensure the sustainability of the 

internal control work that was provided by the Unit.    

 

In response to various COVID 19 control measures issued under the Disaster Management Act, the 

Unit has produced risk assessment guidelines and compliance checklists which have been issued to 

departments and municipalities for customisation. The Unit has also performed high level assessments 

of how departments are complying with selected COVID 19 control measures.  
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Forensic Services 

Four hundred and fifty-eight (458) investigation requests were received by the unit for the period 

December 2009 to 31 March 2020 from provincial departments, public entities, and municipalities. The 

amount of fraud and corruption that is currently under investigation is in excess of R9 billion, 

accumulated from December 2009 to date. 

Approximately 83% of the investigation requests received were investigated and completed. Those that 

warranted criminal investigation were referred to the law enforcement agencies for further investigation. 

The remaining 17% of alleged corruption and fraud cases reported are currently under investigation. 

The Audit and Risk Committee oversight role with regards to forensic investigations (conducted and 

those still in progress) has been limited to three hundred and twenty-nine (329) of the four hundred and 

fifty-eight (458) allegations received against the provincial departments.  

Most of the allegations received and investigated are serious and complex in nature.  These 

investigations are very costly and had created serious financial pressures for the unit. The unit has thus 

requested local government institutions and public entities to fund their own investigations, disciplinary 

hearings and criminal investigations. Provincial Treasury will however assist wherever possible, but will 

prioritise investigations requests from provincial departments. The unit had also requested provincial 

departments to fund their own disciplinary hearings and in some cases criminal investigations.  

The forensic unit is committed to the fight against fraud and corruption and has assisted law 

enforcement agencies such as the Anti-Corruption Task Team (ACTT), National Prosecuting Authority 

(NPA), South African Police Services (SAPS), SCCU and Asset Forfeiture Unit on matters under 

criminal investigation. The unit also assisted Accounting Officers of Departments with the compiling of 

affidavits for registering of criminal cases and are in regular contact with the investigating officers and 

prosecutors to determine the status of the registered cases and to determine whether any further 

assistance is required. 

The unit is tasked with monitoring the implementation of recommendations contained in the finalized 

forensic reports by the respective Accounting Officers of all departments relating to criminal, disciplinary 

and civil proceedings by conducting follow-up exercises. Through the work done during the 2017/18 

financial year, a preservation order amounting to R543 000 000.00 was obtained.  

Programme 5: Municipal Finance Management 

Municipal Budget   
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The Municipal Budget sub-programme provides support to delegated municipalities and monitors the 

preparation and performance of municipal budgets as well as the compliance by all delegated 

municipalities with the relevant and applicable sections of the Municipal Finance Management Act, Act 

No.56 of 2003 (MFMA) and the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations (MBRR). 

During the 2019/20 financial year, the primary focus of the Municipal Budget unit was the promotion of 

credible and funded municipal budgets and sound fiscal management. Monitoring of the municipal 

budgets included the following: 

 Provision of support to all delegated municipalities in the preparation of their 2019//20 Medium Term 

Revenue and Expenditure Framework (MTREF) Budgets; 

 Assessment of the 2019/20 MTREF budgets to establish whether the budgets were credible, 

sustainable and complied with the provisions of the Municipal Finance Management Act (No.56 of 

2003) (MFMA), the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations (MBRR) and other applicable 

legislation. It is critical that the funding position (i.e. funded or unfunded) of the municipal budgets are 

evaluated to determine the sustainability of municipalities in the province as this impacts on the 

municipality’s ability to deliver services; and 

 Monitoring the implementation of municipal budgets and preparation of monthly and quarterly reports 

in terms of Sections 71(6) and 71(7) of the MFMA, as well as assessing the 2019/20 Mid-Year 

Budget and Performance Assessment Reports on the budget performance of all delegated 

municipalities. 

The Municipal Budget unit assessed the 2019/20 Tabled and Approved Budgets of all 51 delegated 

municipalities and reports containing feedback on the key findings of the assessments were submitted 

to the delegated municipalities. 

Technical support for the 2019/20 budget preparation process was provided on request to the following 

six municipalities as indicated below. 

Onsite technical support to municipalities on the 2019/20 budget preparation process 

 
Source: KZN Provincial Treasury 

To guide all 51 delegated municipalities with the preparation of their 2019/20 budgets and to monitor 

compliance with the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations (MBRR), Provincial Treasury (PT) 

No Name of municipality No Name of municipality
1 uMdoni 4 iMpendle
2 uMzumbe 5 uMgungundlovu DM
3 Ugu DM 6 iNkosi Langalibalele
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issued Circular PT/MF 10 of 2018/19 dated 12 March 2019 (Preparation, submission and publication of 

the 2018/19 MTREF) to the municipalities. The PT Circular included some of the areas of weaknesses 

and common mistakes identified by both Provincial and National Treasuries in prior years that should 

have been considered and addressed (where applicable) by municipalities when preparing their 

2018/19 MTREF budgets. 

Furthermore, Provincial Treasury offered training to the BSCs and/or EXCOs of all the delegated 

municipalities on the preparation of funded budgets for the 2019/20 MTREF. Only two municipalities 

had invited Provincial Treasury to their BSC meetings.  

 
Municipalities who invited Provincial Treasury to their BSC meetings 

 
Source: KZN Provincial Treasury 

Provincial Treasury conducted the 2019/20 budget assessment in two phases. The objective of the first 

phase was to assess the Tabled Budgets of the municipalities and provide comments for consideration 

by municipalities as per the requirement of Section 23(1) of the MFMA. The assessment process also 

included compliance checks on all Tabled Budgets received to establish the level of compliance with the 

requirements of the MFMA and MBRR in general and to verify amongst others, whether the Tabled 

Budgets submitted were in the correct version of the prescribed format.  
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issued Circular PT/MF 10 of 2018/19 dated 12 March 2019 (Preparation, submission and publication of 
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MBRR.  

National Treasury recognised the unforeseen consequences of municipalities adopting unfunded 

budgets and therefore afforded municipalities that had unfunded 2019/20 Approved Budgets the 

opportunity to rectify the situation through the Special Adjustments Budgets. The requirement for the 

municipality to table and approve the Special Adjustments Budget was communicated to municipalities 

by National Treasury as per the correspondence to municipalities dated 08 October 2019. Provincial 

Treasury was required to engage with municipalities that had unfunded 2019/20 Approved Budgets 

before the end of October 2019. Provincial Treasury engaged all 16 delegated municipalities that had 

unfunded 2019/20 Approved Budgets over the period 14 October 2019 to 22 October 2019. Thereafter, 

detailed assessments were performed on the Special Adjustments Budgets submitted by the 

municipalities and the findings thereof were communicated to municipalities during the bi-lateral 

meetings. 

Provincial Treasury also monitored the submission of the 2019/20 Mid-Year Budget and Performance 

Assessment (Section 72) Reports which were due to both the Provincial and National Treasuries by 25 

January 2020, in line with the provisions of the MFMA. Provincial Treasury conducted an assessment 

on the Mid-Year Budget and Performance Assessment Reports submitted by the delegated KZN 

municipalities, with a view of providing recommendations which would influence their 2019/20 

Adjustments Budgets.  

Provincial Treasury requested municipalities in Circular PT/MF 06 of 2019/20 dated 18 December 2019 

to refrain from tabling their 2019/20 Mid-Year Budget and Performance Assessment Reports together 

with their 2019/20 Adjustments Budgets. This was requested in order for the Provincial Treasury to 

effectively assess the 2019/20 Mid-Year Budget and Performance Assessment Reports and provide 

meaningful contribution thereon in the preparation of the municipalities’ 2019/20 Adjustments Budgets.  

In order to improve on the quality of the bilateral engagements with municipalities, the Supply Chain 

Management (SCM) and internal Audit Units of the Provincial Treasury were invited to participate at the 

engagements. Due to the large number of municipalities in the province, it was not feasible to conduct 

joint engagements with all municipalities but rather to select those to be visited for the joint 

engagements.  

The SCM Unit attended the bi-lateral engagements of 19 municipalities, which represents 37 percent of 

the engagements convened.  

 
List of the 19 bi-lateral engagements on the 2019/20 Mid-Year Budget and Performance 
Assessment Reports that were attended by the SCM Unit  
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The Internal Audit Unit attended nine bi-lateral engagements due to their capacity constraints.   

 
 
 
 
List of the 9 bi-lateral engagements on the 2019/20 Mid – Year Budget and Performance 
Assessment Reports that were attended by the Internal Audit Unit 
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Engagements on the 2019/20 Mid-Year Budget and Performance Assessments Reports were 

conducted with a total of 49 municipalities including the joint engagements with the Provincial 

Treasury’s SCM and Internal Audit Unit. Provincial Treasury did not engage with the Nquthu LM due to 

the poor quality of the 2019/20 Mid-Year Budget and Performance Assessment Report submitted and 

the KwaDukuza LM due to the unavailability of municipal officials. 

The Municipal Finance Management Unit prepared 12 monthly Consolidated Budget Performance 

reports on all delegated municipalities and submitted these reports to National Treasury in terms of 

Section 71(6) of the MFMA.  

Four quarterly reports on the Consolidated Budget Performance for all delegated municipalities 

including the three non-delegated municipalities were prepared in line with the requirements of Section 

71(7) of the MFMA. 

All municipalities which provide Electricity are expected to submit applications for an electricity tariff 

increase to the National Energy Regulator of South Africa (NERSA) in line with Section 43 of the 

MFMA. To ensure an improvement in the quality and timeliness of the tariff increase applications to be 

submitted, NERSA jointly with Provincial Treasury conducted a two day workshop on 15 and 16 

October 2019 in Durban.  

No Name of municipality No Name of municipality No Name of municipality
1 Ugu DM 8 Mkhambathini LM 15 uMngeni LM
2 Mpofana LM 9 Richmond LM 16 iMpendle LM
3 uMdoni LM 10 uMgungundlovu DM 17 AbaQulusi LM
4 uMzumbe LM 11 Maphumulo LM 18 uMzimkhulu LM
5 uMuziwabantu LM 12 Mandeni LM 19 uMvoti LM
6 eNdumeni LM 13 uMsinga LM
7 Ndwedwe LM 14 Ray Nkonyeni LM

No Name of municipality No Name of municipality No Name of municipality
1 uMdoni LM 4 Maphumulo LM 7 Okhahlamba LM
2 uMngeni LM 5 uMlalazi LM 8 Alfred Duma LM
3 uMvoti LM 6 Msinga LM 9 Ndwedwe LM
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The purpose of the workshop was mainly to highlight the correct process of completing and submitting 

the relevant application forms and to remind municipalities of the deadlines for other related processes. 

The workshop was conducted for all delegated and non-delegated municipalities which are licenced to 

provide electricity services and was attended by 77 municipal officials from 22 municipalities. 

Provincial Treasury consistently monitors payments of electricity and water accounts by all delegated 

municipalities to Eskom and the Water Boards respectively. Provincial Treasury has assisted in 

ensuring that defaulting municipalities enter into payment arrangements with Eskom with a view of 

settling their outstanding Eskom debt.   

 

 

Municipal Accounting and Reporting 

In keeping with the Provincial Treasury’s mandate to assist and support municipalities in strengthening 

and building their financial management capacity, the Municipal Accounting and Reporting Sub-

programme provided on-site financial management support to identified municipalities within the 

province. The fundamental objective of this program is to improve the financial management accounting 

and reporting processes at the delegated municipalities and assist in addressing audit findings. 

The on-site support intervention strategy conducted by the initiative entailed the following: 

 An assessment of the status of financial management practice at identified municipalities and 

the development of a project plan; 

 Review or perform monthly general ledger reconciliations and monitoring of the quality of 

financial management reconciliations and accounting processes, as required; 

 Address prior year audit matters as raised by the Auditor-General to ensure that such matters 

are resolved adequately; 

 Provide guidance and oversight in the asset register preparation process and asset 

management processes or assist in the preparation of the asset register as required; 

 Monitor and assist in the preparation of the Interim Financial Statements and Annual Financial 

Statements (AFS); 

 Preparation of AFS and supporting reconciliations and schedules, as required; 

 Assist in the preparation and review of the audit working paper file including all financial 

reconciliations and disclosure requirements; 

 Training and development, including continuous on-the-job training of municipal officials in terms 

of financial management throughout the project; 

2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT FOR KZN PROVINCIAL TREASURY: VOTE 6 

- 70 -

The purpose of the workshop was mainly to highlight the correct process of completing and submitting 

the relevant application forms and to remind municipalities of the deadlines for other related processes. 

The workshop was conducted for all delegated and non-delegated municipalities which are licenced to 

provide electricity services and was attended by 77 municipal officials from 22 municipalities. 

Provincial Treasury consistently monitors payments of electricity and water accounts by all delegated 

municipalities to Eskom and the Water Boards respectively. Provincial Treasury has assisted in 

ensuring that defaulting municipalities enter into payment arrangements with Eskom with a view of 

settling their outstanding Eskom debt.   

 

 

Municipal Accounting and Reporting 

In keeping with the Provincial Treasury’s mandate to assist and support municipalities in strengthening 

and building their financial management capacity, the Municipal Accounting and Reporting Sub-

programme provided on-site financial management support to identified municipalities within the 

province. The fundamental objective of this program is to improve the financial management accounting 

and reporting processes at the delegated municipalities and assist in addressing audit findings. 

The on-site support intervention strategy conducted by the initiative entailed the following: 

 An assessment of the status of financial management practice at identified municipalities and 

the development of a project plan; 

 Review or perform monthly general ledger reconciliations and monitoring of the quality of 

financial management reconciliations and accounting processes, as required; 

 Address prior year audit matters as raised by the Auditor-General to ensure that such matters 

are resolved adequately; 

 Provide guidance and oversight in the asset register preparation process and asset 

management processes or assist in the preparation of the asset register as required; 

 Monitor and assist in the preparation of the Interim Financial Statements and Annual Financial 

Statements (AFS); 

 Preparation of AFS and supporting reconciliations and schedules, as required; 

 Assist in the preparation and review of the audit working paper file including all financial 

reconciliations and disclosure requirements; 

 Training and development, including continuous on-the-job training of municipal officials in terms 

of financial management throughout the project; 2
0
0
3
1
1
9
0
 K

Z
N

 T
re

a
s
u
ry

.o
ld

.j
o
b
 1

0
/1

4
/2

0
2
0
 0

8
:3

9
:0

0
 7

1
 A

 Y
e
llo

w
M

a
g
e
n
ta

C
y
a
n

B
la

c
k



2019/20 ANNUAL REPORT FOR KZN PROVINCIAL TREASURY: VOTE 6 

- 71 -

 Monitor and implement compliance with the Municipal Finance Management Act No. 56 of 2003 

(MFMA), and other relevant local government legislation; 

 Provide support with the alignment and compliance of Municipal Standard Chart of Accounts 

(mSCOA) requirements for financial management transactions;  

 Attendance at audit steering committee meetings. Provide guidance and support during the audit 

process to the CFO in addressing all financial management audit queries until the issue of the 

final audit report; and 

 Attendance at management meetings that relate to financial management within the 

municipality. 

The 2019/20 annual targets for Financial Management Support to Municipalities include: 

 Target for 2019/20:  Pre-audit assessment report in four (4) municipalities by 31 August 2019.   

Actual:  During the 2019/20 financial year Municipal Accounting and Reporting assisted eight (8) 

municipalities to review the Annual Financial Statements prepared by the municipalities. 

 Target for 2019/20:  Progress reports on intensive on site financial management support to six 

(6) municipalities.   

Actual:  On site financial management support was provided to seven (7) municipalities during 

the 2019/20 financial year.   

List of municipalities that received support from Municipal Accounting and Reporting during 
2019/20 

No Name of Municipality AFS Reviews Financial Management 
Support 

1 Ray Nkonyeni LM   
2 uMuziwabantu LM   
3 Ugu DM   
4 uThukela DM   
5 uPhongolo LM 
6 Ulundi LM   
7 uMhlabuyalingana LM   
8 Mandeni LM   
9 KwaDukuza LM   

10 uBuhlebezwe LM 
11 uMzimkhulu LM   
12 Dr Nkosazana Dlamini Zuma LM   
13 Harry Gwala DM   

 

Municipal Finance Improvement Programme (MFIP III) - Asset Management 
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In response to the continuing challenges faced by municipalities and the resulting impact on audit 

outcomes, particularly as it relates to Asset Management, Provincial Treasury continued to provide 

hands on assistance to municipalities whom require asset management support. National Treasury 

deployed an Asset Management Technical Advisor as part of the Municipal Finance Improvement 

Programme (MFIPIII) to provide assistance and guidance to Provincial Treasury and municipalities in all 

aspects of Asset Management. The advisor assisted to address weaknesses identified with the 

establishment of an asset management steering committee, capacitation of the asset management unit 

and assistance with the development of policies and procedures.   

An assessment of the status of asset management in the province was undertaken by a review of the 

prior year audit findings. A total of ten (10) municipalities received dedicated support during 2019/20 

from the MFIP Advisor, with assistance from the Municipal Accounting and Reporting team.  

List of municipalities that received MFIP III Asset Management Support during 2019/20 

No Name of the municipality No Name of the municipality 
1 AbaQulusi LM 6 Ugu DM 
2 Harry Gwala DM 7 uMgungundlovu DM 
3 Impendle LM 8 uMzinyathi DM 
4 Nongoma LM 9 uPhongolo LM 
5 uBuhlebezwe LM 10 uThukela DM 

 
Implementation of the Municipal Regulations on Standard Chart of Accounts (mSCOA) 

The Minister of Finance promulgated Government Gazette No. 37577, Municipal Regulations on 

Standard Chart of Accounts (mSCOA), on 22 April 2014.  All municipalities and related municipal 

entities were required to transact in compliance with the mSCOA Regulations from 01 July 2017.  

The objective of mSCOA is to provide a national standard for the uniform recording and classification of 

municipal budget and financial information at a transactional level by providing a standard chart of 

accounts. 

Provincial Treasury continued to monitor the implementation of mSCOA in the Province during the 

2019/2020 municipal financial year by means of providing onsite support and engagements to assist all 

delegated municipalities with the implementation of the chart and ensuring transfer of skills.   

Municipalities were provided with support through various platforms including: 

 CFO Forums. 
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 Individual municipal training on request. 

 Telephonic and email support to assist in clearing of validation errors, assistance to register on 

the LG Portal and queries relating to budgeting and accounting related matters. 

 Attendance at project steering committee meetings. 

 Technical queries on the chart within regards to inadequate guids not included in 6.3 and 6.4 of 

the mSCOA chart. 

 Provision of an audit checklist including review of the working paper files that municipalities have 

in place. 

 Review of the Adopted budget for the 2019/20 and the Adjustment budget of the 2019/20 

financial year and feedback provided to municipalities on the use of segments. 

 Review of the In-Year-Reporting and provide feedback on areas of improvement required and 

misuse of the mSCOA chart. 

 Advise with regards to the procedure to be followed as indicated in Circular 80 of the MFMA. All 

supply chain management queries in respect of the RT25/2016 was forward to the Office of 

Chief Procurement officer for input where necessary. 

 Execution of onsite assessments to determine the overall status of municipalities. This was 

completed and an mSCOA Implementation status dashboard provided to all delegated 

municipalities. 

Training provided consisted of the following: 

 mSCOA and Annual Financial Statement Alignment. 

 The use of segments and corrections required. 

 Budgeting and Transacting in mSCOA. 

 mSCOA Fundaments and mSCOA reporting requirements at identified municipalities. 

The mSCOA team continues to support municipalities in addressing queries with the chart and assisting 

with budgeting and clearing of validation errors on the data files. The focus is further on ensuring that 

the transactional data and the annual financial statements are credible. 

 

Municipal Support Program (MSP) 

The Municipal Support Program (MSP) within Municipal Finance Management was established to assist 

and provide technical support to delegated municipalities. The MSP is committed to supporting its 

clients and identifying ways to improve service delivery by supporting and assisting municipalities. The 

program also places emphasis on capacity building to ensure improvements effected are sustainable. 
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supply chain management queries in respect of the RT25/2016 was forward to the Office of 

Chief Procurement officer for input where necessary. 

 Execution of onsite assessments to determine the overall status of municipalities. This was 

completed and an mSCOA Implementation status dashboard provided to all delegated 

municipalities. 

Training provided consisted of the following: 

 mSCOA and Annual Financial Statement Alignment. 

 The use of segments and corrections required. 

 Budgeting and Transacting in mSCOA. 

 mSCOA Fundaments and mSCOA reporting requirements at identified municipalities. 

The mSCOA team continues to support municipalities in addressing queries with the chart and assisting 

with budgeting and clearing of validation errors on the data files. The focus is further on ensuring that 

the transactional data and the annual financial statements are credible. 

 

Municipal Support Program (MSP) 

The Municipal Support Program (MSP) within Municipal Finance Management was established to assist 

and provide technical support to delegated municipalities. The MSP is committed to supporting its 

clients and identifying ways to improve service delivery by supporting and assisting municipalities. The 

program also places emphasis on capacity building to ensure improvements effected are sustainable. 2
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The 2019/20 target was for MSP to implement 10 projects at municipalities. A total of eleven (11) 

projects were implemented at nine (9) municipalities during 2019/20. 

The VAT Review initiative was implemented at two (2) municipalities in the 2019/20 financial year. The 

initiative is intended to address the shortcomings relating to the management of VAT. The filing of VAT 

returns by municipalities and the processes associated with this function have often been outsourced to 

service providers which resulted in external resources preparing and filing the returns on behalf of the 

municipality at a considerable cost thereto. In addition, the municipal officials have not necessarily been 

trained in the tasks involved and could be unaware of the best practices to follow in fulfilling these 

responsibilities. The VAT Review initiative aims to capacitate municipalities to undertake the function on 

their own. 

The PAYE Review was implemented at three (3) municipalities in the 2019/20 financial year. The 

initiative is intended to assist municipalities in complying with SARS to ensure that no VAT refunds are 

withheld due to PAYE non-compliance, the PAYE returns are processed to prevent fruitless and 

wasteful expenditure in the form of interest and penalties as well as to capacitate municipal officials. 

The review is conducted for the previous five financial years. 

Municipal Finance Management also identified the need to instil the practice of effective grant 

management in a municipal environment. The MSP provided structured support through the grant 

management training initiative at five (5) municipalities during the 2019/20 financial year. The MSP 

performed on site assessments of the grant management function at the selected municipalities in order 

to identify any weaknesses or inefficiencies which were addressed in the customised training sessions 

that were conducted. This initiative presents a holistic approach to effective grant management with the 

intention of embedding key foundation principles in a municipal environment, covering areas such as 

municipal planning, budgeting, financial accounting and reporting, cash management, compliance as 

well as document management.  

The MSP also provided Municipal Finance technical support to one municipality as part of an 

intervention team to address the outstanding Eskom debt. 

List of Municipalities supported by MSP during 2019/20 

No. Name of Municipality VAT PAYE Grant 
Management 

Municipal Finance 
Technical Support 

1 Mpofana LM 
2 iMpendle LM 
3 uThukela DM 
4 Newcastle LM 
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5 Mandeni LM   

6 KwaDukuza LM 
7 Ndwedwe LM 
8 iLembe DM 
9 Harry Gwala DM   

 
2.2  Service Delivery Improvement Plan (SDIP) 
The Service Delivery Improvement Plan (SDIP 2018 – 2021) for KZN Provincial Treasury is 

informed by the 2015-2020 Strategic Plan and is aligned to the Annual Performance Plan for 

2018/19. To this end, the primary focus to the Department is the optimum and transparent 

allocation of financial resources whilst enhancing revenue generation and financial management 

practices in compliance with applicable legislation and corporate governance principles so as to 

ensure prudent financial management within provincial departments, municipalities and public 

entities within KwaZulu-Natal. With this in mind, this SDIP had set out the priority areas of service 

improvement that KZN Treasury will focus over the next three years. 

 

Assurance Services within the Internal Audit Unit assesses its performance on an annual basis. 

This business component has, for the past and current years, experienced two main challenges. 

The first challenge has been human resources constraints which has compelled the unit to utilize 

external service providers who have put a lot of pressure on the unit’s budget. Another challenge 

has been poor cooperation from client departments in terms of timely submission of management 

responses to the audit reports. The third and key challenge has been inadequate allocated budget 

for the unit which has led to curtailing the annual audit plans for client Departments. 

 

The annual audit plans of all fourteen (14) Provincial Departments were not completed by the end 

of the financial year (31st March 2020) which has led to ineffectiveness of the Unit’s service. In 

terms of the provincial arrangements, Departments are entirely depending on Provincial Internal 

Audit Service to comply with Sections 38 & 77 of PFMA, and failure to complete annual audit plans 

has led to automatic failure by Departments to comply with the relevant legislations. On average 

the unit has achieved 85% of the combined annual audit plans (14) for the financial year under 

reporting. The percentage of achievement was as a result of 15 audit projects that were 

cancelled/carried over to the 2020/21 financial year, out of a total of 267 audits that were initially 

planned. Non-achievement of the 267 audits for 2019/20 financial year was mainly due to the 

challenges with the Departments not being timely responsive to audit requests. In addition, some of 

the audits were under planned in terms of the nature and complexities of the audit areas. 
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Due to the low level of risk management maturity in provincial departments, public entities and 

municipalities, Provincial Treasury, through the Risk Management Unit is required by the PFMA, 

and the National and Provincial Risk Management Frameworks to assist these institutions in 

building the necessary capacity and to monitor these institutions’ compliance with the prescribed 

risk management processes. The key challenges faced by the Unit is that most of these institutions 

seek Provincial Treasury’s assistance on risk assessments and other risk-related needs such as 

risk management training, whereas the Unit has limited human resources and budget capacity to 

promptly and adequately respond to these requests. The Unit has revised the Provincial Risk 

Management Framework to expand on the minimum risk management standards, and to provide 

guidelines to provincial departments and municipalities. These two frameworks have been shared 

with the Provincial Audit and Risk Committee and the MEC, and they are envisaged to be approved 

by 30 June 2020. Once approved, these frameworks will assist in providing guidance in the 

development of credible risk registers and facilitation of risk assessments at departments and 

municipalities levels.  
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2.3  Key policy developments and legislative changes 

The department did not have any major changes to relevant policies or legislation that may 

have affected the operations during the 2019/20 financial year or future financial periods.  

B3 STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED GOALS 

The strategic goals of the Provincial Treasury are as follows:  
 
Goal 1: To promote sound financial management practices and fiscal management to achieve 

good governance. 

Goal 2: To ensure targeted financial resource allocation and promote utilization that contributes 

to improved service delivery.  

Goal 3: To promote sound processes, controls and improved capabilities in Departments, 

Municipalities and Public Entities in order to reduce unauthorized, irregular, fruitless and 

wasteful expenditure thereby improving audit outcomes. 

Goal 4: To facilitate and monitor infrastructure delivery in the province thereby contributing 

towards inclusive economic growth. 
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 5.  Transfer Payments 

N/A 
6.   Conditional Grants 

N/A 
7. Donor Funds 

 Donor assistance includes both cash and in-kind contributions. Reporting on donor assistance  

Name of donor   Fight Against HIV/Aids,TB & Malaria 

Full amount of the funding  420 million 

Period of the commitment  2015/16-2019/20 

Purpose of the funding  Fight Against HIV/Aids,TB & Malaria 

Expected outputs  Preventing new HIV, STI and TB infections, 

sustaining health and wellness, as well as ensuring 

protection of human rights and improving access to 

 Justice. 

Actual outputs achieved Preventing new HIV, STI and TB infections, 

sustaining health and wellness, as well as ensuring 

protection of human rights and improving access to 

 justice. 

Amount received in current period (R’000)  268 million 

Amount spent by the department (R’000)  268 million 

Reasons for the funds unspent   N/A 

Monitoring mechanism by the donor  Quarterly reporting 

 

8.  Capital Investment 

N/A 
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PART C: GOVERNANCE 

C. 1 Introduction 

The world is grappling with the containment of the novel Covid-19 pandemic that has struck the 

globe and brought economies to its knees.  

 

The UN’s Framework for the Immediate Socio-Economic Response to the COVID 19 

Crisis warns that “The COVID-19 pandemic is far more than a health crisis: it is affecting 

societies and economies at their core. While the impact of the pandemic will vary from 

country to country, it will most likely increase poverty and inequalities at a global scale . 

More than ever before effective and efficient governance in the public sector is now an 

obligation as it encourages better decision making and the efficient use of resources and 

strengthens accountability for the stewardship of those resources.  

Against this backdrop, KZN Provincial Treasury continues its commitment to maintain the 

highest level of good governance through reporting and feedback that promotes honesty and 

accountability 

C. 2   Risk Management 

Albert Einstein said "learn from yesterday, live for today, hope for tomorrow. The important 

thing is not to stop questioning." The world is collectively questioning everything as we 

navigate a new normal – COVID-19. More than ever before risk management has been thrust 

to the forefront.  

The discipline of risk management, mainly consist of identifying threats and opportunities to an 

organization’s short, medium and long-term strategic objectives; and presenting response 

strategies to tackle these uncertainties. The COVID-19 pandemic clearly presents risk 

managers with an opportunity to launch and strengthen value propositions. Hence, the “new” 

normal has created the need for revised policies and procedures that address. Consequently, 

KZN Provincial Treasury has strengthened its risk governance framework to include the 

emergence of a pandemic and how the department will respond in various risk related  

The risk management committee continues to assist the Accounting Officer in discharging his 

accountability for risk management by reviewing the effectiveness of the departments risk 

management system, practices and procedures and proving recommendations for 

improvement.  

During the period under review, the establishment of a COVID-19 committee was 

commissioned to deal with and respond to risks emanating as a result of the pandemic.  

 

 

-147- 
  

PART C: GOVERNANCE 

C. 1 Introduction 

The world is grappling with the containment of the novel Covid-19 pandemic that has struck the 

globe and brought economies to its knees.  

 

The UN’s Framework for the Immediate Socio-Economic Response to the COVID 19 

Crisis warns that “The COVID-19 pandemic is far more than a health crisis: it is affecting 

societies and economies at their core. While the impact of the pandemic will vary from 

country to country, it will most likely increase poverty and inequalities at a global scale . 

More than ever before effective and efficient governance in the public sector is now an 

obligation as it encourages better decision making and the efficient use of resources and 

strengthens accountability for the stewardship of those resources.  

Against this backdrop, KZN Provincial Treasury continues its commitment to maintain the 

highest level of good governance through reporting and feedback that promotes honesty and 

accountability 

C. 2   Risk Management 

Albert Einstein said "learn from yesterday, live for today, hope for tomorrow. The important 

thing is not to stop questioning." The world is collectively questioning everything as we 

navigate a new normal – COVID-19. More than ever before risk management has been thrust 

to the forefront.  

The discipline of risk management, mainly consist of identifying threats and opportunities to an 

organization’s short, medium and long-term strategic objectives; and presenting response 

strategies to tackle these uncertainties. The COVID-19 pandemic clearly presents risk 

managers with an opportunity to launch and strengthen value propositions. Hence, the “new” 

normal has created the need for revised policies and procedures that address. Consequently, 

KZN Provincial Treasury has strengthened its risk governance framework to include the 

emergence of a pandemic and how the department will respond in various risk related  

The risk management committee continues to assist the Accounting Officer in discharging his 

accountability for risk management by reviewing the effectiveness of the departments risk 

management system, practices and procedures and proving recommendations for 

improvement.  

During the period under review, the establishment of a COVID-19 committee was 

commissioned to deal with and respond to risks emanating as a result of the pandemic.  

2
0
0
3
1
1
9
0
 K

Z
N

 T
re

a
s
u
ry

.o
ld

.j
o
b
 1

0
/1

4
/2

0
2
0
 0

8
:3

9
:0

0
 1

4
8
 A

 B
la

c
k

Y
e
llo

w
M

a
g
e
n
ta

C
y
a
n



 

 

-148- 
  

The department continues to maintain a consolidated risk register which encompasses 

strategic, operational, IT, Business Continuity and COVID-19 risks.  

The Audit Committee continues to provide an independent oversight over the system of risk 

management and monitors its effectiveness. The Audit committee oversees the system of 

internal controls and ensures that the department is compliant with laws and regulations. 

C. 3  Fraud and Corruption 

Corruption in the public sector has and always will continue to be a thorn in the side of any 

government throughout the world. Irrespective of what control measures are put in place, 

corruption remains a problem in many respects. It undermines the authority and the credibility 

of the government and its employees, it has an effect on the economic balance of the country 

and it plays a major role in the spread of economic crimes in general. 

Over this period, the department has established an ethics committee. The ethics committee 

is chaired by the Accounting Officer and provides feed-back to the risk committee on 

matters within its scope. The Ethics Committee ensures that the department operates in an 

atmosphere of accountability, though, amongst other, the review of departmental Ethics 

Policies and recommended changes. 

The department supports and fosters a culture of zero tolerance to fraud in all its 

manifestations. Our employees are encouraged to report all incidents of fraud to their 

immediate supervisors.  All fraud is investigated by our forensic division and followed up by the 

application of all remedies available within the full extent of the law as well as application of 

appropriate prevention and detection controls. 

The department’s fraud prevention policy and plan has been revised. The department 

continues to utilise the National anti–corruption hotline for the reporting of suspected fraud and 

corruption incidents. The department follows up on all information received through the hotline.  

C. 4 Minimising Conflict of Interest 

All officials in the department are expected to avoid all personal activities and financial interests 

which could conflict with their responsibilities to the department. In preventing conflict of 

interest, all officials were obliged to complete financial disclosure forms, which is an annual 

practice. The financial disclosures statements includes certification that the assets and financial 

activities of each staff member, their spouses and family do not pose a conflict of interest with 

their official duties. Due to the nature of their duties all employees in the Financial Management 

(CFO) unit were further expected to sign a code of conduct. 

 

 

-148- 
  

The department continues to maintain a consolidated risk register which encompasses 

strategic, operational, IT, Business Continuity and COVID-19 risks.  

The Audit Committee continues to provide an independent oversight over the system of risk 

management and monitors its effectiveness. The Audit committee oversees the system of 

internal controls and ensures that the department is compliant with laws and regulations. 

C. 3  Fraud and Corruption 

Corruption in the public sector has and always will continue to be a thorn in the side of any 

government throughout the world. Irrespective of what control measures are put in place, 

corruption remains a problem in many respects. It undermines the authority and the credibility 

of the government and its employees, it has an effect on the economic balance of the country 

and it plays a major role in the spread of economic crimes in general. 

Over this period, the department has established an ethics committee. The ethics committee 

is chaired by the Accounting Officer and provides feed-back to the risk committee on 

matters within its scope. The Ethics Committee ensures that the department operates in an 

atmosphere of accountability, though, amongst other, the review of departmental Ethics 

Policies and recommended changes. 

The department supports and fosters a culture of zero tolerance to fraud in all its 

manifestations. Our employees are encouraged to report all incidents of fraud to their 

immediate supervisors.  All fraud is investigated by our forensic division and followed up by the 

application of all remedies available within the full extent of the law as well as application of 

appropriate prevention and detection controls. 

The department’s fraud prevention policy and plan has been revised. The department 

continues to utilise the National anti–corruption hotline for the reporting of suspected fraud and 

corruption incidents. The department follows up on all information received through the hotline.  

C. 4 Minimising Conflict of Interest 

All officials in the department are expected to avoid all personal activities and financial interests 

which could conflict with their responsibilities to the department. In preventing conflict of 

interest, all officials were obliged to complete financial disclosure forms, which is an annual 

practice. The financial disclosures statements includes certification that the assets and financial 

activities of each staff member, their spouses and family do not pose a conflict of interest with 

their official duties. Due to the nature of their duties all employees in the Financial Management 

(CFO) unit were further expected to sign a code of conduct. 

2
0
0
3
1
1
9
0
 K

Z
N

 T
re

a
s
u
ry

.o
ld

.j
o
b
 1

0
/1

4
/2

0
2
0
 0

8
:3

9
:0

0
 1

4
9
 A

 B
la

c
k

Y
e
llo

w
M

a
g
e
n
ta

C
y
a
n



 

 

-149- 
  

Declaration of interests and impartiality forms were signed by bid committee members during 

each sitting. Bid Committee members are required to excuse themselves if a conflict of interest 

exists in the process. Bidders are expected to declare their personal and business interests on 

the standard bidding documents when submitting offers.  

C. 5 Code of Conduct 

The department continues to conduct workshops on the amended code of conduct in terms of 

the new Public Service Regulations 2016, to ensure that employees understand and adhere to 

the expectations of the public service code of conduct. Employees are discouraged to receive 

gifts or payments which are or may be construed as being a bribe. All employees are compliant 

with the submission of Financial Disclosures on an annual basis which is verified by the Ethics 

Officer of the Department to identify potential/actual conflicts of interest. 

Declaration of interests and impartiality forms were signed by bid committee members during 

each evaluation (delete) sitting. Bid Committee members are required to excuse themselves if 

a conflict of interest exist in the process. Bidders are expected to declare their personal and 

business interests on the standard bidding documents when submitting proposals change to 

offers.  

C. 6 Health, Safety and Environmental Issues 

The Department is committed to create a healthy and safe working environment for all its 

employees. Health and Safety is an element of an approved departmental Business Continuity 

Plan.  In compliance with the Occupational Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993, the department 

has provided and maintained as far as reasonable and practicable a working environment that 

is safe and without risk to the health of its employees and its customers. An approved OHS 

Policy is available and Policy Statement is posted on strategic entrance areas as mandatory. 

The department temporarily appointment an OHS Specialist for a period of twelve months, 

which is one of the mitigations to adhere to the mandatory appointments while the 

organisational structure is under review. Both the employer and employees have a joint 

responsibility in ensuring their safety and that of others such as visitors by complying with all 

the safety measures that are put in place.  Mandatory fire drills are conducted within prescribed 

intervals while regular OHS inspections are conducted by appointed and trained OHS 

representative. The representatives further identify potential hazards and where possible, 

reduce the level of risk by recommending and putting in place safety precautions while 

elevating such in quarterly OHS Committee meetings for discussion. 
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Mandatory training of OHS representatives is maintained within prescribed period for new 

appointments and provisions of refresher trainings. OHS awareness are conducted by means 

of circulars and Policy workshops to business units at an ongoing approach.  Mandatory 

quarterly reporting to Department of Public Service and Administration is maintained through a 

compliance tool signed by the HOD.  Employees are encouraged to report any potential risk 

emanating from their work and all incidents that happen within their workspace that might 

cause injury, in order to prevent recurring incidents of the same nature. First Aid provision is 

available to Departmental employees through the appointed and trained First Aiders for minor 

injuries.  First Aid boxes are well placed in all floors with relevant signage and they are 

regularly replenished. 

C. 7 Portfolio Committees 

The department had the following meetings with the Portfolio Committee.  

Date of Meetings  Matters for discussion  

10 July 2019 Briefing on KZN Appropriation Bill 

11 July 2019 Presentation of the 2019/20 Budget and APP, Consideration of 

2018/19 Fourth Quarter Financial and Non-Financial Performance 

Report 

17 July 2019  Briefing on the 2018/19 Unaudited Closeout Report for Departments 

and entities 

04 October 2019 Presentation of Strategic Plan 2019-2024, Presentation of First Draft 
2020/21 Budget and APP , presentation of 2019/20 First Quarter 
Financial and Non-Financial Performance report 
 

08 November 2019 Briefing on 2019/20 Midyear Budget Performance report 

06 December 2019 Stakeholder engagement in Durnacol, Amajuba District to present 
draft 2020/21 Budget and APP 
 

19 March 2020 2020/21 Budget and APP presentation for Vote 6: Treasury 

 

The department responded to all matters raised at the meetings in the form of written and oral 

representations. No major concerns were raised by the portfolio committee. 
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C. 8 SCOPA Resolutions 

During the year under review, the department was once invited to the Portfolio Committee for 

SCOPA resolutions. The following matters were raised for discussion.  

Resolution 
No  

Subject Details Response by the 
department  

Resolved 
(Yes/No)  

Resolution 
17/2019 

Irregular Expenditure 
of R25 706 000 

Investigation since 
treasury did not 
receive 
authorisation  

Report was submitted 
to the premier for 
action  

No  

Resolution 
18/2019 

Rationalisation of 
provincial public 
entities 

Progress on  
rationalisation of 
public entities  

Report submitted - 
rationalisation still in 
progress 

No  

Resolution 
19/2019 

Condonation of 
irregular expenditure 

Irregular 
expenditure in the 
AFS of KZN 
provincial 
departments  

Progress report for all 
departments was 
submitted 

Yes 

Resolution 
20 /2019 

Investigations by 
Provincial Internal 
Audit Services (PIAS) 

Status of 
investigations by 
PIAS 

Report submitted Yes 

Resolution 
21/2019 

Provincial Bid Appeals 
Tribunal 

Composition of 
Committee, status 
of appeals 
received, 
turnaround times 
for completion and 
progress report 

Progress report 
submitted 

Yes 

 

C. 9 Prior Modifications to Audit Reports 

There were no prior modifications to the AG’s report.  KZN Treasury continued to maintain a 
clean audit opinion in the current year’s audit. 

C. 10 Internal Control Unit 

Internal Control is responsible for assisting management to ensure that adequate and effective 

financial control systems are in place and that the department complies with the financial 

management prescripts in its pursuit to achieve its strategic goals.  

During the year under, Internal Control activities included amongst others the following:   

 Verification of payments before and after processing in order to ensure validity and 

accuracy; 

 Identification of internal control weaknesses and provision of recommendations; 

 Facilitation of Audit requests & Monitoring of the implementation of internal and external 

audit action plans; 

 Issuing of circulars to regulate internal processes and procedures; 
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 Review of monthly management accounts; 

 Preparation of AFS working papers. 

 Review of policies and procedure manuals 

 

C. 11 Internal Audit and Audit Committees 

1. Audit Committee 

11.1 Objective of the Provincial Audit and Risk Committee  

The Executive Council has established the Provincial Audit and Risk Committee (PARC) in 

accordance with regulations and instructions prescribed in terms of sections 76 and 77 of the 

Public Finance Management Act, Act No. 1 of 1999 as amended by Act No. 29 of 1999 

(PFMA).  The PARC reports to the Member of Executive Council (MEC) for Finance. 

The KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Government has also established the following three Cluster 

Audit and Risk Committees (CARC), which report directly to the Provincial Audit & Risk 

Committee (PARC): 

 Governance, State, Capacity and Institutional Development (GSCID) Cluster 

 Economic Sector and Infrastructure Development (ESID) Cluster 

 Social Protection, Community & Human Development Cluster 

The Provincial Treasury is governed by the ESID Cluster Audit & Risk Committee which is 

constituted by 3 members of the PARC.   

11.2 Key Activities of the ESID Cluster Audit and Risk Committee during the year 

The ESID CARC exercised their responsibility as embedded in the audit and risk committee 

Charter as follows:    

Internal Controls, Accounting Systems & Internal Audit 
Review of the internal audit reports to manage critical risks  and to ensure the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the departmental internal control structure including: 

 Financial and internal controls,  
 Accounting systems and reporting and 
 Corporate governance  

Review any significant matters reported by the internal auditors and the extent to which the 
recommendations have been implemented by management; and provide any additional 
recommendations to Accounting Officers. 

Direct the Accounting Officer to provide status reports detailing the progress made in implementing the 
Committee’s recommendations. 
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Through PIAS reports, evaluate IT governance systems and the related internal controls. 

Ensure that the relevant departmental management demonstrates accountability over internal control 
functions. 

Consider the fact and potential of any limitation on the scope of internal audit, and if there is, report to the 
MEC for Finance via the Provincial Audit & Risk Committee.  

Fraud Prevention 

Ensure that the Accounting Officer develops and implement strategies, policies, procedures and systems 
to prevent and detect fraud and corruption 

Ensure that the Accounting Officer demonstrates some pro-activeness in maintaining anti-fraud and 
corruption strategies to protect the Provincial assets entrusted to them 

Review and evaluate the effectiveness of such strategies, policies/procedures. 

Should a report to the Audit Committee, whether from the PIAS or any other source, implicate the 
Accounting Officer in fraud, corruption or negligence, the chairperson of the CARC must promptly report 
this to the relevant executive authority via the Chairperson of PARC.  

Financial Statements 

Ensure that the timing and nature of reports from the external auditor(s) are in accordance and comply 
with the requirements of the PFMA. 

Consider key matters arising in the AGSA management report and audit report (including illegal acts or 
irregularities) and satisfy themselves that they are being properly followed up and resolved. 

Consider the reports and function of the External Audit Steering committee to ensure that external audits 
are performed efficiently and that management co-operates with the AGSA. 

Comment on its evaluation of the annual financial statements, the interim financial reports, the preliminary 
announcement of the AGSA report and any other announcement regarding the KZNPG’s results or other 
financial information to be made public, prior to the submission to and approval by the Accounting Officer 
and/or Executive Authority. 

Consider any accounting treatments, significant unusual transactions, or accounting judgments, which 
could be contentious to ensure that these are properly addressed. 

In line with TR 3.1.13 (b), comment on the quality of IYM and monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms 
of the PFMA and DoRA. 

Risk Oversight 

The Committee is an integral component of the risk management process and shall oversee: 

 Financial reporting risks 
 Fraud risk as it relates to financial reporting 
 IT risk as it relates to financial reporting 
 All other strategic and operational risks that may impede the department from achieving their 

business objectives. 
Review the procedures for identifying business risks and mitigating their impact on the department. 
Ensure that the Accounting Officer and Accounting Authority maintains and regularly reviews the system 
of risk management within their areas of responsibilities.  
Review the results of the risk assessment to determine the material risks to which the departments may 
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be exposed and evaluate strategies to mitigate those risks. 
Ensure that the Accounting Officer has incorporated reputational and ethical risks and opportunities in the 
risk management process. 
Combined Assurance 

Ensure a coordinated approach to all assurance activities, and in particular the CARC shall:  

 Ensure that the combined assurance model relevant to the department is appropriate to address all 
the significant risks facing the department.  

 Monitor the relationship between the external and internal assurance providers.  
 Comment on the effectiveness of the combined assurance model.  

Integrated Reporting 

Review the integrated report, including the financial statements, and should have regard to all factors and 
risks that may impact on the integrity of the integrated report, and in particular the Committee must:  

 Have regard to all factors that may impact on the integrity of the integrated/ annual report, including 
factors that may predispose management to present a misleading picture, significant judgements and 
reporting decisions made, monitoring or enforcement actions by a regulatory body, any evidence that 
brings into question previously published information; forward looking statements or information.  
a) Review disclosure of sustainability issues in the integrated report to ensure that it does not conflict 

with the financial information.  
b) Comment in the annual financial report on the financial statements, the accounting practices and 

the effectiveness of the internal financial controls.  
c) Consider whether the content of the summarised information provides a balanced view.  

Ethics 

Review the internal audit reports on compliance with the ethical code of conduct and policies of the 
Department based on the number of statutory, common law and other requirements which cover the 
ethical behaviour of senior management, and officials of the Departments. 

Identify through PIAS reports, any violation of ethical conduct, environmental and social issues. 

Provide advice on any identified potential conflict of interest. 

Reporting Responsibilities 

The Committees must report and make recommendations to the Accounting Officer on a regular basis 
(TR 3.1.12) – preferably quarterly. 

The Committees should engage with Accounting Officers of respective departments at least on a 
quarterly basis. 

The Committees may communicate any concerns they deem necessary to the executive authorities, 
Head of Provincial Treasury and the AG SA (TR 3.1.15). 

 
11.3 Information on the Audit Committee Members 

The following seven members served as Provincial Audit & Risk Committee members during 

the period under review. The Committee members’ attendance of meetings during the 2019/20 

financial year is as depicted in the following table: 
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Name Qualifications 
Internal 

or 
External 
member 

If Internal, 
position in 

the 
Department 

Date 
Appointed 

Date 
Contract 
Renewed 

No. of 
PARC 

meetings 
attended  

No. of 
CARC 

meetings 
attended 

Mr S P 
Simelane 
(Acting 
Chairperson of 
PARC and ESID 
CARC) 

CA(SA)  External N/A 23 February 
2015 

30 October 
2015 10 4 

Mr M Tarr  
(ESID CARC) 

MSc 
Agricultural 
Economics 

 

External N/A 01 May 2018  - 10 4 

Mr V Ramphal 
(ESID CARC) CA(SA)  External N/A 23 February 

2015 
30 October 

2015 10 4 

Mr P 
Christianson CA(SA) External N/A 23 February 

2015 
30 October 

2015 10 4 

Ms T Njozela MBA External N/A 23 February 
2015 

30 October 
2015 10 4 

Mr D O’Conor CA(SA)  External N/A 23 February 
2015 

30 October 
2015 10 4 

Ms N Sithole CA (SA)  
 

External N/A 01 May 2018  
RESIGNED 
07 October 

2019 
3 1 

 

C. 12 Report of the Audit Committee 

12.1 Objective and responsibility of the Audit and Risk Committee 
 
The Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from the Public 

Finance Management Act, No.1 of 1999 (PFMA), Treasury Regulations 3.1, including all other 

related prescripts and is pleased to present its report for the financial year ended 31 March 

2020. 

The Provincial Audit and Risk Committee (PARC) is the shared audit and risk committee for the 

provincial departments, and is further sub-divided into three Cluster Audit & Risk Committees 

(CARC’s) that provide oversight of key functions to the KZN Provincial Government 

Departments. The KZN Provincial Treasury is served by the Economic Cluster Audit & Risk 

Committee.  

The Committee has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference contained in its Audit and 

Risk Committee Charter and has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter; and 

reports that it has discharged all of its responsibilities as contained therein.  

12.2 Audit Committee Members and Attendance  

The PARC and Economic CARC consists of the members listed hereunder who have met as 

reflected below, in line with the its approved terms of reference.  
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* Refers to PARC members who do not serve on the Economic CARC 

12.3 The Effectiveness of Internal Control  

Our review of the reports provided by the Provincial Internal Audit Service (PIAS), revealed that 

the systems of internal controls were effective in the Department, except for the problems 

surrounding the development of the E-Procurement system.   

The Committee considered the appropriateness of the agreed management interventions to the 

address the control weaknesses identified and advised management to implement same 

timeously, to avoid the recurrence of findings.  

12.4 Effectiveness of Internal Audit 

The Committee has, through the CARC monitoring processes, considered internal audit reports 

on the adequacy and effectiveness of controls designed to mitigate the risks associated with 

the operational and strategic activities of the Department, at its quarterly meetings.  

The PIAS planned to conduct seven (7) audit assignments for the period under review, of 

which six (6) were finalised and one (1) was carried over to the 2020/21 financial year with the 

approval of the Audit Committee.  

The PIAS performed effectively during the period under review; notwithstanding concerns 

raised by the Committee in respect of the financial and other limitations imposed upon the unit. 

The Committee will monitor the progress made by the PIAS against its operational plans in 

order to ensure that it continues to fulfil its mandate and add value to the department.  

12.5 Risk Management  

The responsibilities of the Committee with respect to risk management are formally defined in 

its Charter. For the period under review, the Committee’s responsibilities have been focused, 

No. Name of Member  PARC 
Meetings 
Attended 

Economic CARC 
Meetings  Attended 

1. Mr S Simelane (Acting Chairman of PARC and Economic 

CARC) 
4 of 4 4 of 4 

2 Mr V Ramphal   4 of 4 4 of 4 

3. Mr P Christianson  4 of 4 4 of 4 

4. Ms T Njozela 4 of 4 N/A* 

5. Mr D O’Connor 4 of 4 N/A* 
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amongst other things, on the quarterly review of the Department’s risk register and monitoring 

progress against the Risk Management Operational Plan. 

As at the end of the 2019/20 financial year, the status of the Department’s risk register was as 

follows:  

 Risk Grouping 
Total 

Critical Major Moderate Minor Insignificant 
Number of Identified Risks  2 2 11 29 5 49 

Number  of Identified 

Action Plans   
5 8 18 8 1 40 

Number of Completed 

Action Plans. 
5 8 16 8 1 38 

 

Although the department is commended on the recently updated risk register and the high 

completion rate of its risk mitigation plans, the Committee is still concerned about the 

department’s failure to update its risk register regularly on a quarterly basis. The Department is 

urged to ensure the implementation of the outstanding risk mitigation plans and to regard the 

risk register as a dynamic document which should be reviewed and updated on a quarterly 

basis. The Department is also requested to address the slow progress it has made in 

implementing the agreed action plans in respect of Risk Maturity and Fraud Prevention.  

 Quality of in year management and monthly/quarterly reports 

The Committee was satisfied with the content and quality of quarterly reports in respect of in 

year management and quarterly performance, prepared and issued by the Accounting Officer 

of the Department during the year under review, in terms of the PFMA and the Division of 

Revenue Act.  

12.6 Evaluation of Financial Statements  

The Committee has: 

 Reviewed and discussed the Annual Financial Statements, including the audit report, with 

the Auditor General and the Accounting Officer; 

 Reviewed the Auditor General’s Management Report; 
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 Reviewed the Department’s processes for compliance with legal and regulatory provisions 

and did not identify any instances of material non-compliance; and 

 Reviewed the conclusions regarding the reliability and usefulness of performance 

information. 

12.7 Forensics Investigations  

The Committee noted that there were thirteen (13) forensic investigations from 2009 to date, all 

relating to alleged procurement irregularities, HR irregularities and mismanagement of funds, 

which the Department has referred to the PIAS for investigation. Twelve (12) of these 

investigations were completed and one (1) is in-progress. The Committee further noted that 

there is a recommendation to register a criminal case emanating from one (1) investigation. 

The department and the PIAS are urged to promptly finalize the outstanding investigation, and 

work together to implement the recommendations made in the finalised investigations.  

The Committee further noted the PIAS’ failure to develop and roll-out the Case Management 

System as planned. 

12.8 Auditor-General’s Report 

The Committee has monitored the implementation of corrective action plans to address the 

audit issues raised by the Auditor General in the prior year. The Committee has met with the 

Auditor General of South Africa to discuss and evaluate the major issues that emanated from 

the current regulatory audit. The Committee will ensure that corrective actions in respect of the 

detailed findings emanating from the current regulatory audit continue to be monitored on a 

quarterly basis through the CARC processes. 

The Committee concurs and accepts the conclusion of the Auditor General’s unqualified 

opinion on the Annual Financial Statements, and is of the opinion that the Audited Annual 

Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor General. 

The Committee commends the Department on obtaining an unqualified audit opinion without 

findings. 

12.9 Appreciation  

The Committee wishes to express its appreciation to the Management of the Department, the 

Auditor  General of South Africa, and the Provincial Internal Audit Services for the co-operation 

and support they have provided to enable us to compile this report. 
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_______________________ 

Mr S Simelane 
Acting Chairman: Provincial Audit and Risk Committee 
27 August 2020  
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Mr S Simelane 
Acting Chairman: Provincial Audit and Risk Committee 
27 August 2020  
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13 B-BBEE Compliance Performance Information 
 
The following table has been completed in accordance with the compliance to the BBBEE 
requirements of the BBBEE Act of 2013 and as determined by the Department of Trade and 
Industry.   
 
Has the Department / Public Entity applied any relevant Code of Good Practice (B-
BBEE Certificate Levels 1 – 8) with regards to the following: 

Criteria 
Response 
Yes / No 

Discussion 
(include a discussion on your response and 
indicate what measures have been taken to 

comply) 

Determining qualification 
criteria for the issuing of 
licences, concessions or other 
authorisations in respect of 
economic activity in terms of 
any law? 

No The Department does not issue any 
authorisations in respect of economic activity  

Developing and implementing 
a preferential procurement 
policy? 

Yes Department has SCM Policy and 
Professional Service Providers Rotation 
Policy that are in line with the objectives of 
the PPPFA  

Determining qualification 
criteria for the sale of state-
owned enterprises? 

No This is not applicable to the Department 

Developing criteria for entering 
into partnerships with the 
private sector? 

Yes Bids are invited with prequalification criteria.  

Determining criteria for the 
awarding of incentives, grants 
and investment schemes in 
support of Broad Based Black 
Economic Empowerment? 

Yes Preferential point system is considered in the 
awarding of bids and quotations 
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D 1. INTRODUCTION  
The information contained in this part of the annual report has been prescribed by the 

Minister for the Public Service and Administration for all departments in the public service. 

D 2. OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
2.1 Status of Human Resources in the Department 

The Filling of vacant posts and the overall turnaround time to fill vacancies is affected by the 

moratorium on the filling of non-critical posts in the Province, where approval to fill critical posts 

is first obtained from the Premier of the Province. The vacancy rate of the Department has 

increased to 17.20% in comparison to 14.80% as per the 2018/2019 vacancy rate. The 

Department still faces challenges in terms of attracting and employing people with disabilities 

and females at SMS level into the permanent structure, however there has been improvement 

in both areas with Women at SMS at 42% and People with disabilities at 1.80%. 
 

2.2 Human Resource priorities for the year under review 
Enhanced and improved employee engagement – through effective climate surveys; leadership 

impact analysis; effective exit interview analysis. 

Skill and Talent attraction – prioritizing the recruitment of critical core posts and ensuring the 

correct alignment of competence profile and qualification requirements to the needs of the 

Department.  

Talent Retention – reduction in turnover rate; improvement of management capability through 

leadership impact analysis; greater focus on career management strategies 

Integrated Human Resource Information sessions and Business Unit engagements – improve 

levels of compliance; increase HR knowledge base of all employees; reduction in number of 

grievances received. 
 

2.3 Workforce Planning and key strategies to attract and recruit skilled and capable 
workforce 

The Department has an approved MTEF HR Plan for the period April 2018 to March 2023 has 

been endorsed by the Executing Authority of the Department. All vacancies in the Department 

were advertised to encourage fair and transparent competition. In respect of scarce skilled 

posts partnerships were developed with Professional Associations like SAICA and Institute of 

Internal Auditors to place advertisements within professional magazines to attract correctly 

skilled applicants. Succession Planning is in place for all key critical posts of the Department 

ensuring a pool of competent empowered staff who will compete for these positions when they 

are vacated. The HR Development Committee scrutinizes Bursary applications ensuring 
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qualifications that are funded are in line with the critical needs of the Department and support 

upward mobility of staff. 

 

2.4   Employee Performance Management 
The Department obtained 100% compliance in respect of the signing of SMS Performance 

Agreements, and 97% in respect of those at levels 1 to 12. Non-compliant staff were excluded 

from the receipt of any performance incentives and stringent monitoring mechanisms, including 

the disciplining of supervisors and Line Managers for non-compliant staff have been put in 

place to ensure 100% compliance at all levels going forward. The 18/19 assessments were 

finalized and paid out during the 2nd quarter of the 19/20 assessment year. No grievances 

were received regarding the outcome of the 18/19 performance assessments. The 18/19 

assessment of the Head of Department, was also timeously finalized by the Human Resources 

Directorate. 

2.5    Employee Health and Wellness Program 

The Employee Health and Wellness Section within HRM continues to make a visible impact on 

the lives of employees by increasing the number of Wellness Clinics per month within the 

Department, with noticeable improvements in the number of voluntary on-site testing. Monthly 

articles instilling responsible life style disease management as well as encouraging physical 

fitness and awareness are distributed throughout the Organization and have been extremely 

well received. The Work and Play policy was actively implemented during this year with the 

introduction of Yoga and Aerobics during Office hours, as approved by the Head of Department 

2.6   Achievements and Challenges faced by the Department 

 During 2019/2020, the Human Resource Management Directorate fulfilled all of its 

legislative mandates and delivered an efficient and professional Human Resources 

function to the Department, with no audit findings.   

 The unit has successfully implemented all planned Human Resource Planning and 

WSP priority strategies for the year, thereby ensuring a well capacitated and healthy 

workforce that is appropriately skilled and empowered.  

 The unit has exceeded its requirements in terms of empowering the organisation as a 

whole on all Human Resource related knowledge and information in terms of the 

number of policies that were developed and work-shopped. The organisation as a 

whole is 100 per cent compliant to all requirements of the performance management 

and development system. There has been a significant reduction in the number of 

grievances and misconduct cases within the Department which is largely attributed to 
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the monthly articles that stem from the Labour Desk of the Directorate. Leadership 

impact surveys have also contributed positively in this area. 

 The Unit continues with strategies to implement the Head of Department’s commitment 

to improving EE targets of women in management and people with disabilities, and the 

purchase of assistive devises and Office configuration for people with disabilities were 

also undertaken.  Integrated efforts of the sections within HRM during the year has 

ensured a strong drive for policy compliance, eradication of fraud and corruption, 

responsible sick leave management, well aligned Departmental structures, adequately 

skilled employees and a healthy and well informed workforce.  

 Youth development initiatives are a priority for the Unit. Provincial Treasury’s 

partnership with SAICA on the Thuthuka Bursary Fund, where Treasury is currently 

sponsoring 52 previously disadvantaged students studying towards becoming 

Chartered Accountants is in its 7th year since inception. The partnership has further 

resulted in the Department receiving SAICA accreditation as a Training Office during 

December 2015, and the Department has received its 5thallocation of three Trainee 

Accountants as at January 2020 making it a total of eight (11) trainees who are 

currently undergoing training towards becoming chartered accountants.  

2.7 Future Human Resource Plans/Goals 

 Improved Employee engagement initiatives 

 Talent management, acquisition and retention. 

 Strategic partnering with Line Management to improve Business understanding of HR 

prescripts and mandates; as well as buy in of HR strategies in respect of work force 

planning. 

 Strong drive for continued excellence and legislative compliance. 
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D 4.  Utilisation of Consultants 

The following tables relate information on the utilisation of consultants in the department. In terms of the Public Service 

Regulations “consultant’ means a natural or juristic person or a partnership who or which provides in terms of a specific 

contract on an ad hoc basis any of the following professional services to a department against remuneration received 

from any source: 

 
(a) The rendering of expert advice; 

(b) The drafting of proposals for the execution of specific tasks; and 

The execution of a specific task which is of a technical or intellectual nature, but excludes an employee of a 

department. 
 

Table 3.15.1 Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 
 

Description 
Duration of the 

Project Number of Consultants Amount 

Assist Department of Arts & Culture with Asset 
Disclosure Notes 635 hours  Two Consultants  

             
949,320.00  

Financial Management Support to Dube Tradeport  
727 hours One Consultant 

             
747,719.50  

DAC Annual Financial Statements Compilation & 
Support 635 hours  One Consultant 

             
474,662.50  

Financial Management Support at uThukela District  
1040 hours  One Consultant 

             
861,120.00  

Financial Management Support at uThukela District  
1040 hours  One Consultant 

             
861,120.00  

Financial Management Support at Ugu District 
1040 hours  One Consultant 

          
1,231,880.00  

Grant Management Support at KwaDukuza 
960 hours  One Consultant 

          
1,137,120.00  

Grant Management Support at Harry Gwala 
960 hours  One Consultant 

          
1,137,120.00  

Forensic investigation into alleged fraud & 
mismanagement of funds transferred by KZN 
department of Social Development 

Forensic 
Appointment Five Consultants  

             
496,892.00  

Forensic investigation into procurement irregularities 
at DOH Forensic 

Appointment Eight Consultants  
          
1,497,081.50  

Forensic investigation into abuse of power by senior 
officials at DAC & DSR Forensic 

Appointment Ten Consultants  
             
498,663.00  

Financial Management Support at Ugu District 
1040 hours  One Consultant 

             
861,120.00  

Review & updating of the ERM framework for Local 
Government  Risk Appointment Five Consultants  

             
580,000.00  

KZN Department of Public Works Immovable Asset 
Management & Disclosure note support  820 hours  One Consultant 

             
642,850.00  

Forensic Investigation into various allegations of 
Maladministration & Mismanagement of school Forensic 

Appointment Five Consultants  
             
619,947.75  
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funds DOE 

Forensic Investigation into Intellectual Property theft 
& Potential Irregular Expenditure regarding youth 
projects at DEDTEA 

Forensic 
Appointment Seven Consultants            1,496,305.00  

Transfer payment audit at EDTEA 
200 hours  One Consultant              149,500.00  

Financial Management Support at uThukela District  
1040 hours  One Consultant           1,231,880.00  

Grant Management Support to Ndwedwe 
Municipality 960 hours  One Consultant           1,137,120.00  

Financial Management Support for PPSD 
(Department of Health)  800 hours Two Consultants               728,640.00  

AFS Preparation Support at Department of Social 
Development  720 hours One Consultant              956,340.00  

Financial Management Support for PPSD 
(Department of Health)  800 hours Two Consultants               728,640.00  

Financial Management Support for PPSD 
(Department of Health)  920 hours One Consultant              761,760.00  

MSCOA Implementation support for KZN 
Municipalities  1200 hours  One Consultant           1,421,400.00  

To assist with the provision of Creditors related 
support (Department of Health)  800 hours Two Consultants               728,640.00  

MSCOA Implementation support for KZN 
Municipalities  1280 hours One Consultant           2,502,400.00  

To assist with the provision of Creditors related 
support (Department of Health)  800 hours One Consultant              662,400.00  

To assist with the provision of Creditors related 
support (Department of Health)  800 hours Two Consultants               728,640.00  

MSCOA Implementation support for KZN 
Municipalities  1200 hours   One Consultant            1,421,400.00  

To assist with the provision of Creditors related 
support (Department of Health)  400 hours  One Consultant               473,112.00  

MSCOA Implementation support for KZN 
Municipalities  1200 hours   One Consultant            1,421,400.00  

To assist with the provision of Creditors related 
support (Department of Health)  800 hours  One Consultant               364,320.00  

Financial Management Support for PPSD 
(Department of Health)  920 hours  One Consultant            1,088,157.60  

MSCOA Implementation support for KZN 
Municipalities  1200 hours   One Consultant            1,421,400.00  

Assist with Provision of Credit related support at 
Department of Education  976 hours  One Consultant               767,136.00  

To assist with KZN Public Works Capital 
Commitments  680 hours One Consultant           1,059,208.80  
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To assist with KZN Public Works Capital 
Commitments   590 hours  One Consultant               481,652.40  

To assist with KZN Public Works Capital 
Commitments  500 hours  Two Consultants                564,300.00  

Internal Control Improvement Programme- 
Department of Health Intervention  480 hours  One Consultant               557,520.00  

Internal Control Improvement Programme- 
Department of Health Intervention  480 hours  Six Consultants             3,441,720.00  

Internal Control Improvement Programme- 
Department of Health Intervention  480 hours Two Consultants               789,360.00  

Internal Control Improvement Programme- 
Department of Health Intervention  480 hours Two Consultants               789,360.00  

Internal Control Improvement Programme- 
Department of Health Intervention  480 hours Two Consultants               789,360.00  

Internal Control Improvement Programme- 
Department of Health Intervention  480 hours  One Consultant               394,680.00  

Financial Management Support to Ugu District 
Municipality 1040 hours   One Consultant            1,231,880.00  

Internal Control Improvement Programme- 
Department of Health Intervention  480 hours  Two Consultants                952,200.00  

Grant Management Support to uThukela District 
Municipality 720 hours  One Consultant               852,840.00  

Alteration and Renovations to staff housing at 
Murchison Hospital Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment            5,166,137.85  

Financial Management Support: Review of 
Municipal AFS 170 hours  One Consultant               201,365.00  
Conversion of the College into staff accommodation 
and construction of new student accommodation at 
Nkonjeni Hospital  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment          11,131,646.47  

Financial Management Support: Review of 
Municipal AFS 170 hours  One Consultant               201,365.00  

Financial Management Support: Review of 
Municipal AFS 170 hours  One Consultant              201,365.00  

Financial Management Support: Review of 
Municipal AFS 170 hours  One Consultant               201,365.00  

Financial Management Support: Review of 
Municipal AFS 170 hours  One Consultant               201,365.00  
Assessment of Mpofana Local Municipality 
Electricity Infrastructure and Metering distribution 
tariffs Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment            1,200,000.00  
Assessment of Mpofana Local Municipality 
Electricity Infrastructure and Metering distribution 
tariffs Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment            4,973,328.61  
Audit on Farmer Support & Development- Food 
Security at Department of Agriculture and Rural 
Development  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment            1,044,320.75  

Audit on Human Resource Management at 
Department of Social Development  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               918,706.25  
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Audit on Inventory Management at Department of 
Sports & Recreation  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               536,187.50  

Performance Information Audit at the Department of 
Arts and Culture Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               613,697.50  

Nerve Centre System Audit at the KZN Office of the 
Premier (Quarter 2 & 3) of 2019/20 Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               518,161.25  

Audit on SCM at Department of Agriculture and 
Rural Development  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               800,808.25  

Audit on Performance Information at KZN Office of 
the Premier  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               579,312.50  

Audit on Bursaries at KZN Office of the Premier  
Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               705,928.65  

Audit on Human Resource Management at 
Department of Transport Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment            1,342,165.00  

Audit on expanded Public Works Program EPWP at 
Department of Public Works  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               953,746.75  

Audit on Transfer Payments at Department of 
Sports and Recreation  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               951,596.25  

Audit on SCM at Department of Community Safety 
and Liaison  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               579,312.50  

Audit on SCM at Department of Arts and Culture  
Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               750,208.25  

Audit on SCM at Department of Education  
Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               881,768.25  

Audit of Fleet Management at Department of 
Education  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               881,768.25  

Microsoft Exchange System Audit at KZN 
Department of Community Safety and Liaison  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               189,117.50  

Audit on Supply Chain Management at Department 
of Transport  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment            1,659,363.75  

Audit on Traditional Council at KZN Department of 
COGTA  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               571,337.25  

Audit on Transfer Payment at KZN DEDTEA 
Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment            1,067,976.25  

Audit on SCM at Department of Public Works  
Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment            1,081,891.25  

Audit on Contract Management at the Office of the 
Premier Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               596,505.00  

Audit on SCM at Department of COGTA  
Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               637,272.50  

Audit on Vulindlela Housing Project at Department 
of Human Settlement  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               801,693.75  

Audit on SCM at Department of Human Settlement 
Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               307,500.00  
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Audit on Human Resource Management at 
Department of Transport Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment            1,342,165.00  

Audit on expanded Public Works Program EPWP at 
Department of Public Works  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               953,746.75  

Audit on Transfer Payments at Department of 
Sports and Recreation  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               951,596.25  

Audit on SCM at Department of Community Safety 
and Liaison  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               579,312.50  

Audit on SCM at Department of Arts and Culture  
Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               750,208.25  

Audit on SCM at Department of Education  
Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               881,768.25  

Audit of Fleet Management at Department of 
Education  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               881,768.25  

Microsoft Exchange System Audit at KZN 
Department of Community Safety and Liaison  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               189,117.50  

Audit on Supply Chain Management at Department 
of Transport  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment            1,659,363.75  

Audit on Traditional Council at KZN Department of 
COGTA  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               571,337.25  

Audit on Transfer Payment at KZN DEDTEA 
Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment            1,067,976.25  

Audit on SCM at Department of Public Works  
Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment            1,081,891.25  

Audit on Contract Management at the Office of the 
Premier Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               596,505.00  

Audit on SCM at Department of COGTA  
Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               637,272.50  

Audit on Vulindlela Housing Project at Department 
of Human Settlement  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               801,693.75  

Audit on SCM at Department of Human Settlement 
Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               307,500.00  
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Microsoft Exchange System Audit at KZN 
Department of COGTA (Quarter 2) Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               189,117.50  

Audit on Property Transfer at KZN Human 
Settlement  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment            1,373,220.75  

Financial Management Support: Mpofana Local 
Municipality 800 hours One Consultant              947,600.00  

Financial Management Support: Review of 
Municipal AFS 510 hours  Three Consultants               604,095.00  

Provide SCM Support at Zululand District 
Municipality  1920 hours  Two Consultants            1,159,200.00  

To assist with KZN Public Works Capital 
Commitments   500 hours  One Consultant               282,150.00  

To assist with KZN Public Works Capital 
Commitments   500 hours  One Consultant               282,150.00  

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation Support 
For KZN Municipalities 192 hours One Consultant              375,360.00  

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation Support 
For KZN Municipalities 180 hours One Consultant              213,210.00  

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation Support 
For KZN Municipalities 180 hours one Consultant              213,210.00  

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation Support 
For KZN Municipalities 180 hours one Consultant              213,210.00  

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation Support 
For KZN Municipalities 180 hours one Consultant              213,210.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Be Deployed By 
Provincial Treasury To Provide SCM Support At 
Department Of Arts & Culture For The Period Of 10 
Months 160 hours One Consultant           1,720,400.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Be Deployed By 
Provincial Treasury To Provide Supply Chain 
Management Support At Department of Human 
Settlements For The Period Of Six Months 2880 hours Three Consultants            1,159,200.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Be Deployed By 
Provincial Treasury To Provide Supply Chain 
Management Support At Department of Human 
Settlements For The Period Of Six Months 960 hours  One Consultant              441,600.00  
Execution Of The Computer Network Penetration 
Testing & Investigation Of Identified Email Security 
Breaches Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               350,330.40  
Conditional Assessment/Remedial 
Recommendations and Budget Requirements For 
UMngeni Municipal Owned Flats 380 hours Firm Appointment               304,000.00  

Execution Of Internal Audit Assignments For 
Gaming & Betting Board Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment            1,000,000.00  

Execution Of The Supply Chain Management Audit 
At The Department Of Social Development (DSD) Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               918,706.25  
Execution Of The Transfer Payment Audit At The 
Department OF Cooperative Governance & 
Traditional Affairs Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               568,540.00  
Execution Of The Follow-Up Performance Audit On 
S&T Expenditure AT The Department Of Sports And 
Recreation (DSR) Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               375,417.50  
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Variation Order Investigation Various Allegations Of 
Procument Irregularities & And Corruption KwaZulu-
Natal Department Of Transport FR20/2015-
Addendum Firm Appointment  Four Consultant              743,972.25  
Appointment of Resources To Be Deployed By The 
Kwazulu-Natal Provincial Treasury To Provide 
Supply Chain Management Support AT Department 
Of Arts & Culture For The Period Of 10 Months  10 Months One Consultant           1,196,000.00  
Execution Of The Biodiversity Audit At The 
Department Of Economic Development Tourism & 
Environmental Affairs  Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               810,902.85  
Variation Order KZN Department Of Public Works-
Capital Commitments, Maintenance & Period 
Contract Support 102 hours One Consultant              158,880.92  

Variation Order For Financial Management Support 
To The KZN Department Of Education 213.5 hours One Consultant              165,462.50  
Variation Order  For an Intermediate Resource: 
Capital Work-In Progress and disclosure notes 
project-  Hours One Consultant              165,462.50  

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation Support 
For KZN Municipalities 80 hours One Consultant                94,760.00  

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation Support 
For KZN Municipalities 1.8176 hours One Consultant                  3,553.40  

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation Support 
For KZN Municipalities 96 hours One Consultant              113,712.00  

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation Support 
For KZN Municipalities 96 hours One Consultant              113,712.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Support To 
KZN Department Of Public Works- Immovable 
Assets 1150 hours One Consultant           1,818,437.50  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Irregular 
Expenditure Management Support To KZN 
Department Of Health 840 hours One Consultant              993,535.20  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Irregular 
Expenditure Management Support To KZN 
Department Of Health 2880 hours Three Consultants            2,384,640.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Support To 
KZN Department Of Public Works- Immovable 
Assets 900 hours One Consultant              745,200.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Irregular 
Expenditure Management Support To KZN 
Department Of Health 960 hours  One Consultant              794,880.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Irregular 
Expenditure Management Support To KZN 
Department Of Health 3840 hours Four Consultant           3,179,520.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Irregular 
Expenditure Management Support To KZN 
Department Of Health 960 hours  One Consultant              794,880.00  

Variation Order Financial Management Support To 
Mpofana Local Municipality 240 hours One Consultant              284,280.00  

Variation Order Financial Management Support To 
UGu District Municipality 65 hours One Consultant                76,992.50  

Variation Order Appointment Of Municipal Finance 
Grant Management  100 hours One Consultant              118,450.00  

Variation Order Appointment Of Financial 
Management Support @ UGu District  65 hours One Consultant                76,992.50  
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Appointment Of Resources To Provide Support To 
KZN Department Of Public Works- Immovable 
Assets 900 hours One Consultant           1,064,502.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Irregular 
Expenditure Management Support To KZN 
Department Of Health 960 hours  One Consultant              794,880.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Irregular 
Expenditure Management Support To KZN 
Department Of Health 960 hours  One Consultant              794,880.00  

Review & Of Inkululeko Development Project At 
Ndumo Village In UMkhanyakude Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               700,000.00  
Appointment Of Resources For Support With 
Regards An Independent Assessment Of The 
Ndumo Irrigation Scheme Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               432,000.00  
Appointment Of Resources For Support With 
Regards An Independent Assessment Of The 
Ndumo Irrigation Scheme Firm Appointment  Firm Appointment               213,600.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Support To 
Department And Public Entities Irregular 
Expenditure 400 hours One Consultant              632,500.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Support To 
Department And Public Entities Irregular 
Expenditure 400 hours One Consultant              473,112.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Support To 
Department And Public Entities Irregular 
Expenditure 400 hours One Consultant              473,112.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Support To 
Department And Public Entities Irregular 
Expenditure 400 hours One Consultant              331,200.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Support To 
Department And Public Entities Irregular 
Expenditure 400 hours One Consultant              331,200.00  
Appointment Of Resources To Provide Support To 
Department And Public Entities Irregular 
Expenditure 400 hours One Consultant              331,200.00  

Forensic Investigation At Department Of Health 
Irregularity as Issued By The Auditor General  Forensic 

Appointment 3 Consultant              498,640.00  
 
TOTAL 
 

               
121,948,550.65 
 

 
 
 

Table 3.15.2 Analysis of consultant appointments using Donor funds, in terms of Historically Disadvantaged 
Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 
 

Project title Percentage 
ownership by HDI 

groups 

Percentage management 
by HDI groups 

Number of consultants from 
HDI groups that work on the 

project 
Assist Department of Arts & Culture with 
Asset Disclosure Notes 100% 80% 100 

Financial Management Support to Dube 
Tradeport  100% 100% 1 

DAC Annual Financial Statements 
Compilation & Support 100% 100% 25 

Financial Management Support at 
uThukela District  100% 100% 25 

Financial Management Support at 
uThukela District  25% 11.81% 100 

Financial Management Support at UGu 
District 25% 11.81% 100 

Grant Management Support at 
KwaDukuza 25% 11.81% 100 
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project 
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Grant Management Support at Harry 
Gwala 99% 99% 100 

Forensic investigation into alleged fraud 
& mismanagement of funds transferred 
by KZN department of Social 
Development 

100% 100% 100 

Forensic investigation into procurement 
irregularities at DOH 25% 11.81% 100 

Forensic investigation into abuse of 
power by senior officials at DAC & DSR 100%  100%  1  

Financial Management Support at UGu 
District 100% 100% 3 

Review & updating of the ERM 
framework for Local Government  100% 85% 10 

KZN Department of Public Works 
Immovable Asset Management & 
Disclosure note support  

99% 99% 100 

Forensic Investigation into various 
allegations of Maladministration & 
Mismanagement of school funds DOE 

100% 100% 3 

Forensic Investigation into Intellectual 
Property theft & Potential Irregular 
Expenditure regarding youth projects at 
DEDTEA 

42.20% 61% 3 

Transfer payment audit at EDTEA 96%  96% 90% 
Financial Management Support at 
uThukela District  100% 100% 10 

Grant Management Support to Ndwedwe 
Municipality 100% 80% 10% 

Financial Management Support for 
PPSD (Department of Health)  100% 80% 100 

AFS Preparation Support at Department 
of Social Development  99% 99% 100 

Financial Management Support for 
PPSD (Department of Health)  100% 100% 100 

Financial Management Support for 
PPSD (Department of Health)  80.70% 80.70% 20 

MSCOA Implementation support for KZN 
Municipalities  100% 100% 1 

To assist with the provision of Creditors 
related support (Department of Health)  99% 99% 100 

MSCOA Implementation support for KZN 
Municipalities  100% 100% 3 

To assist with the provision of Creditors 
related support (Department of Health)  100% 100% 15 

To assist with the provision of Creditors 
related support (Department of Health)  100% 100% 4 

MSCOA Implementation support for KZN 
Municipalities  99% 99% 100 

To assist with the provision of Creditors 
related support (Department of Health)  100% 100% 100 

MSCOA Implementation support for KZN 
Municipalities  25% 11.81% 100 

To assist with the provision of Creditors 
related support (Department of Health)  100% 100% 1 

Financial Management Support for 
PPSD (Department of Health)   100%  100% 1  

MSCOA Implementation support for KZN 
Municipalities  100% 100% 10 

Assist with Provision of Credit related 
support at Department of Education  80.70% 80.70% 20 

To assist with KZN Public Works Capital 
Commitments  100% 100% 100 

To assist with KZN Public Works Capital 100% 100% 100 
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Commitments   
To assist with KZN Public Works Capital 
Commitments  100% 100% 20 

Internal Control Improvement 
Programme- Department of Health 
Intervention  

100% 80% 100 

Internal Control Improvement 
Programme- Department of Health 
Intervention  

100% 100% 100 

Internal Control Improvement 
Programme- Department of Health 
Intervention  

100% 100% 12 

Internal Control Improvement 
Programme- Department of Health 
Intervention  

100% 100% 100 

Internal Control Improvement 
Programme- Department of Health 
Intervention  

100% 100% 100 

Internal Control Improvement 
Programme- Department of Health 
Intervention  

100% 100% 20 

Financial Management Support to Ugu 
District Municipality 100% 100% 100 

Internal Control Improvement 
Programme- Department of Health 
Intervention  

 100% 100%  1  

Grant Management Support to uThukela 
District Municipality 100% 100% 100 

Alteration and Renovations to staff 
housing at Murchison Hospital 100% 100% 1 

Financial Management Support: Review 
of Municipal AFS 100% 100% 2 

Conversion of the College into staff 
accommodation and construction of new 
student accommodation at Nkonjeni 
Hospital  

100% 100% 10 

Financial Management Support: Review 
of Municipal AFS 100% 100% 25 

Financial Management Support: Review 
of Municipal AFS 100% 100% 100 

Financial Management Support: Review 
of Municipal AFS 99% 99% 100 

Financial Management Support: Review 
of Municipal AFS 100% 100% 4 

Assessment of Mpofana Local 
Municipality Electricity Infrastructure and 
Metering distribution tariffs 

100% 100% 100 

Assessment of Mpofana Local 
Municipality Electricity Infrastructure and 
Metering distribution tariffs 

100% 80% 10 

Audit on Farmer Support & 
Development- Food Security at 
Department of Agriculture and Rural 
Development  

100% 100% 10 

Audit on Human Resource Management 
at Department of Social Development  100% 100% 100 

Audit on Inventory Management at 
Department of Sports & Recreation  100% 100% 100 

Performance Information Audit at the 
Department of Arts and Culture 100% 100% 100 

Nerve Centre System Audit at the KZN 
Office of the Premier (Quarter 2 & 3) of 
2019/20 

25% 11.81% 100 

Audit on SCM at Department of 
Agriculture and Rural Development  100% 85% 10 

Audit on Performance Information at 100% 100% 38 
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Commitments   
To assist with KZN Public Works Capital 
Commitments  100% 100% 20 

Internal Control Improvement 
Programme- Department of Health 
Intervention  

100% 80% 100 

Internal Control Improvement 
Programme- Department of Health 
Intervention  

100% 100% 100 

Internal Control Improvement 
Programme- Department of Health 
Intervention  

100% 100% 12 

Internal Control Improvement 
Programme- Department of Health 
Intervention  

100% 100% 100 

Internal Control Improvement 
Programme- Department of Health 
Intervention  

100% 100% 100 

Internal Control Improvement 
Programme- Department of Health 
Intervention  

100% 100% 20 

Financial Management Support to Ugu 
District Municipality 100% 100% 100 

Internal Control Improvement 
Programme- Department of Health 
Intervention  

 100% 100%  1  

Grant Management Support to uThukela 
District Municipality 100% 100% 100 

Alteration and Renovations to staff 
housing at Murchison Hospital 100% 100% 1 

Financial Management Support: Review 
of Municipal AFS 100% 100% 2 

Conversion of the College into staff 
accommodation and construction of new 
student accommodation at Nkonjeni 
Hospital  

100% 100% 10 

Financial Management Support: Review 
of Municipal AFS 100% 100% 25 

Financial Management Support: Review 
of Municipal AFS 100% 100% 100 

Financial Management Support: Review 
of Municipal AFS 99% 99% 100 

Financial Management Support: Review 
of Municipal AFS 100% 100% 4 

Assessment of Mpofana Local 
Municipality Electricity Infrastructure and 
Metering distribution tariffs 

100% 100% 100 

Assessment of Mpofana Local 
Municipality Electricity Infrastructure and 
Metering distribution tariffs 

100% 80% 10 

Audit on Farmer Support & 
Development- Food Security at 
Department of Agriculture and Rural 
Development  

100% 100% 10 

Audit on Human Resource Management 
at Department of Social Development  100% 100% 100 

Audit on Inventory Management at 
Department of Sports & Recreation  100% 100% 100 

Performance Information Audit at the 
Department of Arts and Culture 100% 100% 100 

Nerve Centre System Audit at the KZN 
Office of the Premier (Quarter 2 & 3) of 
2019/20 

25% 11.81% 100 

Audit on SCM at Department of 
Agriculture and Rural Development  100% 85% 10 

Audit on Performance Information at 100% 100% 38 
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KZN Office of the Premier  
Audit on Bursaries at KZN Office of the 
Premier  25% 11.81% 100 

Audit on Human Resource Management 
at Department of Transport 100% 100% 25 

Audit on expanded Public Works 
Program EPWP at Department of Public 
Works  

100% 85% 10 

Audit on Transfer Payments at 
Department of Sports and Recreation  100% 100% 100 

Audit on SCM at Department of 
Community Safety and Liaison  100% 100% 10 

Audit on SCM at Department of Arts and 
Culture  100% 100% 100 

Audit on SCM at Department of 
Education  100% 100% 100 

Audit of Fleet Management at 
Department of Education  100% 100% 100 

Microsoft Exchange System Audit at 
KZN Department of Community Safety 
and Liaison  

25% 11.81% 100 

Audit on Supply Chain Management at 
Department of Transport  100% 100% 100 

Audit on Traditional Council at KZN 
Department of COGTA  30.50% 42.90% 44 

Audit on Transfer Payment at KZN 
DEDTEA 100% 100% 100 

Audit on SCM at Department of Public 
Works  25% 11.81% 100 

Audit on Contract Management at the 
Office of the Premier 100% 100% 3 

Audit on SCM at Department of COGTA  100% 100% 3 
Audit on Vulindlela Housing Project at 
Department of Human Settlement  100% 100% 100 

Audit on SCM at Department of Human 
Settlement 100% 100% 10 

Microsoft Exchange System Audit at 
KZN Department of COGTA (Quarter 2) 25% 11.81% 100 

Audit on Property Transfer at KZN 
Human Settlement  30.50% 42.90% 44 

Financial Management Support: 
Mpofana Local Municipality 100% 100% 100 

Financial Management Support: Review 
of Municipal AFS 100% 100% 10 

Provide SCM Support at Zululand District 
Municipality  100% 100% 10 

To assist with KZN Public Works Capital 
Commitments   100% 100% 1 

To assist with KZN Public Works Capital 
Commitments   100% 80% 100 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 100% 100% 3 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 99% 99% 100 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 100% 100% 1 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 100% 100% 10 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 25% 11.81% 100 

Appointment Of Resources To Be 
Deployed By Provincial Treasury To 
Provide SCM Support At Department Of 
Arts & Culture For The Period Of 10 
Months 

100% 100% 100 

 

 

-202- 
  

KZN Office of the Premier  
Audit on Bursaries at KZN Office of the 
Premier  25% 11.81% 100 

Audit on Human Resource Management 
at Department of Transport 100% 100% 25 

Audit on expanded Public Works 
Program EPWP at Department of Public 
Works  

100% 85% 10 

Audit on Transfer Payments at 
Department of Sports and Recreation  100% 100% 100 

Audit on SCM at Department of 
Community Safety and Liaison  100% 100% 10 

Audit on SCM at Department of Arts and 
Culture  100% 100% 100 

Audit on SCM at Department of 
Education  100% 100% 100 

Audit of Fleet Management at 
Department of Education  100% 100% 100 

Microsoft Exchange System Audit at 
KZN Department of Community Safety 
and Liaison  

25% 11.81% 100 

Audit on Supply Chain Management at 
Department of Transport  100% 100% 100 

Audit on Traditional Council at KZN 
Department of COGTA  30.50% 42.90% 44 

Audit on Transfer Payment at KZN 
DEDTEA 100% 100% 100 

Audit on SCM at Department of Public 
Works  25% 11.81% 100 

Audit on Contract Management at the 
Office of the Premier 100% 100% 3 

Audit on SCM at Department of COGTA  100% 100% 3 
Audit on Vulindlela Housing Project at 
Department of Human Settlement  100% 100% 100 

Audit on SCM at Department of Human 
Settlement 100% 100% 10 

Microsoft Exchange System Audit at 
KZN Department of COGTA (Quarter 2) 25% 11.81% 100 

Audit on Property Transfer at KZN 
Human Settlement  30.50% 42.90% 44 

Financial Management Support: 
Mpofana Local Municipality 100% 100% 100 

Financial Management Support: Review 
of Municipal AFS 100% 100% 10 

Provide SCM Support at Zululand District 
Municipality  100% 100% 10 

To assist with KZN Public Works Capital 
Commitments   100% 100% 1 

To assist with KZN Public Works Capital 
Commitments   100% 80% 100 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 100% 100% 3 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 99% 99% 100 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 100% 100% 1 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 100% 100% 10 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 25% 11.81% 100 

Appointment Of Resources To Be 
Deployed By Provincial Treasury To 
Provide SCM Support At Department Of 
Arts & Culture For The Period Of 10 
Months 

100% 100% 100 
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Appointment Of Resources To Be 
Deployed By Provincial Treasury To 
Provide Supply Chain Management 
Support At Department of Human 
Settlements For The Period Of Six 
Months 

100% 100% 20 

Appointment Of Resources To Be 
Deployed By Provincial Treasury To 
Provide Supply Chain Management 
Support At Department of Human 
Settlements For The Period Of Six 
Months 

100% 100% 100 

Execution Of The Computer Network 
Penetration Testing & Investigation Of 
Identified Email Security Breaches 

100% 100% 100 

Conditional Assessment/Remedial 
Recommendations and Budget 
Requirements For UMngeni Municipal 
Owned Flats 

65% 90% 12 

Execution Of Internal Audit Assignments 
For Gaming & Betting Board 50% 50% 100 

Execution Of The Supply Chain 
Management Audit At The Department 
Of Social Development (DSD) 

100% 80% 10% 

Execution Of The Transfer Payment 
Audit At The Department OF 
Cooporative Governance & Traditional 
Affairs 

100% 100% 15 

Execution Of The Follow-Up 
Performance Audit On S&T Expenditure 
AT The Department Of Sports And 
Recreation (DSR) 

100% 100% 20 

Variation Order Investigation Various 
Allegations Of Procument Irregularities & 
And Corruption KwaZulu-Natal 
Department Of Transport FR20/2015-
Addendum 

51% 44.44% 5 

Appointment of Resources To Be 
Deployed By The Kwazulu-Natal 
Provincial Treasury To Provide Supply 
Chain Management Support AT 
Department Of Arts & Culture For The 
Period Of 10 Months  

100% 100% 38 

Execution Of The Biodiversity Audit At 
The Department Of Economic 
Development Tourism & Environmental 
Affairs  

100% 100% 38 

Variation Order KZN Department Of 
Public Works-Capital Commitments, 
Maintenance & Period Contract Support 

100% 100% 100 

Variation Order For Financial 
Management Support To The KZN 
Department Of Education 

100% 100% 10 

Variation Order  For an Intermediate 
Resource: Capital Work-In Progress and 
disclosure notes project-  

100% 100% 3 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 100% 100% 10 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 100% 100% 3 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 100% 100% 1 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 99% 99% 100 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Support To KZN Department Of Public 100% 100% 2 
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Appointment Of Resources To Be 
Deployed By Provincial Treasury To 
Provide Supply Chain Management 
Support At Department of Human 
Settlements For The Period Of Six 
Months 

100% 100% 20 

Appointment Of Resources To Be 
Deployed By Provincial Treasury To 
Provide Supply Chain Management 
Support At Department of Human 
Settlements For The Period Of Six 
Months 

100% 100% 100 

Execution Of The Computer Network 
Penetration Testing & Investigation Of 
Identified Email Security Breaches 

100% 100% 100 

Conditional Assessment/Remedial 
Recommendations and Budget 
Requirements For UMngeni Municipal 
Owned Flats 

65% 90% 12 

Execution Of Internal Audit Assignments 
For Gaming & Betting Board 50% 50% 100 

Execution Of The Supply Chain 
Management Audit At The Department 
Of Social Development (DSD) 

100% 80% 10% 

Execution Of The Transfer Payment 
Audit At The Department OF 
Cooporative Governance & Traditional 
Affairs 

100% 100% 15 

Execution Of The Follow-Up 
Performance Audit On S&T Expenditure 
AT The Department Of Sports And 
Recreation (DSR) 

100% 100% 20 

Variation Order Investigation Various 
Allegations Of Procument Irregularities & 
And Corruption KwaZulu-Natal 
Department Of Transport FR20/2015-
Addendum 

51% 44.44% 5 

Appointment of Resources To Be 
Deployed By The Kwazulu-Natal 
Provincial Treasury To Provide Supply 
Chain Management Support AT 
Department Of Arts & Culture For The 
Period Of 10 Months  

100% 100% 38 

Execution Of The Biodiversity Audit At 
The Department Of Economic 
Development Tourism & Environmental 
Affairs  

100% 100% 38 

Variation Order KZN Department Of 
Public Works-Capital Commitments, 
Maintenance & Period Contract Support 

100% 100% 100 

Variation Order For Financial 
Management Support To The KZN 
Department Of Education 

100% 100% 10 

Variation Order  For an Intermediate 
Resource: Capital Work-In Progress and 
disclosure notes project-  

100% 100% 3 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 100% 100% 10 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 100% 100% 3 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 100% 100% 1 

Variation Order MSCOA Implementation 
Support For KZN Municipalities 99% 99% 100 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Support To KZN Department Of Public 100% 100% 2 
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Works- Immovable Assets 
Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Irregular Expenditure Management 
Support To KZN Department Of Health 

100% 100% 10 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Irregular Expenditure Management 
Support To KZN Department Of Health 

100% 100% 20 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Support To KZN Department Of Public 
Works- Immovable Assets 

100% 100% 100 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Irregular Expenditure Management 
Support To KZN Department Of Health 

100% 100% 12 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Irregular Expenditure Management 
Support To KZN Department Of Health 

100% 100% 100 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Irregular Expenditure Management 
Support To KZN Department Of Health 

100% 100% 1 

Variation Order Financial Management 
Support To Mpofana Local Municipality 100% 100% 100 

Variation Order Financial Management 
Support To Ugu District Municipality 100% 100% 100 

Variation Order Appointment Of 
Municipal Finance Grant Management  100% 100% 100 

Variation Order Appointment Of Financial 
Management Support @UGu District  25% 11.81% 100 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Support To KZN Department Of Public 
Works- Immovable Assets 

100% 100% 1 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Irregular Expenditure Management 
Support To KZN Department Of Health 

25% 11.81% 100 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Irregular Expenditure Management 
Support To KZN Department Of Health 

96% 96% 90% 

Review & Of inkululeko Development 
Project At Ndumo Village In 
UMkhanyakude 

100% 90% 8 

Appointment Of Resources For Support 
With Regards An Independent 
Assessment Of The Ndumo Irrigation 
Scheme 

91% 66.70% 3 

Appointment Of Resources For Support 
With Regards An Independent 
Assessment Of The Ndumo Irrigation 
Scheme 

100% 100% 1 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Support To Department And Public 
Entities Irregular Expenditure 

100% 100% 1 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Support To Department And Public 
Entities Irregular Expenditure 

100% 80% 100 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Support To Department And Public 
Entities Irregular Expenditure 

100% 100% 10 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Support To Department And Public 
Entities Irregular Expenditure 

100% 100% 2 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Support To Department And Public 
Entities Irregular Expenditure 

100% 100% 4 

Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Support To Department And Public 
Entities Irregular Expenditure 

100% 100% 10 

Forensic Investigation At Department Of 100% 66.67 3 
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Works- Immovable Assets 
Appointment Of Resources To Provide 
Irregular Expenditure Management 
Support To KZN Department Of Health 

100% 100% 10 
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Municipal Finance Grant Management  100% 100% 100 
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Management Support @UGu District  25% 11.81% 100 
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Works- Immovable Assets 

100% 100% 1 
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Irregular Expenditure Management 
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25% 11.81% 100 
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Irregular Expenditure Management 
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Review & Of inkululeko Development 
Project At Ndumo Village In 
UMkhanyakude 
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Assessment Of The Ndumo Irrigation 
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Health Irregularity as Issued By The 
Auditor General  
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Health Irregularity as Issued By The 
Auditor General  
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E1 Report of the Auditor-General to the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Legislature on 
vote no. 6: Provincial Treasury 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion 
1. I have audited the financial statements of Provincial Treasury set out on pages 210 to 

267, which comprise the appropriation statement, statement of financial position as at 
31 March 2020, statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net 
assets and cash flow statement  for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Provincial Treasury as at 31 March 2020, and its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Modified 
Cash Standard (MCS) prescribed by National Treasury and the requirements of the 
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) 
and Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2019 (Act No.16 of 2019) (Dora).  

Basis for opinion 
3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing 

(ISAs). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-
general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this 
auditor’s report.  

4. I am independent of Provincial Treasury in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of 
the Code of ethics for professional accountants and parts 1 and 3 of the International 
Code of ethics for professional accountants (including International Independence 
Standards) of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA 
codes) as well as the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South 
Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the IESBA codes.  

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for my opinion. 

Emphasis of matter 
6. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this 

matter. 

Material underspending of the budget 

7. As disclosed in the appropriation statement, Provincial Treasury materially underspent 
on programme 1- administration by R33,68 million due to delays in implementing 
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certain projects, delays in filling of vacant funded posts and cost-cutting measures that 
had to be implemented. 

Other matter 
8. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this 

matter. 

Unaudited supplementary schedules  

9. The supplementary information set out on pages 268 to 279 does not form part of the 
financial statements and is presented as additional information. I have not audited 
these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion on them. 
 

Responsibilities of accounting officer for the financial statements 
10. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 

financial statements in accordance the MCS and the requirements of the PFMA and 
Dora, and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

11. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for 
assessing Provincial Treasury’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate 
Provincial Treasury or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements 
12. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

13. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 
included in the annexure to this auditor’s report. 
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Report on the audit of the annual performance report 

Introduction and scope 
14. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) 

(PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report 
on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information against 
predetermined objectives for the selected programme presented in the annual 
performance report. I performed procedures to identify material findings but not to 
gather evidence to express assurance. 

15. My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information, which must be based on the approved performance planning documents 
of Provincial Treasury. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of 
the performance indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures do not 
examine whether the actions taken by Provincial Treasury enabled service delivery. 
My procedures also do not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to planned 
performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be 
included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do 
not extend to these matters.  

16. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in 
accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and 
reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for programme 3: financial 
governance, as presented in the annual performance report of Provincial Treasury for 
the year ended 31 March 2020. 

17. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information 
was properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved 
performance planning documents. I performed further procedures to determine 
whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and 
assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether 
it was valid, accurate and complete. 

18. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 
performance information for the selected programme.   

Other matters 
19. I draw attention to the matters below.  

Achievement of planned targets 

20. The annual performance report on page(s) 100 to 140 includes information on the 
achievement of planned targets for the year and explanations are provided for the 
under/overachievement of a significant number of targets. 
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Adjustment of material misstatements 

21. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for 
auditing. These material misstatements were in the reported performance information 
on the financial governance programme. As management subsequently corrected the 
misstatements, I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of 
the reported performance information. 

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation 

Introduction and scope 
22. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a 

responsibility to report material findings on the Provincial Treasury’s compliance with 
specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to 
gather evidence to express assurance.  

23. I did not identify any material findings on compliance with the specific matters in key 
legislation set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA. 

Other information 

24. The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information 
does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report and the selected 
programme presented in the annual performance report that has been specifically 
reported in this auditor’s report.  

25.  My opinion on the financial statements, reported performance information and 
compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an 
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

26. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements and the selected programme presented in the annual 
performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.  

27. The other information I obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report is the report                
of the accounting officer and the report of the member of the executive committee.  If, 
based on the work I have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement 
in this other information, I am required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

28. When I do receive and read the report of the audit committee, if I conclude that there is 
a material misstatement therein, I am required to communicate the matter to those 
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charged with governance and request that the other information be corrected. If the 
other information is not corrected, I may have to retract this auditor’s report and re-
issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this will not be 
necessary.  

Internal control deficiencies 

29. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported 
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my 
objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. I did not identify any 
significant deficiencies in internal control. 

Other reports 

30. I draw attention to the following engagements, which had, or could have, an impact on 
the matters reported in Provincial Treasury’s financial statements, reported 
performance information, compliance with applicable legislation and other related 
matters. These reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements or 
my findings on the reported performance information or compliance with legislation. 

31. Three investigations into allegations relating to fraud and improper conduct in supply 
chain management were completed at year-end and recommendations needed to be 
implemented.  

32. The Special Investigating Unit of South Africa is investigating into allegations of 
misconduct within Provincial Treasury. These investigations were still in progress at 
year-end. 

 

 

30 September 2020 
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Notes to the Appropriation Statement  

 

     

1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement): 
 
Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies, disclosure 
notes and Annexure 1 (A-H) to the Annual Financial Statements. 
 

2. Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement): 
 
Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual 
Financial Statements. 
 

3. Detail on payments for financial assets 
 
Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note on Payments for financial 
assets to the Annual Financial Statements. 
 

4. Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement): 
 

 
 4.1  Per programme Final 

Appropriation 
Actual 

Expenditure 
Variance  

R’000 
Variance as a 

% of Final 
Appropriation 

Administration 237 636 204 269 33 367 14.0% 
     

Under-expenditure is mainly due to the delays in the appointment of Resources in respect of irregular 
Expenditure project of (R13m), and slow spending on the health/ Treasury Assistant project of (R7.9m). 
Savings were also realised due to no purchasing of motor vehicles during the year of (R6.2m), as savings 
due to the delays in filling of vacant funded posts mainly from the office of the MEC of (R2.2m), office of 
the HOD of (R2.3m) and Corporate Services of (R1.4m) due to lengthy recruitment process. The 
adherence to cost cutting measures resulted in savings on Subsistence and Travel and other operational 
items.    

     
     
Sustainable Resource Management 44 641 40 980 3 661 8.2% 
     

Under-expenditure is mainly due to the slow spending in the Infrastructure Crack team of (R1.5m) with 
regard to infrastructure support offered by the unit which is mainly driven on a needs basis of 
departments/ municipalities. Moreover, Savings were realized via an IDA claims in relations to the 
appointment of the DDG as Acting HOD of DARD and the director: Provincial Own Revenue post which 
was vacated during the year of (R1.1m). Further savings were realised on S&T of (R281 000), Training & 
Development of (R119 000) and the balance is savings on the operating costs. The department has 
payment vouchers to the value of R59 million for expenditure that was incurred on behalf of department of 
health for storm damage project in relation to the renovations of 4 hospitals that were damaged due to 
storm damages. This expenditure was recovered from the department of Health via IDA claim. 
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KWAZULU-NATAL PROVINCIAL TREASURY 
VOTE 6 

 
Notes to the Appropriation Statement  

 

     

Financial Governance 210 917 205 764 5 153 2.4% 
     

Savings of (R1.1m) were realised from bank charges being lower than budget, Advertising of (R523 000) 
was lower than anticipated, S&T of (R850 000). Further savings were realised on Training of (R235 000), 
Computer of (R260 000), Communication of (R206 000), and Stationery of (R118 000) being lower due to 
adherence to the cost cutting measures. An under-expenditure of (R1.2m) relates mainly to the late filing 
of vacant funded posts mainly under Assets & Liabilities as well as PPP. The balance is savings on the 
operating costs. 

     
     
Internal Audit 174 595 162 584 12 011 6.9% 
     

An under-expenditure of (R6.1m) relating mainly to orders that were not issued in 2019/20 in respect of 
planned Risk Management projects such as Risk Maturity reviews. Risk management unit brought forward 
incomplete projects from previous financial years. Savings of (R3.8m) were realised on Compensation of 
Employees due to delays in the filling of vacant funded posts within this programme. Further savings were 
also realised from S&T of (R542 000), Computers of (R656 000), Stationery of (R164 000), Training of 
(R149 000), and Communication of (R122 000) and the balance from other operational items.  

     
     
Municipal Finance Management 59 865 58 418 1 447 2.4% 
     
     

The Under-expenditure of (R750 000) is mainly due to the delays in the filling of vacant funded posts. 
Total savings of (R140 000) were also realised on S&T, and well as other operating expenditure due to 
cost cutting measures, as well as Computers of (R278 000).  

     
 
 

    

 

4.2 Per economic classification Final 
Appropriation 

Actual 
Expenditure 

Variance Variance as a 
% of Final 

Appropriation 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Current payments     
Compensation of employees 344 393 331 508 12 885 3.7% 
Goods and services 361 098 327 614 33 484 9.3% 
Interest and rent on land - - -  
     
Transfers and subsidies     
Provinces and municipalities 40 39 1 2.5% 
Departmental agencies and 
accounts 

3 2 1 33.3% 

Non-profit institutions 500 362 138 27.6% 
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KWAZULU-NATAL PROVINCIAL TREASURY 
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Notes to the Appropriation Statement  

 

     

Households 5 610 5 379 231 4.1% 
     

Payments for capital assets     
Machinery and equipment 14 603 7 066 7 537 51.6% 
Intangible assets 1 360 - 1 360 100.0% 
     
Payments for financial assets 47 45 2 4.3% 

 

Compensation of Employees – Compensation of employees was under-spent by R12,8 million due to 
delays in the filling of vacant funded posts within the department, and as well as vacated posts during the 
financial year, as such savings have been realised.  

Goods and Services – Goods & Services was under-spent mainly by R33.4 million due to delays in the 
appointment of Resources in respect of Irregular Expenditure project, and slow spending on Health/ 
Treasury Assistant project, and slow spending in the Infrastructure Crack team with regards to 
infrastructure support offered by the department and slow spending on Professional Services in respect of 
Risk Management projects such as Risk Maturity Reviews due to reports not being finalised on time, and 
Forensic Services in respect of Investigations on Criminal Cases taking longer than anticipated. Savings 
were also realised from bank charges being lower than budgeted as well as S&T due to adherence to the 
cost cutting measures.  

Transfers and Subsidies - Transfers and Subsidies was under-spent due to cash donations and External 
bursaries being lower than anticipated.  

Payments for Capital Assets - Payments for Capital Assets was under-spent by R8.8 million and this 
relates to the vehicle expenditure which has been lesser as well as purchase of server related items which 
has been classified as Goods and Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R'000  R'000 
REVENUE     
Annual appropriation 1 727 654  681 900 
Departmental revenue 2 242 019  171 277 
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Notes to the Appropriation Statement  

 

     

Aid assistance   105 038  162 935 
     
TOTAL REVENUE  1 074 711  1 016 112 
     
EXPENDITURE     
Current expenditure     
Compensation of employees 4 331 507  299 646 
Goods and services 5 327 616  330 375 
Interest and rent on land 6 -  14 
Aid assistance 3 16 340  25 391 
     
Total current expenditure  675 463  655 426 
     
Transfers and subsidies     
Transfers and subsidies 8 5 782  7 293 
Aid assistance 3 50 860  193 571 
     
Total transfers and subsidies  56 642  200 864 
     
Expenditure for capital assets     
Tangible assets 9 7 123  18 935 
Intangible assets 9 -  - 
     
Total expenditure for capital assets  7 123  18 935 
     
Unauthorised expenditure approved without funding 1 -  - 
     
Payments for financial assets 7 45  - 
     
TOTAL EXPENDITURE  739 273  875 225 
     
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR  335 438  140 887 
     
Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year     
Voted funds  55 639  25 730 

Annual appropriation  55 639  25 730 
Conditional grants  -  - 

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 14 242 019  171 277 
Aid assistance 3 37 780  (56 120) 
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR  335 438  140 887 
     
 

 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R'000  R'000 
ASSETS      
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 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R'000  R'000 
ASSETS      
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Notes to the Appropriation Statement  

 

     

 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R'000  R'000 
Current assets   132 637  47 776 

Unauthorised expenditure  -  - 
Cash and cash equivalents 10 108 056  21 292 
Prepayments and advances 11 -  1 
Receivables 12 24 581  22 500 
Aid assistance prepayments 3 -  - 
Aid assistance receivable 3 -  3 983 

     
Non-current assets   1 824  85 

Receivables 12 1 824  85 
     
TOTAL ASSETS  134 461  47 861 
     
LIABILITIES     
     
Current liabilities   132 504  46 613 

Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 13 55 639  26 730 
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be 
surrendered to the Revenue Fund 

14 21 386  19 442 

Payables 15 22 008  441 
Aid assistance repayable 3 -  - 
Aid assistance unutilised 3 33 471  - 

     
Non-current liabilities      

Payables  -  - 
     
TOTAL LIABILITIES  132 504  46 613 
     
NET ASSETS  1 957  1 248 
 

     
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R'000  R'000 
     
Represented by:     

Recoverable revenue  1 957  1 248 
     
TOTAL  1 957  1 248 
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KWAZULU-NATAL PROVINCIAL TREASURY 
VOTE 6 

 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

for the year ended 31 March 2020 

     

 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R'000  R'000 
     
Recoverable revenue     
Opening balance  1 248  1 341 
Transfers:  709  (93) 

Irrecoverable amounts written off 7.1 45   
Debts revised     
Debts recovered (included in departmental 
receipts) 

 (798)  (646) 

Debts raised  1 462  553 
Closing balance  1 957  1 248 

     
TOTAL  1 957  1 248 
 
 
 

 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R'000  R’000 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
Receipts  1 073 276  1 016 112 

Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 727 654  681 900 
Departmental revenue received 2 2 497  752 
Interest received  2.2 238 087  170 525 
Aid assistance received 3 105 038  162 935 

     
Net (increase)/decrease in working capital  19 487  9 164 
Surrendered to Revenue Fund  (266 805)  (203 094) 
Surrendered to RDP Fund/Donor  (326)  (5 403) 
Current payments  (675 463)  (655 412) 
Interest paid  6 -  (14) 
Payments for financial assets 7 (45)  - 
Transfers and subsidies paid  (56 642)  (200 864) 
Net cash flow available from operating activities 23 93 482  (39 511) 
     
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
Distribution/dividend received     
Payments for capital assets 9 (7 123)  (18 935) 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2.3 1 435   
(Increase)/decrease in non-current receivables  (1 739)   
Net cash flows from investing activities  (7 427)  (18 935) 
     
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
Increase/(decrease) in net assets  709  (93) 
Increase/(decrease) in non-current payables     
Net cash flows from financing activities  709  (93) 
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KWAZULU-NATAL PROVINCIAL TREASURY 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

for the year ended 31 March 2020 

     

     
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  86 764  (58 539) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  21 292  79 831 
Unrealised gains and losses within cash and cash 
equivalents  

 -  - 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 10 108 056  21 292 
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KWAZULU-NATAL PROVINCIAL TREASURY 
VOTE 6 

 
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

     

PART A: ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Summary of significant accounting policies  
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have 
been applied consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. Management has 
concluded that the financial statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary 
information.   
The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated.  Management has 
used assessments and estimates in preparing the annual financial statements.  These are based on 
the best information available at the time of preparation. 
Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the 
usefulness of the financial statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public 
Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury 
Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue Act.  

1 Basis of preparation  
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash 
Standard.   

2 Going concern  
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

3 Presentation currency 
Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also 
the functional currency of the department.  

4 Rounding  
Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand 
Rand (R’000). 

5 Foreign currency translation 
Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands 
using the spot exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt. 

6 Comparative information 

6.1 Prior period comparative information  
Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial 
statements.  Where necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have 
been reclassified to ensure that the format in which the information is presented is consistent 
with the format of the current year’s financial statements. 

6.2 Current year comparison with budget  
A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each programme 
and economic classification is included in the appropriation statement.   

7 Revenue 

7.1 Appropriated funds 
Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against 
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PART A: ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

Summary of significant accounting policies  
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have 
been applied consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. Management has 
concluded that the financial statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary 
information.   
The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated.  Management has 
used assessments and estimates in preparing the annual financial statements.  These are based on 
the best information available at the time of preparation. 
Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the 
usefulness of the financial statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public 
Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury 
Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue Act.  

1 Basis of preparation  
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash 
Standard.   

2 Going concern  
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

3 Presentation currency 
Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also 
the functional currency of the department.  

4 Rounding  
Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand 
Rand (R’000). 

5 Foreign currency translation 
Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands 
using the spot exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt. 
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the revenue fund (i.e. statutory appropriation). 
Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the 
appropriation becomes effective.  Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget 
process are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the adjustments 
become effective. 
The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the 
reporting date is recognised as a payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.   

7.2 Departmental revenue  
Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received 
and is subsequently paid into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise. 
Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a 
payable in the statement of financial position.  

7.3 Accrued departmental revenue  
Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the 
notes to the financial statements when: 
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the 

transaction will flow to the department; and 
 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. 
Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable 
from collecting agents. 
Write-offs are made according to the department’s debt write-off policy 

8 Expenditure 

8.1 Compensation of employees 

8.1.1 Salaries and wages 
Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of 
payment.   

8.1.2 Social contributions 
Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised 
in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.   
Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as 
transfers to households in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. 

8.2 Other expenditure 
Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for 
capital assets) is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of 
payment.  The expense is classified as a capital expense if the total consideration paid is 
more than the capitalisation threshold.   

8.3 Accruals and payables not recognised  
Accruals and payables not recognised are recorded in the notes to the financial statements at 
cost at the reporting date. 
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8.4 Leases 

8.4.1 Operating leases 
Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current 
expenditure in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. 
The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements.  

8.4.2 Finance leases  
Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital 
expenditure in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. 
The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and are 
not apportioned between the capital and interest portions.   
Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the 
lower of: 
 cost, being the fair value of the asset; or 
 the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to acquire 

ownership at the end of the lease term, excluding interest. 

9 Aid Assistance 

9.1 Aid assistance received 
Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the statement of financial performance when 
received.  In-kind aid assistance is recorded in the notes to the financial statements on the 
date of receipt and is measured at fair value. 
Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid 
assistance that are required to be refunded to the donor are recognised as a payable in the 
statement of financial position. 

9.2 Aid assistance paid 
Aid assistance paid is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of 
payment. Aid assistance payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a 
receivable in the statement of financial position. 

10 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.   
Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position as a 
current liability. 
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on 
hand, deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts. 

11 Prepayments and advances 
Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when the 
department receives or disburses the cash.   
Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost. 
 

12 Loans and receivables 
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Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus 
accrued interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.  Write-
offs are made according to the department’s write-off policy. 

13 Investments 
Investments are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost. 

14 Financial assets 

14.1 Financial assets (not covered elsewhere) 
A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. 
At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less amounts 
already settled or written-off, except for recognised loans and receivables, which are 
measured at cost plus accrued interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already 
settled or written-off. 

14.2 Impairment of financial assets 
Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the reduction 
in the recorded carrying value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future 
economic benefits expected to be received from that asset, is recorded in the notes to the 
financial statements. 

15 Payables 
Payables recognised in the statement of financial position are recognised at cost. 

16 Capital Assets 

16.1 Immovable capital assets 
Immovable assets reflected in the asset register of the department are recorded in the notes 
to the financial statements at cost or fair value where the cost cannot be determined reliably. 
Immovable assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction are recorded at fair value at the 
date of acquisition.  Immovable assets are subsequently carried in the asset register at cost 
and are not currently subject to depreciation or impairment. 
Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when 
ready for use. 
Additional information on immovable assets not reflected in the assets register is provided in 
the notes to financial statements. 

16.2 Movable capital assets 
Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  
Movable capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair 
value as at the date of acquisition.   
Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable capital 
assets are measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable 
assets are measured at R1.   
All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be 
recorded at R1. 
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Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or 
impairment. 
Biological assets are subsequently carried at fair value.  
Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset 
when ready for use. 

16.3 Intangible assets 
Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  
Intangible assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as 
at the date of acquisition.   
Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements 
when the department commences the development phase of the project.   
Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital 
assets are measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible 
assets are measured at R1.   
All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be 
recorded at R1. 
Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or 
impairment. 
Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when 
ready for use.  

16.4 Project Costs: Work-in-progress 
Expenditure of a capital nature is initially recognised in the statement of financial performance 
at cost when paid.  
Amounts paid towards capital projects are separated from the amounts recognised and 
accumulated in work-in-progress until the underlying asset is ready for use.  Once ready for 
use, the total accumulated payments are recorded in an asset register.  Subsequent 
payments to complete the project are added to the capital asset in the asset register.  
Where the department is not the custodian of the completed project asset, the asset is 
transferred to the custodian subsequent to completion. 

17 Provisions and Contingents 

17.1 Provisions 
Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal 
or constructive obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The 
provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds required to settle the present 
obligation at the reporting date. 

17.2 Contingent liabilities 
Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a 
possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the 
control of the department or when there is a present obligation that is not recognised because 
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it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the 
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

17.3 Contingent assets 
Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible asset 
arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the department. 

17.4 Capital commitments  
Capital commitments are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial statements.  

18 Unauthorised expenditure 
Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such time 
as the expenditure is either: 
 approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds 

are received; or 
 approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off 

against the appropriation in the statement of financial performance; or 
 Transferred to receivables for recovery. 

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised 
expenditure. 

19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when 
confirmed.  The amount recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful 
expenditure incurred.   
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial statements 
when it is resolved or transferred to receivables or written off. 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected 
to be recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as 
irrecoverable. 

20 Irregular expenditure 
Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed.  
The amount recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is 
impracticable to determine, in which case reasons therefor are provided in the note.   
Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant 
authority, transferred to receivables for recovery, not condoned and removed or written-off.    
Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be 
recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable. 

21 Changes in accounting estimates and errors 
Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS 
requirements. 
Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in 
accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine 
the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error.  In such cases the department 
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shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period 
for which retrospective restatement is practicable. 

22 Events after the reporting date 
Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted 
for in the financial statements.  The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-
adjusting events after the reporting date have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements.   

23 Capitalisation reserve 
The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior 
reporting period but which are recognised in the statement of financial position for the first 
time in the current reporting period.  Amounts are recognised in the capitalisation reserves 
when identified in the current period and are transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue 
Fund when the underlying asset is disposed and the related funds are received. 

24 Recoverable revenue 
Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous 
financial year becomes recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year.  Amounts are 
either transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when recovered or are transferred 
to the statement of financial performance when written-off. 

25 Related party transactions 
Related party transactions within the Minister/MEC’s portfolio are recorded in the notes to the 
financial statements when the transaction is not at arm’s length.  
The number of individuals and the full compensation of key management personnel is 
recorded in the notes to the financial statements. 

26 Inventories  
At the date of acquisition, inventories are recognised at cost in the statement of financial 
performance. 
Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the inventories are 
measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or where 
intended for distribution (or consumed in the production of goods for distribution) at no or a 
nominal charge, the lower of cost and current replacement value. 
The cost of inventories is assigned by using the weighted average cost basis. 

27 Public-Private Partnerships 
Public Private Partnerships are accounted for based on the nature and or the substance of 
the partnership. The transaction is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting 
policies. 
A summary of the significant terms of the PPP agreement, the parties to the agreement, and 
the date of commencement thereof together with the description and nature of the concession 
fees received, the unitary fees paid, rights and obligations of the department are recorded in 
the notes to the financial statements. 

28 Employee benefits 
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The value of each major class of employee benefit obligation (accruals, payables not 
recognised and provisions) is disclosed in the Employee benefits note. 

29 Transfers of functions 
Transfers of functions are accounted for by the acquirer by recognising or recording assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed at their carrying amounts at the date of transfer.   
Transfers of functions are accounted for by the transferor by derecognising or removing 
assets and liabilities at their carrying amounts at the date of transfer.   

30 Mergers 
Mergers are accounted for by the combined department by recognising or recording assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed at their carrying amounts at the date of the merger.  
Mergers are accounted for by the combining departments by derecognising or removing 
assets and liabilities at their carrying amounts at the date of the merger.  
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1. Annual Appropriation  
1.1  Annual Appropriation 

Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act (and the Adjustments 
Appropriation Act) for National Departments (Voted funds) and Provincial Departments: 

 

 

 

2. Departmental revenue  
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Tax revenue     
Sales of goods and services other than capital 
assets 

2.1 302  286 

Fines, penalties and forfeits  -  - 
Interest, dividends and rent on land 2.2 238 087  170 525 
Sales of capital assets 2.3 1 435  - 
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 2.4 2 195  466 
Transfer received   -  - 
Total revenue collected  242 019  171 277 
Less: Own revenue included in appropriation  -  - 
Departmental revenue collected  242 019  171 277 
 

 2019/20 2018/19 
 Final 

Appropriati
on 

Actual 
Funds 

Received 

Funds 
not 

request
ed/not 
receive

d 

Final 
Appropriatio

n 

Appropriatio
n received 

Funds 
not 

reques
ted 
/not 

receiv
ed 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000  
Administration 237 636 237 636  237 262 237 262  
Sustainable 
Resource 
Management 

44 641 44 641  38 657 38 657  

Financial 
Governance 

210 917 210 917  196 102 196 102  

Internal Audit 174 595 174 595  149 648 149 648  
Municipal 
Finance 
Programme 

59 865 59 865  60 231 60 231  

       
Total 727 654 727 654 - 681 900 681 900 - 
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2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 2 R’000  R’000 
Sales of goods and services produced by the 
department 

 302  285 

Sales by market establishment  103  104 
Administrative fees  30   
Other sales  169  181 

Sales of scrap, waste and other used current 
goods 

 -  1 

Total  302  286 
 
 

2.2 Interest, dividends and rent on land  
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 2 R’000  R’000 
Interest  238 087  170 525 
Dividends  -  - 
Rent on land  -  - 
Total  238 087  170 525 
 
 

2.3 Sale of capital assets 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 2 R’000  R’000 
Tangible assets     

Machinery and equipment 27 1 435  - 
     

Intangible assets     
Software 28 -  - 

     
Total  1 435   
 
 

2.4 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities  
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 2 R’000  R’000 
Receivables  2 195  466 
Total  2 195  466 

 

 
 
 

3. Aid assistance 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
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2.3 Sale of capital assets 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 2 R’000  R’000 
Tangible assets     

Machinery and equipment 27 1 435  - 
     

Intangible assets     
Software 28 -  - 

     
Total  1 435   
 
 

2.4 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities  
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 2 R’000  R’000 
Receivables  2 195  466 
Total  2 195  466 

 

 
 
 

3. Aid assistance 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
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Opening Balance  (3 983)  57 540 
Prior period error  -  - 
As restated  (3 983)  57 540 
Transferred from statement of financial 
performance 

 37 780  (56 120) 

Transfers to or from retained funds     
Paid during the year  (326)  (5 403) 
Closing Balance  33 471  (3 983) 

 

 
3.1 Analysis of balance by source 

  2019/20  2018/19 
 Note R’000  R’000 
Aid assistance from RDP  -  - 
Aid assistance from other sources  33 471  (3 983) 
CARA  -  - 
Closing balance 3 33 471  (3 983) 
 

3.2 Analysis of balance 
  2019/20  2018/19 
 Note R’000  R’000 
Aid assistance receivable     (3 983) 
Aid assistance prepayments (not expensed)     
Aid assistance unutilised  33 471   
Aid assistance repayable     
Closing balance 3 33 471  (3 983) 
 
Aid assistance not requested/not received                  -                 - 
 

3.3 Aid assistance expenditure per economic classification 
 
  2019/20  2018/19 
 Note R’000  R’000 
Current  16 340  25 391 
Capital 9 58  93 
Transfers and subsidies  50 860  193 571 
Total aid assistance expenditure  67 258  219 055 

 

4. Compensation of employees 
4.1 Salaries and Wages 

 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Basic salary  235 031  210 160 
Performance award  3 184  4 806 
Service Based  211  94 
Compensative/circumstantial  3 103  2 387 
Periodic payments  -  10 
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Other non-pensionable allowances  56 630  51 759 
Total  298 159  269 216 

 

 
4.2 Social contributions 

 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Employer contributions     
Pension  25 637  23 641 
Medical  7 661  6 749 
UIF  1  - 
Bargaining council  49  40 
Official unions and associations  -  - 
Insurance  -  - 
Total  33 348  30 430 

     
     
Total compensation of employees  331 507  299 646 
     
Average number of employees  537  507 
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5. Goods and services  
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Administrative fees  5 962  10 419 
Advertising  2 231  3 207 
Minor assets 5.1 718  399 
Bursaries (employees)  612  937 
Catering  864   2 307 
Communication  1 377  2 903 
Computer services 5.2 114 075  104 937 
Consultants: Business and advisory services  44 521  14 264 
Legal services  3 264  3 722 
Contractors  4 245  1 850 
Agency and support / outsourced services  89 608  123 230 
Entertainment  5  - 
Audit cost – external 5.3 4 514  4 602 
Fleet services  1 587  1 992 
Inventory 5.4 1 253  958 
Consumables 5.5  2 761  3 467 
Operating leases  19 249  17 871 
Property payments 5.6 12 209  13 209 
Rental and hiring  -  - 
Transport provided as part of the departmental 
activities 

 197  306 

Travel and subsistence 5.7 13 006  14 008 
Venues and facilities  52  583 
Training and development  2 210  2 372 
Other operating expenditure 5.8 3 096  2 832 
Total  327 616  330 375 
 

5.1 Minor assets 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 5 R’000  R’000 
Tangible assets     
Machinery and equipment  718  399 
Total  718  399 
  
 

5.2 Computer services 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 5 R’000  R’000 
SITA computer services  78 864  72 466 
External computer service providers  35 211  32 471 
     
Total  114 075  104 937 
 

5.3 Audit cost – External 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 5 R’000  R’000 
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Regularity audits  4 128  4 323 
Computer audits  386  279 
Total  4 514  4 602 
 
 

5.4 Inventory  
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

 5 R’000  R’000 
Clothing material and accessories  402   
Food and food supplies  96  111 
Materials and supplies  147   
Other supplies 5.4.1 608  847 
Total  1 253  958 
 
 

5.4.1 Other supplies 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

 5.4 R’000  R’000 
Assets for distribution  608  847 

Machinery and equipment  558  486 
Sports and recreation  -  30 
Other assets for distribution  50  331 

Other     
Total  608  847 
 

5.5 Consumables 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

 5 R’000  R’000 
Consumable supplies  1 241  1 962 

Uniform and clothing  44  9 
Household supplies  422  320 
Building material and supplies  397  - 
Communication accessories  2  9 
IT consumables  292  26 
Other consumables  84  1 598 

Stationery, printing and office supplies  1 520  1 505 
Total  2 761  3 467 
 
 

5.6 Property payments 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 5 R’000  R’000 
Municipal services  6 353  5 325 
Property maintenance and repairs  5 856  7 884 
Other  -  - 
Total  12 209  13 209 
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5.7 Travel and subsistence 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

 5 R’000  R’000 
Local  12 923  13 147 
Foreign  83  861 
Total  13 006  14 008 
 
 

5.8 Other operating expenditure 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 5 R’000  R’000 
Professional bodies, membership and subscription 
fees 

 554  634 

Resettlement costs  190  219 
Other  2 352  1 979 
Total  3 096  2 832 
 

 

6. Interest and rent on land 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 

Interest paid  -  14 
Rent on land  -  - 
Total  -  14 

 

7. Payments for financial assets 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Debts written off 7.1 45  - 
Total  45  - 
 
 
 
 

7.1 Debts written off 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

 7 R’000  R’000 
Nature of debts written off     
     
     
Irregular expenditure written off  -  - 
     
Total  -  - 
     
Recoverable revenue written off     
Salary overpayment  34  - 
Tax Debts  11  - 
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5.7 Travel and subsistence 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

 5 R’000  R’000 
Local  12 923  13 147 
Foreign  83  861 
Total  13 006  14 008 
 
 

5.8 Other operating expenditure 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 5 R’000  R’000 
Professional bodies, membership and subscription 
fees 

 554  634 

Resettlement costs  190  219 
Other  2 352  1 979 
Total  3 096  2 832 
 

 

6. Interest and rent on land 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 

Interest paid  -  14 
Rent on land  -  - 
Total  -  14 

 

7. Payments for financial assets 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Debts written off 7.1 45  - 
Total  45  - 
 
 
 
 

7.1 Debts written off 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

 7 R’000  R’000 
Nature of debts written off     
     
     
Irregular expenditure written off  -  - 
     
Total  -  - 
     
Recoverable revenue written off     
Salary overpayment  34  - 
Tax Debts  11  - 
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Total  45  - 
     
Other debt written off     
Total debt written off  45  - 
 

8. Transfers and subsidies  
 2019/20  2018/19 
 R’000  R’000 
 Note    
Provinces and municipalities     
Departmental agencies and accounts Annexure 1B 41  56 
Public corporations and private enterprises Annexure 1D -  5 
Non-profit institutions Annexure 1F 362  205 
Households Annexure 1G 5 379  7 027 
Total  5 782  7 293 
 

 

 

9. Expenditure for capital assets  
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 R’000  R’000 
Tangible assets  7 123  18 935 

Machinery and equipment 27 7 123  18 935 
     
Total 7 123  18 935 
     
 
  
 

9.1 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2019/20 
 Voted funds  Aid 

assistance 
 Total 

 R’000  R’000  R’000 
      
Tangible assets 7 065  58  7 123 

Machinery and equipment 7 065  58  7 123 
 
 

     

Total  7 065  58  7 123 
 
 

9.2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2018/19 
 Voted funds  Aid 

assistance 
 Total 

 R’000  R’000  R’000 
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Total  45  - 
     
Other debt written off     
Total debt written off  45  - 
 

8. Transfers and subsidies  
 2019/20  2018/19 
 R’000  R’000 
 Note    
Provinces and municipalities     
Departmental agencies and accounts Annexure 1B 41  56 
Public corporations and private enterprises Annexure 1D -  5 
Non-profit institutions Annexure 1F 362  205 
Households Annexure 1G 5 379  7 027 
Total  5 782  7 293 
 

 

 

9. Expenditure for capital assets  
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 R’000  R’000 
Tangible assets  7 123  18 935 

Machinery and equipment 27 7 123  18 935 
     
Total 7 123  18 935 
     
 
  
 

9.1 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2019/20 
 Voted funds  Aid 

assistance 
 Total 

 R’000  R’000  R’000 
      
Tangible assets 7 065  58  7 123 

Machinery and equipment 7 065  58  7 123 
 
 

     

Total  7 065  58  7 123 
 
 

9.2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2018/19 
 Voted funds  Aid 

assistance 
 Total 

 R’000  R’000  R’000 
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Tangible assets  18  842  93  18 935 
Machinery and equipment 18 842  93  18 935 

      
Total  18 842  93  18 935 
 
 
 

9.3 Finance lease expenditure included in Expenditure for capital assets 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 R’000  R’000 
Tangible assets     

Machinery and equipment  2 222  3 828 
     
Total  2 222  3 828 

 

10. Cash and cash equivalents  
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Consolidated Paymaster General Account  70 632  39 054  
Cash receipts  -  - 
Disbursements  -  (18 630) 
Cash on hand  4  4 
Investments (Domestic)  37 420  864 
Investments (Foreign)     
Total  108 056  21 292 

 

11. Prepayments and advances 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Travel and subsistence  -  1 
Total  -  1 
 
 
 

11.1 Prepayments (Expensed) 
 

 Note Amount 
as at 1 

April 2018 

Less: 
Received 

in the 
current 

year 

Add or 
Less: 
Other 

Add: Current 
Year 

prepayments 

Amount 
as at 31 
March 
2019 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Capital assets  1 025 (1 025)    
Other  - -    
Total  1 025 (1 025) - - - 
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9.3 Finance lease expenditure included in Expenditure for capital assets 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 R’000  R’000 
Tangible assets     

Machinery and equipment  2 222  3 828 
     
Total  2 222  3 828 

 

10. Cash and cash equivalents  
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Consolidated Paymaster General Account  70 632  39 054  
Cash receipts  -  - 
Disbursements  -  (18 630) 
Cash on hand  4  4 
Investments (Domestic)  37 420  864 
Investments (Foreign)     
Total  108 056  21 292 

 

11. Prepayments and advances 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Travel and subsistence  -  1 
Total  -  1 
 
 
 

11.1 Prepayments (Expensed) 
 

 Note Amount 
as at 1 

April 2018 

Less: 
Received 

in the 
current 

year 

Add or 
Less: 
Other 

Add: Current 
Year 

prepayments 

Amount 
as at 31 
March 
2019 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Capital assets  1 025 (1 025)    
Other  - -    
Total  1 025 (1 025) - - - 
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12. Receivables 
  2019/20 2018/19 

  Current Non-
current 

Total Current Non-
current 

Total 

  
 

Note 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Claims 
recoverable 

12.1 
 

23 640 - 23 640 20 848 - 20 848 

Recoverable 
expenditure 

12.2 - - - 1 - 1 

Staff debt 12.3 618 611 1 229 340 24 364 
Other 
receivables 

12.4 323 1 213 1 536 1 311 61 1 372 

Total 24 581 1 824 26 405 22 500 85 22 585 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.1 Claims recoverable 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

 15 and Annex 
4 

R’000  R’000 

National departments  7  10 
Provincial departments  6 701  20 098 
Private enterprises  16 932  740 
     
Total  23 640  20 848 

 

 
12.2 Recoverable expenditure (disallowance accounts) 

 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 12 R’000  R’000 

     
Sal: Tax Debt  -  1 
Disallowance damages and losses  100  270 
Disallowance damages and losses  (100)  (270) 
     
Total    1 
 
 
 

12.3 Staff debt 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

 12 R’000  R’000 
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12. Receivables 
  2019/20 2018/19 

  Current Non-
current 

Total Current Non-
current 

Total 

  
 

Note 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Claims 
recoverable 

12.1 
 

23 640 - 23 640 20 848 - 20 848 

Recoverable 
expenditure 

12.2 - - - 1 - 1 

Staff debt 12.3 618 611 1 229 340 24 364 
Other 
receivables 

12.4 323 1 213 1 536 1 311 61 1 372 

Total 24 581 1 824 26 405 22 500 85 22 585 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.1 Claims recoverable 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

 15 and Annex 
4 

R’000  R’000 

National departments  7  10 
Provincial departments  6 701  20 098 
Private enterprises  16 932  740 
     
Total  23 640  20 848 

 

 
12.2 Recoverable expenditure (disallowance accounts) 

 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 12 R’000  R’000 

     
Sal: Tax Debt  -  1 
Disallowance damages and losses  100  270 
Disallowance damages and losses  (100)  (270) 
     
Total    1 
 
 
 

12.3 Staff debt 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

 12 R’000  R’000 
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Bursary debt  558  336 
Other  671  28 
Total  1 229  364 
 

12.4 Other receivables 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 12 R’000  R’000 

     
Bursary debt  1 242  1 109 
Overpaid salary  103  97 
Other debtors  191  166 
Total  1 536  1 372 

 
 

 

13. Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Opening balance  26 730  42 493 
Prior period error   -  - 
As restated  26 730  42 493 
Transfer from statement of financial performance 
(as restated) 

 55 639  25 730 

Add:  Unauthorised expenditure for current year  -  - 
Voted funds not requested/not received  -  - 
Paid during the year  (26 730)  (41 493) 
Closing balance  55 639  26 730 

 

14. Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue 
Fund 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Opening balance  19 442  9 766 
Prior period error   -  - 
As restated  19 442  9 766 
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 
(as restated) 

 242 019  171 277 

Paid during the year  (240 075)  (161 601) 
Closing balance  21 386  19 442 

 

15. Payables – current 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
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Other  671  28 
Total  1 229  364 
 

12.4 Other receivables 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 12 R’000  R’000 

     
Bursary debt  1 242  1 109 
Overpaid salary  103  97 
Other debtors  191  166 
Total  1 536  1 372 

 
 

 

13. Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Opening balance  26 730  42 493 
Prior period error   -  - 
As restated  26 730  42 493 
Transfer from statement of financial performance 
(as restated) 

 55 639  25 730 

Add:  Unauthorised expenditure for current year  -  - 
Voted funds not requested/not received  -  - 
Paid during the year  (26 730)  (41 493) 
Closing balance  55 639  26 730 

 

14. Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue 
Fund 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Opening balance  19 442  9 766 
Prior period error   -  - 
As restated  19 442  9 766 
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 
(as restated) 

 242 019  171 277 

Paid during the year  (240 075)  (161 601) 
Closing balance  21 386  19 442 

 

15. Payables – current 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
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  R’000  R’000 

Amounts owing to other entities     
Advances received     
Clearing accounts 15.1 123  189 
Other payables 15.2 21 885  252 
Total  22 008  441 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15.1 Clearing accounts 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

 15 R’000  R’000 
Sal: Income Tax  261  357 
Online travel control account  (192)  (168) 
Sal GEHS refund control account  56  - 
Sal Pension fund  (2)  - 
Total  123  189 

 

 
15.2 Other payables 

 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 15 R’000  R’000 
Description     
Payable: Adv: P/Dept.: KZN Adv Acc: CL  901  252 
Payable: Adv: Pub corp& Priv ent Adv Acc: CL  100  - 
Payable: Adv: Global fund  20 884  - 
Total  21 885  252 

 

16. Net cash flow available from operating activities 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial 
Performance 

 355 438  140 887 

Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed 
operating activities 

 (241 956)  (180 398) 

(Increase)/decrease in receivables   (2 081)  9 874 
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances  1  (1) 
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets  -  - 
Increase/(decrease) in payables – current  21 567  (709) 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets  (1 435)   
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets  -  - 
Expenditure on capital assets  7 123  18 935 
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  R’000  R’000 

Amounts owing to other entities     
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Clearing accounts 15.1 123  189 
Other payables 15.2 21 885  252 
Total  22 008  441 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15.1 Clearing accounts 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

 15 R’000  R’000 
Sal: Income Tax  261  357 
Online travel control account  (192)  (168) 
Sal GEHS refund control account  56  - 
Sal Pension fund  (2)  - 
Total  123  189 

 

 
15.2 Other payables 

 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
 15 R’000  R’000 
Description     
Payable: Adv: P/Dept.: KZN Adv Acc: CL  901  252 
Payable: Adv: Pub corp& Priv ent Adv Acc: CL  100  - 
Payable: Adv: Global fund  20 884  - 
Total  21 885  252 

 

16. Net cash flow available from operating activities 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial 
Performance 

 355 438  140 887 

Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed 
operating activities 

 (241 956)  (180 398) 

(Increase)/decrease in receivables   (2 081)  9 874 
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances  1  (1) 
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets  -  - 
Increase/(decrease) in payables – current  21 567  (709) 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets  (1 435)   
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets  -  - 
Expenditure on capital assets  7 123  18 935 
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Surrenders to Revenue Fund  (266 805)  (203 094) 
Surrenders to RDP Fund/Donor  (326)  (5 403) 
Voted funds not requested/not received  -  - 
Other non-cash items  -  - 
Net cash flow generated by operating activities  93 482  (39 511) 

 

 

17. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Consolidated Paymaster General account  70 632  39 054 
Disbursements  -  (18 630) 
Cash on hand  4  4 
Cash with commercial banks (Local)  37 420  864 
Total  108 056  21 292 

 

18. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
18.1 Contingent liabilities 

 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Liable to   Nature     
Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex 3A 90  90 
Claims against the department Annex 3B 1 200  700 
Intergovernmental payables (unconfirmed 
balances)  

Annex 5 1 503  3 

Total  2 793   793 

 

19. Capital commitments 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Specify class of asset     
Computer equipment  360  1 968 
Furniture and office equipment  142  30 
Other machinery and equipment  -  14 
     
Total   502  2 012 

 

20. Accruals and payables not recognised 
20.1 Accruals 

  2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Listed by economic classification     

 30 Days 30+ Days Total  Total 
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  R’000  R’000 
Consolidated Paymaster General account  70 632  39 054 
Disbursements  -  (18 630) 
Cash on hand  4  4 
Cash with commercial banks (Local)  37 420  864 
Total  108 056  21 292 

 

18. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
18.1 Contingent liabilities 

 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Liable to   Nature     
Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex 3A 90  90 
Claims against the department Annex 3B 1 200  700 
Intergovernmental payables (unconfirmed 
balances)  

Annex 5 1 503  3 

Total  2 793   793 

 

19. Capital commitments 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Specify class of asset     
Computer equipment  360  1 968 
Furniture and office equipment  142  30 
Other machinery and equipment  -  14 
     
Total   502  2 012 

 

20. Accruals and payables not recognised 
20.1 Accruals 

  2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Listed by economic classification     

 30 Days 30+ Days Total  Total 
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Goods and services 6 425 269 6 694  32 836 
      
Total 6 425 269 6 694  32 836 
     
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Listed by programme level     
Administration  2 651  5 987 
Sustainable Resource Management  -  32 
Financial Governance  2 747  22 773 
Internal Audit  1 175  3 951 
Municipal Finance Management  121  93 
Total  6 694  32 836 
     
 

20.2 Payables not recognised 
  2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Listed by economic classification     

 30 Days 30+ Days Total  Total 
Goods and services 66 8 74  2 558 
Capital Assets 86 - 86  - 
      
Total 152 8 160  2 558 
 
 

    

 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Listed by programme level     
Administration  -  673 
Sustainable Resource Management  -  2 
Financial Governance  19  1 183 
Internal Control  123  538 
Municipal Finance Management  18  162 
     
Total  160  2 558 
     
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
Included in the above totals are the following:  R’000  R’000 
Confirmed balances with other departments Annex 5 42  205 
Confirmed balances with other government 
entities 

Annex 5 -  - 

Total  42  205 
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 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Listed by programme level     
Administration  -  673 
Sustainable Resource Management  -  2 
Financial Governance  19  1 183 
Internal Control  123  538 
Municipal Finance Management  18  162 
     
Total  160  2 558 
     
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
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Total  42  205 
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21. Employee benefits 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

  R’000  R’000 
Leave entitlement  13 100  10 143 
Service bonus   7 090  6 574 
Performance awards  6 779  4 933 
Capped leave   3 648  3 827 
Other  76  135 
Total  30 693  25 612 
 

The leave entitlement as disclosed above is the net of negative balances.  The negative 
balances amounts to R157k  

 

22. Lease commitments 
 

22.1 Operating leases  
 

 
 

2019/20 

 
Specialised 

military 
equipment 

 
 
 

Land 

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures 

 
Machinery 

and 
equipment 

 
 
 

Total 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Not later than 1 year   19 832  19 832 
Later than 1 year and not 
later than 5 years 

  43 775  43 775 

Later than five years      
Total lease commitments - - 63 607  63 607 

      
      
 
 
 
2018/19 

 
Specialised 

military 
equipment 

 
 
 

Land 

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures 

 
Machinery 

and 
equipment 

 
 
 

Total 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Not later than 1 year   14 923  14 923 
Later than 1 year and not 
later than 5 years 

  28 444  28 444 

Later than five years      
      
Total lease commitments - - 43 367  43 367 
 
Lease accommodation for office accommodation and parking at the following sites 
(Treasury House, Nomalanga Building, Giltime parking and Edendale Lay centre). The 
current contracts for all three leased properties have expired. 
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21. Employee benefits 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 

  R’000  R’000 
Leave entitlement  13 100  10 143 
Service bonus   7 090  6 574 
Performance awards  6 779  4 933 
Capped leave   3 648  3 827 
Other  76  135 
Total  30 693  25 612 
 

The leave entitlement as disclosed above is the net of negative balances.  The negative 
balances amounts to R157k  

 

22. Lease commitments 
 

22.1 Operating leases  
 

 
 

2019/20 

 
Specialised 

military 
equipment 

 
 
 

Land 

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures 

 
Machinery 

and 
equipment 

 
 
 

Total 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Not later than 1 year   19 832  19 832 
Later than 1 year and not 
later than 5 years 

  43 775  43 775 

Later than five years      
Total lease commitments - - 63 607  63 607 

      
      
 
 
 
2018/19 

 
Specialised 

military 
equipment 

 
 
 

Land 

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures 

 
Machinery 

and 
equipment 

 
 
 

Total 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Not later than 1 year   14 923  14 923 
Later than 1 year and not 
later than 5 years 

  28 444  28 444 

Later than five years      
      
Total lease commitments - - 43 367  43 367 
 
Lease accommodation for office accommodation and parking at the following sites 
(Treasury House, Nomalanga Building, Giltime parking and Edendale Lay centre). The 
current contracts for all three leased properties have expired. 

2
0
0
3
1
1
9
0
 K

Z
N

 T
re

a
s
u
ry

.o
ld

.j
o
b
 1

0
/1

4
/2

0
2
0
 0

8
:3

9
:0

0
 2

5
8
 A

 Y
e
llo

w
M

a
g
e
n
ta

C
y
a
n

B
la

c
k



KWAZULU-NATAL PROVINCIAL TREASURY 
VOTE 6 

 
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

for the year ended 31 March 2020 
 

     

 
22.2 Finance leases  

 
 
 

2019/20 

 
Specialised 

military 
equipment 

 
 
 

Land 

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures 

 
Machinery 

and 
equipment 

   
 
 

Total 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Not later than 1 year    1 061 1 061 
Later than 1 year and 
not later than 5 years 

   485 485 

Later than five years      
Total lease 
commitments 

- - - 1 546 1 546 

      
 
 
 
2018/19 

 
Specialised 

military 
equipment 

 
 
 

Land 

 
Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures 

 
Machinery 

and 
equipment 

 
 
 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Not later than 1 year    2 681 2 681 
Later than 1 year and 
not later than 5 years 

   3 945 3 945 

Later than five years      
Total lease 
commitments 

- - - 6 626 6 626 

 

23. Irregular expenditure 
23.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure 

 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Opening balance  25 706  25 706 
Prior period error  -  - 
As restated  25 706  25 706 
Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to prior year  6   
Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to current year  658  1 226 
Less: Prior year amounts condoned  -  - 
Less: Current year amounts condoned  (558)  (1 226) 
Less: Prior year amounts not condoned and 
removed 

 -  - 

Less: Current year amounts not condoned and 
removed 

 -  - 

Less: Amounts recoverable (current and prior year)  -  - 
Less: Amounts written off  -  - 
Closing balance  25 812  25 706 
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22.2 Finance leases  

 
 
 

2019/20 

 
Specialised 

military 
equipment 

 
 
 

Land 

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures 

 
Machinery 

and 
equipment 

   
 
 

Total 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Not later than 1 year    1 061 1 061 
Later than 1 year and 
not later than 5 years 

   485 485 

Later than five years      
Total lease 
commitments 

- - - 1 546 1 546 

      
 
 
 
2018/19 

 
Specialised 

military 
equipment 

 
 
 

Land 

 
Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures 

 
Machinery 

and 
equipment 

 
 
 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
Not later than 1 year    2 681 2 681 
Later than 1 year and 
not later than 5 years 

   3 945 3 945 

Later than five years      
Total lease 
commitments 

- - - 6 626 6 626 

 

23. Irregular expenditure 
23.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure 

 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Opening balance  25 706  25 706 
Prior period error  -  - 
As restated  25 706  25 706 
Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to prior year  6   
Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to current year  658  1 226 
Less: Prior year amounts condoned  -  - 
Less: Current year amounts condoned  (558)  (1 226) 
Less: Prior year amounts not condoned and 
removed 

 -  - 

Less: Current year amounts not condoned and 
removed 

 -  - 

Less: Amounts recoverable (current and prior year)  -  - 
Less: Amounts written off  -  - 
Closing balance  25 812  25 706 
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Analysis of awaiting condonation per age 
classification 

    

Current year  100  - 
Prior years  25 712  25 706 
Total  25 812  25 706 
 
 
 

23.2 Details of current and prior year irregular expenditure – added current year (under 
determination and investigation) 
 
Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 

proceedings 
2019/20 
R’000 

   
PKX No 172 
Inkazimulo Business & Advisory No 558 
Total  664  
 
Inkazimulo Bus & Advisory was awarded R662k purchase order, the actual was R558k, 
the whole transaction was regularised. 
 
 

23.3 Details of irregular expenditure condoned 
Incident Condon by (relevant authority) 2019/20 

R’000 
   
Inkazimulo Business & Advisory Accounting officer 558 
Total  558 

 

24. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
24.1 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure  

 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Opening balance  -  927 
Prior period error  -  - 
As restated  -  927 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to 
prior year 

 -  - 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to 
current year 

 10  14 

Less: Amounts recoverable  -  (941) 
Less: Amounts written off  -  - 
Closing balance  10  - 
 
 

24.2 Details of current and prior year fruitless and wasteful expenditure – added current 
year (under determination and investigation) 
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Analysis of awaiting condonation per age 
classification 

    

Current year  100  - 
Prior years  25 712  25 706 
Total  25 812  25 706 
 
 
 

23.2 Details of current and prior year irregular expenditure – added current year (under 
determination and investigation) 
 
Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 

proceedings 
2019/20 
R’000 

   
PKX No 172 
Inkazimulo Business & Advisory No 558 
Total  664  
 
Inkazimulo Bus & Advisory was awarded R662k purchase order, the actual was R558k, 
the whole transaction was regularised. 
 
 

23.3 Details of irregular expenditure condoned 
Incident Condon by (relevant authority) 2019/20 

R’000 
   
Inkazimulo Business & Advisory Accounting officer 558 
Total  558 

 

24. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
24.1 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure  

 
 Note 2019/20  2018/19 
  R’000  R’000 
Opening balance  -  927 
Prior period error  -  - 
As restated  -  927 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to 
prior year 

 -  - 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to 
current year 

 10  14 

Less: Amounts recoverable  -  (941) 
Less: Amounts written off  -  - 
Closing balance  10  - 
 
 

24.2 Details of current and prior year fruitless and wasteful expenditure – added current 
year (under determination and investigation) 
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Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 

proceedings 
2019/20 
R’000 

Penalties in respect of Legal fees No 10 
   
   
   
Total  10 
 

25. Key management personnel 
 No. of 

Individuals 
2019/20  2018/19 

  R’000  R’000 
Political office bearers (provide detail below) 1 4 003 1 978 
Officials:   

Level 15 to 16 5 9 461 9 057 
Level 14 14 18 547 20 905 

Family members of key management 
personnel 

   

Total  32 011 31 940 
 
 

26. Non-adjusting events after reporting date 
   2019/20 

Nature of event  R’000 
   
Covid 19  114 000 
Forensic Unit  38 733 
Total   152 733 

 

This includes an outbreak of covid19 which resulted in estimated budget cut of R114 000 
from baseline on the 2020/21 budget and the transfer of forensic unit to Office of the 
Premier (OTP) as from 01/08/2020. Initial budget was R38 733 and it was subsequently 
decreased by R10 239 to cater for the budget cut. The remaining budget as at 1 August 
2020 that was transferred to OTP is R19 996. 

 

27. Movable Tangible Capital Assets 
 

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 Opening 

balance 
Value 

adjustments 
Additions Disposals Closing 

Balance 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
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Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal 

proceedings 
2019/20 
R’000 

Penalties in respect of Legal fees No 10 
   
   
   
Total  10 
 

25. Key management personnel 
 No. of 

Individuals 
2019/20  2018/19 

  R’000  R’000 
Political office bearers (provide detail below) 1 4 003 1 978 
Officials:   

Level 15 to 16 5 9 461 9 057 
Level 14 14 18 547 20 905 

Family members of key management 
personnel 

   

Total  32 011 31 940 
 
 

26. Non-adjusting events after reporting date 
   2019/20 

Nature of event  R’000 
   
Covid 19  114 000 
Forensic Unit  38 733 
Total   152 733 

 

This includes an outbreak of covid19 which resulted in estimated budget cut of R114 000 
from baseline on the 2020/21 budget and the transfer of forensic unit to Office of the 
Premier (OTP) as from 01/08/2020. Initial budget was R38 733 and it was subsequently 
decreased by R10 239 to cater for the budget cut. The remaining budget as at 1 August 
2020 that was transferred to OTP is R19 996. 

 

27. Movable Tangible Capital Assets 
 

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 Opening 

balance 
Value 

adjustments 
Additions Disposals Closing 

Balance 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
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MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT 

85 316  4 892 (8 688) 81 520 

Transport assets 20 576   (3 264) 17 312 
Computer equipment 58 659  3 871 (5 080) 57 450 
Furniture and office equipment 5 561  414 (187) 5 788 
Other machinery and equipment 520  607 (157) 970 
      
TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS 

85 316 - 4 892 (8 688) 81 520 

 
 
 
 

27.1 Additions 
ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 Cash* Non-

cash** 
(Capital 
Work in 

Progress 
current 

costs and 
finance 
lease 

payments) 

Received 
current, 
not paid 

(Paid 
current 
year, 

received 
prior year) 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
      
MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT 

7 066  (2 260) 86 4 892 

Transport assets      
Computer equipment 3 785   86 3 871 
Furniture and office equipment 414    414 
Other machinery and 
equipment 

2 867  (2 260)  607 

      
TOTAL ADDITIONS TO 
MOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS 

7 066 - (2 260) 86 4 892 

 
27.2 Disposals 

DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

 Sold for 
cash 

Non-cash 
disposal 

Total 
disposals 

 Cash 
Received 

Actual 
 R’000 R’000 R’000  R’000 

      
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 8 047 641 8 688  1 434 
Transport assets 2 984 280 3 264  1 280 
Computer equipment 4 731 349 5 080  127 
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Furniture and office equipment 5 561  414 (187) 5 788 
Other machinery and equipment 520  607 (157) 970 
      
TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS 

85 316 - 4 892 (8 688) 81 520 

 
 
 
 

27.1 Additions 
ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 
 Cash* Non-

cash** 
(Capital 
Work in 

Progress 
current 

costs and 
finance 
lease 

payments) 

Received 
current, 
not paid 

(Paid 
current 
year, 

received 
prior year) 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
      
MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT 

7 066  (2 260) 86 4 892 

Transport assets      
Computer equipment 3 785   86 3 871 
Furniture and office equipment 414    414 
Other machinery and 
equipment 

2 867  (2 260)  607 

      
TOTAL ADDITIONS TO 
MOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS 

7 066 - (2 260) 86 4 892 

 
27.2 Disposals 

DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

 Sold for 
cash 

Non-cash 
disposal 

Total 
disposals 

 Cash 
Received 

Actual 
 R’000 R’000 R’000  R’000 

      
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 8 047 641 8 688  1 434 
Transport assets 2 984 280 3 264  1 280 
Computer equipment 4 731 349 5 080  127 
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Furniture and office equipment 175 12 187  10 
Other machinery and equipment 157  157  17 
      
TOTAL DISPOSAL OF 
MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS 

8 047 641 8 688  1 434 

 
 

27.3 Movement for 2018/19  
MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 
MARCH 2019 
 Opening 

balance 
Prior 

period 
error 

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
      
MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT 

70 069  16 135 (888) 85 316 

Transport assets 12 478  8 098  20 576 
Computer equipment 52 086  7 461 (888) 58 659 
Furniture and office equipment 5 081  480  5 561 
Other machinery and equipment 424  96  520 
      
TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS 

70 069 - 16 135 (888) 85 316 

 
 
 

27.4 Minor assets 
MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 
MARCH 2020 

 Specialised 
military 
assets 

Intangible 
assets 

Heritage 
assets 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Biological 
assets 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
       
Opening 
balance 

 1 428  7 804  9 232 

Value 
adjustments 

      

Additions    737  737 
Disposals    (460)  (460) 
TOTAL MINOR 
ASSETS 

- 1 428 - 8 081 - 9 509 

 

 Specialised 
military 
assets 

Intangible 
assets 

Heritage 
assets 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Biological 
assets 

Total 
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MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 
MARCH 2019 
 Opening 

balance 
Prior 

period 
error 

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
      
MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT 

70 069  16 135 (888) 85 316 

Transport assets 12 478  8 098  20 576 
Computer equipment 52 086  7 461 (888) 58 659 
Furniture and office equipment 5 081  480  5 561 
Other machinery and equipment 424  96  520 
      
TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS 

70 069 - 16 135 (888) 85 316 

 
 
 

27.4 Minor assets 
MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 
MARCH 2020 

 Specialised 
military 
assets 

Intangible 
assets 

Heritage 
assets 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Biological 
assets 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
       
Opening 
balance 

 1 428  7 804  9 232 

Value 
adjustments 

      

Additions    737  737 
Disposals    (460)  (460) 
TOTAL MINOR 
ASSETS 

- 1 428 - 8 081 - 9 509 
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military 
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assets 
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Number of R1 
minor assets 

   1 607  1 607 

Number of 
minor assets at 
cost 

 21  5 399  5 420 

TOTAL 
NUMBER OF 
MINOR 
ASSETS 

- 21  7 006 - 7 027 

 

 

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 
MARCH 2019 
 

 Specialised 
military 
assets 

Intangible 
assets 

Heritage 
assets 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Biological 
assets 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
       
Opening 
balance 

 1 428  7 413  8 841 

Prior period 
error 

      

Additions    399  399 
Disposals    (8)  (8) 
TOTAL MINOR 
ASSETS 

- 1 428 - 7 804 - 9 232 
 

       
 
 

 

Specialised 
military 
assets 

Intangible 
assets 

Heritage 
assets 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Biological 
assets 

Total 

Number of R1 
minor assets 

   1 778  1 778 

Number of 
minor assets at 
cost 

 21  3 908  3 929 

TOTAL 
NUMBER OF 
MINOR 
ASSETS 

- 21  5 686 - 5 707 

 
 

27.5 Movable assets written off  
MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 

 Specialised 
military 
assets 

Intangible 
assets 

Heritage 
assets 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Biological 
assets 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
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minor assets at 
cost 

 21  5 399  5 420 

TOTAL 
NUMBER OF 
MINOR 
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Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
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balance 

 1 428  7 413  8 841 

Prior period 
error 

      

Additions    399  399 
Disposals    (8)  (8) 
TOTAL MINOR 
ASSETS 

- 1 428 - 7 804 - 9 232 
 

       
 
 

 

Specialised 
military 
assets 

Intangible 
assets 

Heritage 
assets 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Biological 
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Total 

Number of R1 
minor assets 

   1 778  1 778 

Number of 
minor assets at 
cost 

 21  3 908  3 929 

TOTAL 
NUMBER OF 
MINOR 
ASSETS 

- 21  5 686 - 5 707 

 
 

27.5 Movable assets written off  
MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2020 

 Specialised 
military 
assets 

Intangible 
assets 

Heritage 
assets 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Biological 
assets 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
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Assets written 
off 

   435  435 

TOTAL 
MOVABLE 
ASSETS 
WRITTEN OFF 

- - - 435 - 435 

 

MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 
 Specialised 

military 
assets 

Intangible 
assets 

Heritage 
assets 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Biological 
assets 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
    106  106 
Assets written 
off 

      

TOTAL 
MOVABLE 
ASSETS 
WRITTEN OFF 

- - - 106 - 106 

 

 

MAJOR ASSETS TO BE TRANSFERRED IN TERMS OF S42 OF THE PFMA -  31 MARCH 2019 
 Specialised 

military 
assets 

Intangible 
assets 

Heritage 
assets 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Biological 
assets 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
       
No. of Assets    41  41 
Value of the 
assets (R’000) 

   206  206 

 
 

MINOR ASSETS TO BE TRANSFERRED IN TERMS OF S42 OF THE PFMA - 31 MARCH 2019 
 Specialised 

military 
assets 

Intangible 
assets 

Heritage 
assets 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Biological 
assets 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
       
No. of Assets    1  1 
Value of the 
assets (R’000) 

   2  2 

 

28. Intangible Capital Assets  
MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

KWAZULU-NATAL PROVINCIAL TREASURY 
VOTE 6 

 
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

for the year ended 31 March 2020 
 

     

       
Assets written 
off 

   435  435 

TOTAL 
MOVABLE 
ASSETS 
WRITTEN OFF 

- - - 435 - 435 

 

MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2019 
 Specialised 

military 
assets 

Intangible 
assets 

Heritage 
assets 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Biological 
assets 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
    106  106 
Assets written 
off 

      

TOTAL 
MOVABLE 
ASSETS 
WRITTEN OFF 

- - - 106 - 106 

 

 

MAJOR ASSETS TO BE TRANSFERRED IN TERMS OF S42 OF THE PFMA -  31 MARCH 2019 
 Specialised 

military 
assets 

Intangible 
assets 

Heritage 
assets 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Biological 
assets 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
       
No. of Assets    41  41 
Value of the 
assets (R’000) 

   206  206 

 
 

MINOR ASSETS TO BE TRANSFERRED IN TERMS OF S42 OF THE PFMA - 31 MARCH 2019 
 Specialised 

military 
assets 

Intangible 
assets 

Heritage 
assets 

Machinery 
and 

equipment 

Biological 
assets 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
       
No. of Assets    1  1 
Value of the 
assets (R’000) 

   2  2 
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KWAZULU-NATAL PROVINCIAL TREASURY 
VOTE 6 

 
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

for the year ended 31 March 2020 
 

     

31 MARCH 2020 
 Opening 

balance 
Value 

adjustments 
Additions Disposals Closing 

Balance 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
      
SOFTWARE 23 159    23 159 
      
      
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS 

23 159 - - - 23 159 

 
 

28.1 Movement for 2018/19 
MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2019 
 Opening 

balance 
Prior 

period 
error 

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
      
SOFTWARE 23 159    23 159 
      
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS 

23 159 - - - 23 159 
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balance 
Value 

adjustments 
Additions Disposals Closing 

Balance 
 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
      
SOFTWARE 23 159    23 159 
      
      
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS 

23 159 - - - 23 159 

 
 

28.1 Movement for 2018/19 
MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2019 
 Opening 

balance 
Prior 

period 
error 

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
      
SOFTWARE 23 159    23 159 
      
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS 

23 159 - - - 23 159 
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